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Our Mission
To improve the quality of life in the
communities where we work through
sustainable and effective interventions

Our Vision
To ensure health, happiness and
dignity for all

Our Guiding Principles
and Values
Innovation & Quality

Compassion & Empathy

We bring innovation and
quality to everything we do

We show compassion and
empathy in our approach

Empowering Mothers &
Families

Transparency &
Accountability

We believe in the central
role of mothers in uplifting
their families

We are transparent and
accountable in our work

Inclusiveness & Dignity
We believe all lives are
equal
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Founder, Syed Humayun Kabir and Patron, Sajida Humayun Kabir

About Our Founder
Syed Humayun Kabir, Founder of SAJIDA Foundation, devoted himself to the service of humanity,
driven by his belief that everyone deserves to live with health, happiness and dignity. From a
young age, Mr. Kabir would personally reach out to help those in need using whatever means at
his disposal. He started SAJIDA Foundation initially in 1987 from the garage of his own residence,
providing non-formal education to disadvantaged children.
Syed Humayun Kabir was the first Managing Director of Pfizer Ltd. Bangladesh, (later renamed
Renata Ltd.) where Mr. Kabir was Chairman for 21 years till he passed away. In 1993, when Pfizer Inc.
transferred ownership to local shareholders, instead of benefitting personally from this opportunity,
Mr. Kabir negotiated and convinced Pfizer to loan the shares to SAJIDA on a deferred payment basis.
Subsequently, Pfizer donated 51% shares to SAJIDA Foundation.
Today, Renata Limited is valued at USD 1 Billion and Renata’s growth directly impacts thousands
of marginalized and disadvantaged people across Bangladesh through SAJIDA’s work. The unique
partnership between Renata and SAJIDA embodies the Founder’s belief in ethical business as a force
for common good, and serves as his legacy.
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Sajida Humayun Kabir
Patron, SAJIDA Foundation
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SAJIDA Microfinance Convention for Field Officers

Our Story
SAJIDA Foundation is a value-driven non-government organization that embodies the principle of
corporate philanthropy with 51% shareholding at Renata Ltd., a leading pharmaceutical company.
The organization was founded in 1993 as a social enterprise reaching out to marginalized and
disadvantaged communities with comprehensive development initiatives including microfinance,
health, social development and other programs. Today, SAJIDA’s programs cover people from all
strata of society with comprehensive development programs particularly specialized in addressing
urban challenges.
SAJIDA’s core areas of work include innovative financial services for underbanked communities;
health care services covering both physical and mental wellness that are community, hospital and
home based; social development programs focusing on urban extreme poor; and water, sanitation
and hygiene services among others.
SAJIDA’s values of dignity, compassion, inclusion, quality, innovation and transparency are held as
the organization’s greatest strengths and integrated in all of SAJIDA’s work. With over two decades
of experience in poverty alleviation and social development, SAJIDA Foundation has emerged as a
successful and innovative model for sustainable change, currently reaching six million patrons and
working in more than 4,000 villages and cities across 23 districts.
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Chairperson’s
Message
The year in review has been revolutionary in paving the
path to a future more inclusive of innovation, technology,
and change in how SAJIDA operates not just as a
Foundation dedicated to bring more meaningful changes
in the lives of the vulnerable, but also as an organization
committed to their promise of providing health, happiness,
and dignity for all. This year saw some shifts in the
organization’s dynamics that are adding a lasting impact
on our culture of effectively giving-back to the world, while
decisively reshaping the future of our Foundation in more
ways than one.
In our 26 years of dedicated service to improve the lives
of the marginalized has an outreach of over 4,000 villages
and cities across 23 districts in the country. With our
shared roots with the steadily growing Renata Limited,
we are uniquely positioned to continue financing our
developmental efforts for the long-run in the most
sustainable and meaningful way, allowing the Foundation
to spread its wings to the dreams of Founder Syed
Humayun Kabir, of eradicating poverty and build a world
where everyone is equal. In regard to its mission, the
prior year has been one of embracing changes, and firmly
making marked advancements across all of our running
programs.
Between 2018 and 2019, adopting technology has been
one of the core themes of progress at SAJIDA where we
launched initiatives to digitise our internal activities and
processes, and in some cases, introduced client-facing
technology to improve our service delivery. With industrystandard office productivity and collaboration tools, the
organization has reached new levels of efficiency and
flexibility, opening further avenues of partnership and
remote collaboration. Our choice in Microsoft’s Office 365
and Facebook’s Workplace platforms have given us the
speed, transparency, redundancy, and all-inclusiveness,
that SAJIDA Foundation will leverage in the next 5 years
of planned growth. Going further, the previous year had
seen more digitization with the introduction of our new HR
Software which will be supporting the cultivation of all our
human capital and talent at all levels. The organization has
also invested in, and launched implementations of new

software solutions for our social enterprises, in the form
of a Hospital Management System, unifying management
of our hospitals in both Keraniganj & Narayanganj; as well
as web and mobile applications for managing our roundthe-clock client facing Elder Care Program. At the same
time, our PROSHOMON Program is leveraging smart-cards
and a software system to provide a health voucher scheme
to populations in Feni and Chandpur. Steps towards
efficiency and integration of information over several
platforms has given way to higher productivity and better
communication amongst all.
Moreover, we have also ushered in a shift in the overall
spectrum of the workforce with the influx of young talent
through our newly launched Young Professional’s Program.
To nurture our human capital, special professional
networks and management committees have been set
up, and one such example is the Innovations Forum,
which encourages these youth for a refreshing outlook on
existing or new ideas.
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SAJIDA Foundation has also invested in creating new
organization policies, practices and specialized teams
last year – the new Compliance unit ensures Standard
Operating Procedures are maintained at all levels, and
two new Business Development Units are providing
multifaceted support through multiple projects aimed to
strengthen core processes and instil best practices across
the board. All-encompassing Safeguarding policies were
developed last year, and our proactive-stance on SexualHarassment-Elimination remains unwavering.
Besides regular operations of our health interventions,
last year saw growth in the form of numerous health
camps organized in different parts of the country the
Foundation operates in, providing free health services to
everyday people. Within this time, Team Broken Earth in
collaboration with SAJIDA Foundation provided a training
program for health care professionals to strengthen their
capacities on high-risk labour and delivery management.
Alongside, Team Broken Earth joined forces with SAJIDA
in raising funds for the aid of the 0.7 million Forcibly
Displaced Myanmar Nationals. SAJIDA Foundation
significantly prioritizes the health and wellbeing of all
its beneficiaries as well as the change makers working
towards these causes. Our focus on mental health is seen
through the established programs of PHWC, Inner Circle,
and Working with Women among others. This year, the
organization dedicated the whole month of October to
ensure not just the physical but also the mental health and
wellbeing of our staff across all programs, through small
activities during office hours.
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to be in cohesion with the essence of SAJIDA and reflect
the brand’s values of bringing innovation and quality in
everything we do.
From its inception, SAJIDA Foundation is committed to
ensure institutional transparency and accountability of
its internal activities. With that line of sight, we formally
started operations under the Microfinance Monitoring
Unit with the primary goal to oversee quality of
Microfinance field operation and compliance of policies.
With the aim of turning SAJIDA Foundation into a durable,
systematic, and exceptional organization, the Monitoring
team is currently covering, the monitoring team is covering
the 202 Microfinance branches around Bangladesh.
This year also saw the introduction of Child Day Care
services under the Amrao Manush Program that has
relentlessly worked over the years to provide integrated,
life-changing services to the marginalized and vulnerable
pavement dwellers. With the introduction of the day care
services, we took another step towards ensuring health,
happiness, and dignity keeping in tune with SAJIDA’s vision
and the Founder’s dream.
The year has undoubtedly been one of many changes
as well as challenges, all leading to a future filled with
new opportunities for growth. I look forward to another
rewarding year together with the SAJIDA family; old, new,
and young; achieving the impossible with determination,
hard work, and unity.

Our commitment towards appreciation of our dedicated
staff who work tirelessly across the country to fulfil the
organization’s mission was reflected in the hosting of
different conventions, last year. Hundreds of participants
enjoyed cultural shows, partook in strategic discussions
and presentations, won in raffle draws and other fun
activities aimed at team building and guiding the team
members in their exciting journey forward.
SAJIDA Foundation believes, organizational success and
survival depend on its ability to adapt and transform. With
that aim, we formed a full-fledged Microfinance Business
Development Unit (MF-BDU) in the beginning of 2019
for our Microfinance Program to ensure efficient and
innovative execution of organizational strategies.
2018 was also a year of transformation as one-fourth of
SAJIDA’s Microfinance branches underwent renovations

SN Kairy

Chairperson
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Executive
Director’s Report
As we step into a new era, we look back on changes and
innovations that paved the path to another exciting year
for SAJIDA. The key to a successful completion of the year
has been continuous innovation backed by technology,
standardization of processes, as well as added focus on the
wellbeing of beneficiaries and SAJIDA change makers. As
the SAJIDA family underwent various cultural and process
shifts that pushed its members to reach higher, the
programs took on various reforms to perform better.
As part of our program enhancements, we also introduced
newer and more efficient projects like Smart Cards under
PROSHOMON to ensure sustainable health and nutritional
development for its beneficiaries, along with Digital
Financing Services (DFS), Water ATM Cards and Rainwater
Harvesting Systems in garment factories under WASH
to promote access to cleaner, safer water to the underdeveloped areas of the urban city. In this regards, SAJIDA
also saw the expansion of their programs like Microfinance
and WASH, with the inauguration of their branches in
numerous parts of the country, to ease accessibility to
the program services for its beneficiaries. We have also
organized countless health camps in different areas of our
operation to ensure better health for our beneficiaries
as part of our mission, while also establishing Primary
Healthcare Centre and numerous satellite clinics through
various partnerships, at the Forcibly Displaced Myanmar
National Camp in Cox’s Bazar under the Disaster and
Humanitarian Response Program as SAJIDA’s commitment
towards the disaster-stricken. Simultaneously, SAJIDA’s
ongoing program, Malaria Elimination, is also close to
declaring the 2 districts we have been operational in,
completely Malaria free owning to SAJIDA’s continuous
efforts in eradicating, as well as managing the disease.
SAJIDA Foundation held its first Innovation Forum meeting
this year with the young members of the organization,
creating a platform for greater innovation and positive
change. Simultaneously, this year also saw numerous
conventions, trainings, and workshops to facilitate
communication between teams, as well as improve
knowledge and productivity. We also upgraded some of
our programs through the introduction of a new Business
Development Unit for Microfinance; while Elder Care
and Inner Circle started off the year big at their new and
improved offices. Our partnership with DSCC has also
created valuable opportunities for SAJIDA and opened new
doors in our work for the marginalized.

Through our continuous efforts to improve and bring
about a positive change not only in the society that we
operate in but also in our personal lives, SAJIDA has only
proved its enduring commitment towards upholding its
vision to ensure health, happiness, and dignity for all. The
year in review has been a reflection of our promise to
make an impact in the lives of our beneficiaries, as well
as what is to come next. We could not be more proud of
our change makers, as well as our constant supporters
who have been standing tall and strong beside us since
the beginning. With this thought and promise to make
the next year even more impactful, we commence on our
journey towards the future and I welcome you to join us in
our mission to change the lives of the communities where
we work through sustainable and effective interventions.

Zahida Fizza Kabir

Executive Director
SAJIDA Foundation

Highlights
2018 - 2019
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Psychological Health and Wellness Clinic Ltd
(PHWC) hosted three-hour workshop on July
28, 2018 on understanding and coping with
anxiety facilitated by life coach Samah Kabir.

SAJIDA Foundation organized a 10-day training
from July 29, 2018 till August 9, 2018 on
Early Childhood Development conducted by
ICDDR,B for the teachers of ILUEP - Amrao
Manush Program to enhance knowledge and
skills needed to care for a child.

Synergy meeting of SAJIDA’s support units held on July 3, 2018 had 80
participants from different departments to discuss achievements, way
forward, focus on key issues and emerging needs.

Inner Circle Ltd launched School Readiness
Program in August 2018 to integrate children
with additional needs into mainstream schools
through orientations on classroom routines
and strengthening existing academic skills.

Unlocking Financing Opportunities for SDG
6 Program was organized by Bangladesh
WaterCredit Forum on August 1, 2018 at Hotel
Amari Dhaka with the goal to identify market
opportunities and to share knowledge on how
to ensure funding opportunities for SDG 6.

World Senior Citizen’s Day 2018 was
celebrated on August 21 by sending gifts
and flowers to those receiving home care
services under SAJIDA’s Elder Care Program
to recognize the contribution of elders in the
community.

In August 2018, a 36 member “Delinquency Management Team” was
formed to address delinquent borrowers of SAJIDA’s Microfinance
Program, who received training on their roles and responsibilities at
CCDB, Hope Foundation.
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13 regional managers of SAJIDA’s Microfinance
Program received training between August
8 – 9, 2018 to enhance their training and
facilitation skills so that they can better
conduct quality training at field level.

SAJIDA Foundation adopted Microsoft’s Office
365 solution, to make the workplace more
efficient, as IT team on-boarded all members
and held specialized training sessions for
SAJIDA’s employees.

SAJIDA participated at the first National
Conference on “Sexual and Reproductive
Health And Rights (SRHR) at Workplace”
organized by SNV and Department of
Population Sciences on September 19, 2018 to
help improve access to SRHR at workplace.

Canadian Team Broken Earth visited Bangladesh to conduct world-class
training for Health Professionals in a three-day long training program
from September 11 – 13, 2018 to strengthen their capacities on high-risk
labour and delivery management.

SAJIDA’s Field Officers Convention held at Narshingdi Dream Holiday Park
for 270 Field Officers of SAJIDA’s Microfinance Program, while another
was organized for 170 Field Officers at Ratnadweep Resort in Pabna in
October.
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SAJIDA Foundation’s Inner Circle Ltd organized
a month long training on ABA-VB Therapy for
9 trainee therapists from July 1 – 26, 2018 and
was conducted by supervisors from Autism
Recovery Network, Singapore.

“SMART CARDS” inaugurated in Chandpur and
Feni on September 11 and 19, 2018 under the
PROSHOMON Program with an aim to give
primary health and nutrition services through
the smart health card and other development
activities, including training.
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SAJIDA signs MOU with garments factories on November 13, 2018 to
build rainwater harvesting systems in Narayanganj collaboratively with
WaterAid to create alternative options of utilizing surface water.

SAJIDA participated at the 4th National
Development Fair 2018 on October 4, 2018,
inaugurated by the Honourable Prime Minister
at the Bangabandhu International Conference
Centre.

SAJIDA Foundation observes World Mental
Health Day in October through month long
awareness activities on mental health while
Yoganika conducted a session on important
tips on coping with workplace stresses.

Working With Women: Phase II observes
World Mental Health Day in RMG factories on
October 10 and 11, 2018.

SAJIDA participated at the “Conference 2018:
Bangladesh And Agenda 2030 – Aspirations Of
The Youth” organized by the Citizen’s Platform
for SDGs on October 14, 2018.

SAJIDA participated in a seminar titled “End
Gender-Based Violence in the World of Work”
organized by SNV Netherlands Development
Organization on November 26, 2018.

Children from SAJIDA’s ILUEP-Amrao Manush Program participated at
a program organized by Ministry of Women and Children Affairs for
Children’s Rights Day on October 9, 2018.
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SAJIDA Foundation awarded 2nd position, for Best Presented Annual
Reports for 2017 by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh
on November 25, 2018 by Finance Minister AMA Muhith. For over
thirteen years, SAJIDA Foundation has been recognized consistently by
the ICAB for its transparency and financial reporting.
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SAJIDA Foundation observed 16 Days of
Activism against Gender Based Violence
through educational activities, writing pledges
to act out against gender-based violence on
placards, and posting on social media to raise
awareness on December 10, 2018.

Meeting to strategize malaria elimination
policies with different NGOS held from
November 19 – 20, 2018 for Malaria
Elimination Program with 16 partner NGO
directors to understand how to eliminate
malaria.

SAJIDA inaugurated Primary Healthcare Centre at Forcibly Displaced Myanmar National camp in
Cox’s Bazar on January 30, 2019. Officials from BRAC, Friendship NGO, Community Development
Centre (CODEC), Action against Hunger, Médecins Sans Frontières (MSF) International were present
at the ceremony, and the Camp-in-charge (CIC), Mr. Zahid Akhter was chief guest. This health care
centre initially started serving 100 people a day, starting from doctor’s consultation to disbursing
medicine, it is completely free of charge for the FDMNs and consists of two doctor’s chambers and
a WASH facility.

SAJIDA participated at “Promoting Digital
Financial Services in Agriculture: The Next
Step” organized jointly by United Nations
Capital Development Fund (UNCDF) and
LightCastle Partners on December 18, 2018.

SAJIDA Hospital, Keraniganj received award
for contributing to family planning services
on January 15, 2019 by the Upazila Family
Planning Office under Directorate General of
Family Planning.

Client-feedback based training for caregivers
conducted by Mr Alex Berland that included
sessions on movement, positioning and
falls, skills training and, communication and
etiquette.
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WASH facilities in the Telugu community
inaugurated on February 18, 2019 by Director
General of Swedish International Development
Cooperation Agency (SIDA) Ms Cartin Jämtin.

Ms Arbella Ross, theatre workshop instructor
at Hydrama Theatre and Arts Centre, flew from
Greece to teach the Amrao Manush children
drama and communications lessons through
theatre.

International Women’s Day observed on March 11, 2019 by SAMRIDDHI
Program through a colourful rally led by Ms Sabina Yeasmin, Upazila
Women Affairs Officer and freedom fighters with 175 others participated.

Inner Circle Ltd organized event “Embrace
Differences” on April 27, 2019 to raise
awareness about the best practices available
in the field of Autism and create an enabling
environment for children with special needs.

Sports & Cultural Program including a
friendship football match was held at Nagor
Mamud High School field on February 27,
2019 where Upazila Women Affairs Officer Ms
Sabina Yeasmin and local UP Chairman were
present.

Dr Atamjit Singh Gill, Chief of Department
of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, Memorial
University of Newfoundland visits Amrao
Manush Program for extreme urban poor, on
April 6, 2019.

Agreement for Life Insurance with Pragati Life Insurance Ltd. for all fulltime staff, signed on May 20, 2019 at a formal ceremony at the SAJIDA
Head Office.
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Recognition awards for elderly members of
SAMRIDDHI Program given on June 26, 2019
to six “Probins” based on their contribution to
society.

SAJIDA added Phacoemulsification in Keraniganj and Laparoscopic
Hysterectomy in Narayanganj Hospitals as 2 million patients avail
outpatient services and 60 thousand successful surgeries are carried out.

A full-fledged Business Development Unit was set up in 2019 for
Microfinance to support the operation team to improve portfolio and
performance of the program and discover partnership opportunities for
growth and innovation.

SAJIDA Hospitals’ Emergency Department grew
immensely in confidence as well as capacity
that led to fewer referrals and higher patient
satisfaction as all emergency staff and medical
officers received classroom and hands on
training.
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SAJIDA’s Microfinance Program formed a new
loan division in March 2019 named SONALI,
as well as a Credit Risk Management team to
mitigate overall credit risk and ensure smooth
operation of this division.

ILUEP-Amrao Manush Program with DWASA arranged Water ATM Card
for their beneficiaries of Khilgaon area under its Mouchak PDC and 58
households received this card to access safe drinking water.

18
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Going Forward Strategy
What SAJIDA Foundation Aims to Change
and How it will be Done
---

In the next five years, SAJIDA Foundation will serve at least 1.5 million people including those who are the most vulnerable.
It will try to empower as many of its beneficiaries as it can by giving them greater access to and control over their
livelihood, health, safety, resources, decisions and actions.

SAJIDA Foundation will realize this change through:






Increased partnerships with the national and local governments, as well as international partners
Wider coverage of financial services
Innovative development programs harnessing more technology for service delivery to broader areas
Sustainable and scalable socially responsible businesses
Renewed focus on research and technology

Strategic Goals

2020 - 2025

---

Leveraging its strengths and experiences, SAJIDA Foundation has laid out two sets of Strategic Goals for the next five years.
The Programmatic Goals, whose objectives are aligned with the Sustainable Development Goals, aim to better address
prevailing socioeconomic issues. The Organizational Goals aim to improve the organization itself.

Programmatic Goals
---

Goal 1

Goal 2

Goal 3

Health care for All

Expansion of
Special Needs Services

Access to Financial
Services

Expand home care services for the elderly, disable,
chronically ill and specials needs services for
neurodivergent children.

Increase access to
financial services for
those who remain
unbanked and
underserved.

Goal 4

Goal 5

Goal 6

Goal 7

Poverty
Eradication

Water, Sanitation and
Hygiene for All

Advancing Gender
Equality

Disaster Management

Eradicate poverty in all
its forms.

Increase access to
Water, Sanitation and
Hygiene facilities for all
income groups of the
society.

Reduce harmful
practices against
women and gender
inequality.

Bring health care to all
income groups of the
society and ensure both
physical and mental
wellbeing.

Reduce impact of and
improve resilience to
both man-made and
natural disasters.
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Organizational Goals
---

SAJIDA Foundation will invest heavily in its:

People

Services

Branding

Process

Technology

Some pioneering undertakings of SAJIDA Foundation are:
SAJIDA Foundation Challenge Fund

SAJIDA Foundation is introducing the Challenge Fund to
nurture social innovation by seed funding sustainable
concepts in a market where lack of capital acts as a barrier
to the execution of innovative ideas. Finalists can attain
essential funding and support for their solutions to social
problems aligned with SAJIDA Foundation’s values and
goals. Beneficiaries of a solution may belong to any and
all income groups of the society as long as the program
model is sustainable. All employees of the organization as
well as external individuals are eligible to apply.

Invest in Young Talent

With over 55 percent of employees at the head office
below 30 years of age, SAJIDA Foundation will continue
to acquire, develop and retain young talent. The recent
intake of the second batch of Young Professionals (YPs) is
testament to that.

Gender Diversity and Women Leadership

SAJIDA Foundation will increase the proportion of women
in the workplace. To take it a step further, it will introduce
women in its ranks of senior leadership and executive
management.

Go International

With more than 26 years of experience in Bangladesh,
the organization has amassed the strength to expand its
presence to other emerging economies across the globe.

Green Organization

SAJIDA Foundation will develop a culture of
environmentally friendly practices, to reduce adverse
impacts on the environment and stand out as an
exemplary organization in promoting green practices.

20
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FINANCIAL SERVICES
Microfinance
Financing Futures

Microfinance Program offers a diverse range of collateral free loans and
convenient savings plans, customized to ultimately give impoverished
people an opportunity to become self-sufficient, from 202 branches
across 20 districts.
Currently, we offer our services through three divisions: Suchona,
Biborton and Sonali. These operational divisions are equipped with a
dedicated team to cater the unique needs of different client segment.

“

We are committed to
digitally transform our
operations and services to
deepen financial inclusion
in Bangladesh

”

Operational Divisions and Core Loan Products
Suchona

Biborton

Sonali



Core client segment



Augmented client segment



Potential client segment



Group-based microfinance
model



Micro and Small Enterprise
(MSE) lending model



Enterprise lending model for
the ‘missing middle’

Exclusively for women



Helps entrepreneurs to capture
opportunities





Helps investment on productive
capital



Collateral free, micro loans for
financially excluded women



Financial services for micro and
small entrepreneurs



Financial services for small and
medium entrepreneurs



Helps woman-led IGAs to grow





Easy loan terms with minimum
documentation



Credit facility up to BDT 0.5
million

Collateral-free loans with flexible
service charge
Credit facility up to BDT 1 million





Credit facility up to BDT 10
million

Core Loan Products

Core Loan Products

Core Loan Products

Jagoron: Starts from BDT 20,000 and
to be repaid in 12 months

Agrosor: Starts from BDT 1,50,000
and to be repaid within 24 months
(up to)

Uttoran: Customized finance for
trade and manufacturing

Pragrosor: Starts from BDT 75,000
and to be repaid in 12 months

Prapti Loan: Prapti is a special loan
offered exclusively to our loyal
clients through a uniquely designed
Customer Loyalty Program. The
loan is offered, without any service
charge, as a token of appreciation
to our good and repeat clients.
Currently, this facility is only available
for our Suchona and Biborton
segments.

Shwapno: Customized finance for
house building and extension
N.B. Sonali Loan starts from BDT
10,00,000+ and to be repaid within 36
months (up to)

At a Glance
As of June 2019

---

Total
Branches

202

Districts
Covered

20

Total
Members

340,278

Total
Borrowers

285,091

Total Member
Savings

Million
3,656 BDT

Total Loan
Outstanding

Million
14,980 BDT

Development Financing
---

Agriculture Loan

Water Credit Loan (Apon)

To help ensure food security, the loan is offered with grants
and training, focusing on the development of farming and
livestock rearing.

To help improve access to safe drinking water and
sanitation facilities, the loan supports the clients to bring
positive changes in their homes and communities, by
enabling a life of health and happiness.

Migration Welfare Loan

Ultra-Poor Loan (Buniad)

To assist in reducing unemployment by encouraging unskilled
people to go abroad legitimately as worker, the loan comes
up with visa verification and other supports that may be
needed in order to ensure the validity and authenticity of an
employment opportunity.

To help the ultra-poor segments in getting direct access
to convenient and semi-formal financial services, through
offering loans ranging from BDT 5,000 to BDT 60,000,
with an annual service charge of 15% reducing for one
year tenure.

Total Loan Outstanding (BDT Million)

Total Savings Balance (BDT Million)
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Remittance Loan
Bangladeshi workforce working abroad often miss out on
the opportunity to invest their remittances on productive
capital assets due to unavailability of proper financial
services that match their needs. Our Remittance Loan
financially supports the families of those temporary
migrated workers to build capital assets while comfortably
repaying with remittance received.

Members
Borrowers

Total Number of Members and Borowers

Savings Program
---

Microfinance Program has a mandatory and two voluntary saving plans to promote
better savings behaviour to its members.

Mandatory Savings

SAMRIDDHI

Astha

It is mandatory for our Microfinance
members to save a minimum of BDT
300 per month, which varies based
on loan category and collection type and enjoy a return of 6% interest per
annum.

An optional monthly savings plan,
SAMRIDDHI is also available for our
Microfinance members who want
to save voluntarily. Members can
save a minimum of BDT 200 to a
maximum of BDT 10,000 per month
with an interest return of up to 9%
per annum.

It is an optional, fixed term deposit
plan for the members who wish to
invest a bulk amount with a fixed time
commitment for a specific future
goal. Willing members can deposit a
minimum of BDT 5,000 at an interest
rate up to 11% annually, depending on
the agreed time commitment.

Way Forward: Innovation and Technology
SAJIDA Microfinance Program is gradually digitalizing its entire business process, making the operation more accessible,
client friendly, smooth and fast to expand the client base and provide excellent client service.

Initiatives of the Year
---

Customer Loyalty
Program

KPI based Incentives and
Performance Bonus

In December 2018, we launched
a uniquely designed Customer
Loyalty Program to start rewarding
our valued and long-term
members for being a part of SAJIDA
Foundation.

SAJIDA Foundation provides additional incentive to its Microfinance team,
i.e a reward for any outstanding performance. A dynamic, KPI based monthly
incentive program has been designed for the Microfinance field operations
team, while the top management and support units are being incentivized with
yearly performance bonuses.

Client Service Point
In July 2018, we inaugurated 10
Client Service Points, a customized
full-service, extended branch model
(outpost of a regular branch) to
make our enterprise development
services more accessible and
convenient to the clients.

Standard Operating Procedure (SOP)
Operating procedure provides ways to communicate and apply consistent
standards and practices within the organization, which are fundamental in
fostering the culture of compliance within financial service providers, like the
SAJIDA Microfinance Program. As complementary of existing standard policies,
Microfinance Program has finalized the SOPs of its vital business processes,
namely, Member Admission Process, Loan Approval Process and Savings
Withdrawal Process. These SOPs will eventually help the program to reduce staff
training costs, ensure consistent results and empower the field force.

Microfinance Business Development Unit (MF-BDU)
SAJIDA Foundation believes that organizational success and survival depends on its ability to adapt and transform. With
that aim, we formed a full-fledged Microfinance Business Development Unit (MF-BDU) at the beginning of 2019. This unit
will ensure efficient execution of organizational strategy and strategic projects, support the operation team to improve
portfolio and performance, and constantly discover partnership opportunities for growth and innovation.
The team members of MF-BDU have been recruited from SAJIDA’s signature Young Professional (YP) Program that
specifically focuses on building future leaders through intensive trainings, field attachment and mentoring.
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Microfinance Monitoring Unit
(MF-MU)

Microfinance Loan Review Unit
(MF-LRU)

From the inception, SAJIDA Foundation is
committed to ensure institutional transparency and
accountability of its internal activities. With that line
of sight, the Microfinance Monitoring Unit formally
started its operation in 2018. The primary goal of
this unit is to increase the quality of microfinance
field operation by preventing financial irregularities
and misappropriation through proper and regular
monitoring. Frequency of monitoring is based on
the risk category of the branch – High, Medium
and Low. The MF-MU has a separate reporting line,
independent from the operation team. MF-MU is
reportable to the Special Monitoring Committee and
the Executive Director of the organization.

Microfinance Loan Review Unit started its journey in 2018.
This unit is an independent team of experienced micro loan
assessors, deployed as an additional layer of underwriter in
high risk branches. The Loan Review Officers (LROs) have a
separate reporting line, independent from the operation team.
Therefore, they can conduct unbiased, third degree assessment
of every loan proposal considering the ability, willingness and
authenticity of the client.

Closure of Nirapotta Program
Nirapotta Program was a community-based insurance
plan that SAJIDA Foundation had been implementing
since 2008. At its closing on 2018, a survey was
conducted in partnership with Unnayan Shamannay.
The survey reveals that the program has created
many significant positive impacts and withdrawing
of interventions may result in loss of these gains.
Almost all the respondents pleaded to continue the
program and even suggested for adding new services.
Nirapotta Program contributed significantly in terms
of enhancing financial literacy and creating demand
for insurance services.

LROs are deployed in low quality branches to restore credit
discipline and improve portfolio quality in the shortest possible
time. At present, this unit is working in 95 Suchona branches
with 70 LROs.

Nirapotta Program to Credit Shield
SAJIDA Foundation is one of the pioneers of implementing
a comprehensive health insurance plus safety net scheme,
known as the Nirapotta Program. Our field experiences of
implementing such multidimensional program helped us to
design a compact, affordable and economically viable credit
shield scheme for the microfinance clients. In the mid of 2018,
SAJIDA launched its own credit shield program to support the
broader financial inclusion agenda.

Key Features of Credit Shield Program


Death coverage for member and spouse



Full loan outstanding waiver and funeral support
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Highlights
---

Team Building through Investing in People
SAJIDA Foundation focuses rigorously on team building to continuously
increase productivity and efficiency in order for the teams to better
harmonize itself with the organization's innovations. With frequent
trainings, conventions, and monetary incentives, SAJIDA Foundation
motivates its teams to thrive to be stronger.
Throughout the year of 2018-19, many helpful trainings were conducted,
such as Leadership Trainings at 8 levels took place where total 781 field
staffs completed the training.

Field Officers’ Convention at Narshingdi Dream
Holiday Park and Pabna Ratnadeep Resort
On October 6, 2018, SAJIDA Foundation organized a day long convention
for 270 Field Officers of Microfinance Program at Dream Holiday Park in
Narshingdi and another in Pabna Ratnadeep Resort for 170 field officers.
The events were packed with interactive discussions and fun rides at the
park with special guest, celebrity actor Anisur Rahman Milon.

Investment in
Capacity Building

During 2018, 791 staffs were trained and
oriented on different topics. 110 were
trained on Organizational Orientation and
2,316 Field Officers and Credit Officers
were trained on different Microfinance
operational issues, including Delinquency
Management. Previously, 256 Branch
Managers, 239 Accounts Officers,
Finance Supervisors, 88 Area Managers
and 17 Regional Managers received
intensive Management and Leadership
training and 124 Accounts Officers and
Cashiers were trained on Accounts
Management and Loan Management
Software. In addition, 60 staffs were
trained on MS Excel and another 43 on
Project Management.

SAJIDA Foundation in shaping its own digital transformation

Successful Completion of OPTIX
The final phase of OPTIX commencing from January 1, 2019 until June 30, 2019 was successfully completed to support the
development of a strategy to enable SAJIDA to change Financial Advisory Services (FAS) mobile application to enable staff
to advise members about loan and savings amount, mainstream mobile money as a service channel, and implement two
new pathways making microcredit. SAJIDA Foundation has been able to develop the capacity of the staff in implementing
IT based financial services for poor clients. We will continue to offer both cash based and cashless services in the
foreseeable future.

Microfinance Trip to
Cambodia
High level representatives from SAJIDA
Foundation visited Cambodia on a
business trip from 24 to 30 September,
2018 to evaluate the applicability of a new
Loan Management Software in our day-today operation.

Senior Management Attended
Asia Pacific Microfinance
Forum
Senior Management of Microfinance
Program visited the Asia Pacific
Microfinance Forum in Singapore
on 30 and 31 October, 2018. The
forum addressed topics such as risk
management, agricultural finance and
technology. Representatives of different
Microfinance institutions participated in
group discussions on attracting capital
and the investors shared the factors they
consider when taking on new investments.

Microfinance Team Visits India for CIB
Representatives of Microfinance Program visited Mumbai and Pune
from 22nd April to 27th April, 2019 to attend a training with an objective
to understand the procedure of Bulk Data Management with the data
captured from the clients and transactions history. This training will
help SAJIDA Foundation to be a successful participator of the country's
Microfinance Credit Information Bureau (MF-CIB) initiative.

Inclusive Digital Future:
A Summit on Responsible Finance in Action
Representatives from SAJIDA Foundation attended a global summit,
Inclusive Digital Future: A Summit on Responsible Finance in Action, held in
Nairobi, Kenya from 24th to 27th June, 2019. The event was organized by
the Social Performance Task Force (SPTF) and the Smart Campaign.

Renovation of Branch Offices
Our Microfinance branches are the faces of SAJIDA Foundation. It is
important to keep the premises updated and have them reflect on the
brand as much as possible. In 2018, one fourth of the Microfinance branch
offices have experienced renovation to be in cohesion with the essence of
the SAJIDA brand itself.

Opening 21 New Branches

Renovations concentrated on cleanliness, ventilation, ensuring separate
toilet facilities for men and women, ensuring safe and smooth pathways
to the branches, separate dining area for employees, among other
advancements.

In this year, Microfinance Program has
expanded its services to 21 new branches
in Madaripur and Pabna district to reach
out and serve financially underprivileged.

To ensure the proper implementation of branch renovations, a grading
system has been developed with fixed KPIs that is rigorously supervised by
the Administration and Monitoring Unit.
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Microfinance Starts Piloting Sonali Division
Sonali division an extension of traditional micro and small enterprise
financing, operates following NBFI’s SME financing model. Through this
division we want to serve millions of ‘missing middle', small and medium
enterprises (SMEs) that have very limited access to financial services
because they are either too small to access traditional banking services
or too big to benefit from microloans.
These segment has unique needs for financial services at affordable
and easy terms. To serve these missing middles better and uphold our
financial inclusion agenda, we have started piloting Sonali division in
March, 2019. Currently, Sonali model is being tested with 250+ clients,
having around BDT 290 million loan outstanding.

Organizing the Maath Dibosh
or Agri. Field Day
For the 8th consecutive time, the Agriculture
Unit of Microfinance Program has organized
its periodic event, ‘Maath Dibosh’ in
collaboration with local government offices.
Upazila Agricultural Officers and Upazila
Executive Officers went to visit our clients’
field and facilitated field day to create
awareness on the advancements and the
good practices of agricultural method.
Hundreds of farmers participated this year’s
event with enthusiasm.
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Success Story
Spool Dreams and Big Shoes
Toma Tailors, Kanchon – this 20 year-old business has seen
its share of tragedy and glory. Founded by a talented and
popular tailor-master, Raja Miah, fit his dreams in a 100
square-foot space and named it after his daughter; Toma.
The dream weaved towards success on its 8th year, while
the business boomed, the world lost Raja Miah to fate.
The tragedy, like any other, affected the family greatly.
Quick decisions had to be made, the dream needed a new
master. Md. Bulbul Miah, the brother of the then deceased
Raja Miah, suggested that his son take his uncle’s place at
the tailor shop. He had grown up watching his uncle work
the art and slowly picked up on some of his craftsmanship.
It was indeed big shoes to fill.
The journey started off rocky as it would when you
give someone shoes to fill when least expected. Bulbul
Miah worked at a jute mill and had to travel a lot to
work this job. It was all up to Rubel Miah. The burden of
expectations that lay with the words “Toma Tailors” were
all on his shoulders and it was too much to take for such a
young man.

That is when Bulbul Miah, put his foot down and decided
that his beloved brother’s dream was bigger than any
dream that his 9-5 had in store. Mukta, wife of Bulbul
and mother of Rubel Miah, decided to take all the
responsibilities and monetary decisions of the business
while the son worked on his art and the husband worked
the operations. They took their first BDT 25,000 loan from
SAJIDA’s Kanchon branch and glory lead the way.
10 years since their biggest loss, Toma Tailors extended
from its 100 square-foot to a larger shop with an array of
local and imported collection of unstitched dresses and
a small factory that now has 4 craftsmen working under
the training of Master Rubel Miah. During Eid season,
Toma Tailors has to decline orders after the first week
of Ramadan because of the overwhelming response of
their hundreds of loyal customers. And, with the booming
business getting bigger, her father’s dream taking its shape
more vividly every day, Toma got married to her prince
in Gopalgonj with finances earned from the business.
“With the help of SAJIDA Foundation’s loans, not only did
we make this business bigger, we created a livelihood for
ourselves that we once could only dream of!” said Mukta.
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DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS
Amrao Manush
We Are People Too

Founded with an aim to give the
marginalized a fair chance at life,
Amrao Manush provides essential
services such as day-care and nonformal education for children as
well as grants for income generating
activities, along with health services,
night shelter, cooking, bathing and
other facilities for the extremely
deprived and vulnerable urban poor
through seven Pavement Dweller
Centres (PDC) located in Dhaka and
Chattogram.
SAJIDA has been at the forefront of
urban poverty alleviation, working
closely with extremely poor urban

communities. Since 2008, SAJIDA
Foundation is operating a project
entitled ‘Amrao Manush’, with
funding from multiple donors like
Concern Worldwide, Irish Aid, Team
Broken Earth, and a private donor
organization. Currently, the project
is providing service to the pavement,
squatters and underdeveloped slum
dwellers through seven Pavement
Dweller Centres in Dhaka and
Chattogram under “Improving
the Lives of Urban Extreme Poor”
(ILUEP). As of June 2019, the program
has catered to needs of 22,529 urban
extreme poor, of which 11,788 are
female and 10,741 are male.

“

We want to
make sure that the
most marginalized,
disadvantaged and
vulnerable urban
poor, including men,
women and children,
have a fair chance to
live a life of health,
happiness and
dignity

”

Pavement
Dweller Centre
Services

--

Washing and Bathing



Cooking



Locker and Savings



Health Services



Day Care for children of
working mothers



Non Formal Education



Night Shelter



Grants and Training for
Income Generation

At a Glance
As of June 2019

---

Districts
Covered

Number of
PDCs

2

Essential Life
Services Received

7

Number of Children
who Received Day
Care Services

18,905

Total Savings
Deposited by
Members

2.2 BDT
Million

1,683

Number of Income
Generating
Participants

5,761
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Amrao Manush Services
---

Day Care Services
Day-care centres have been set up to enable poor working mothers to leave
their children (in two age groups- 2-4 yrs. & 4-6 yrs.) in a secure space whilst
they work and contribute to their households. The day-care services provide
Early Childhood Development, non-formal education, nutritious food, and
attention and care they need for physical and mental development.

Early Childhood Development Support
The Early Childhood Development Program aims to ensure the holistic
development of children, focusing on mitigating abuse and exploitation as well
as developing freedom of articulation by supporting children through activities
like group formation, education alongside extracurricular activities like singing,
drawing, etc. Parents, especially fathers are also oriented on nutrition, diet and
food preparation, participatory cooking lessons and positive parenting.

Supporting Access to Social Services and Rights
Advocacy towards institutionalizing and capacitating youth by building a platform engaging with the City Corporation and
State can ensure the voice of the urban poor. The program raises awareness to create access of basic rights and social
services for the urban poor. Strong partnerships have been built with different stakeholders including government and nongovernment institutions and community leaders in each ward. Birth certificates and other services for children and adults
are done through linkages with Dhaka City Corporation (North and South).

Adolescents’ Scholarship Support and Computer Literacy Training
This provides holistic, educational support for children of different age groups, ensuring that bright minds are able to
pursue their studies but also technologically knowledgeable through computer literacy training that help the children learn
the basics. Students are also given a stipend to continue their education.
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Promotion of Income and Financial Assets
To empower the extreme poor to break out of the cycle of poverty, block grants,
training, and support are provided to enable them to set up microenterprises.
Through vocational and skills training with government, NGO and private
sector training institutes, access to savings schemes, skills development, and
job placement services for income generation building are also handed out to
ensure beneficiaries meet the standards required set by employers.

Health Care Services
Since they cannot afford proper
treatment, and as they are prone
to illnesses due to lack of access to
safe drinking water, and unhygienic
living conditions; to address this gap,
a health corner has been established
where a paramedic performs
consultations, basic treatments,
and referrals to health centres and
hospitals. Awareness on health issues
through group meetings is given.

Access to Water and
Sanitation Facilities
The urban extreme poor face high
risk of health vulnerabilities due to
lack of proper water and sanitation
facilities and exposure to extreme
unhygienic environments and open
defecation. Water, sanitation and
hygiene facilities are provided and
training is provided for improved
hygiene and increased knowledge of
diseases such as HIV/AIDS.
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Highlights
---

Celebrating Mothers in
the Margins
Mothers Day commemoration was
on May 13, 2019, with 595 children
from day care services making cards,
gifts and poems. An awareness
campaign “Mothers on the Margins,”
was aired on Radio and printed in
the newspapers where eight mothers
were interviewed to shed light on their
unheard stories of struggle, courage
and resilience.

Amrao Manush Program
Arranged Water ATM Card
for Their Beneficiaries
In November, the Amrao Manush
Program arranged ATM cards for safe
water for fifty eight households in
Khilgaon under its Mouchak PDC to help
alleviate the polluted water crisis and
provide access to safe drinking water.

SAJIDA Organized Health
Camp at Kawran Bazar
Two night health camps staffed by DMCH
and ICDDR,B health professionals were
organized for beneficiaries of Kawran
Bazar PDC of Amrao Manush Program
on 18 and 19 December 2018 where 77
patients received free treatment and
medicines for those unable to go for
health check-ups during the day.

Arbella Ross Flew 4,000 Miles to
Teach Amrao Manush Kids
Arbella Ross, theatre workshop instructor
from Hydrama Theatre and Arts Centre, flew
four thousand miles from Greece to work
with Amrao Manush children. For a month,
she taught them drama and communications
lessons so that education would be fun. She
quickly bonded with the children and said,
“Sometimes we didn’t have any translators,
but could communicate through music, body
language, art , and dancing. There are no
borders.“
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Success Story
Khorsheda’s Second Chance at Life
Khorsheda, a 22 year old woman
from Narayanganj District, had the
same fate like any other young girl
from rural Bangladesh. Born to an
impoverished family, married at an
early age, and a victim of domestic
violence, she finally left her husband.
In 2014, when she and her mother
failed to earn a bare minimum for
survival at their village, they came
to Dhaka and started to live on the
pavements of Kamlapur Rail Station.
They worked in a small hotel where

payment was poor and often,
she was not paid. Misbehaviour
and exploitation was an everyday
scenario. One day, Khorsheda met
project officers of SAJIDA Foundation
Manik Nagar PDC. They explained
to her how the Amrao Manush
project helps people living on the
pavements. Interested, she registered
and took the services. One of the
activities under the project included
placing eligible and interested
individuals in formal jobs. The Amrao

Manush project staff found a job for
Khorsheda in a garment factory in
Dhaka as a helper in 2018. After six
months of hard work, her employers
promoted her to an operator position
earning BDT 8,000. Her life changed
tremendously, she rents a room
in Mugda slum and saves money
every month. “Life is no longer an
aimless journey. Now I can plan for a
future, live an honourable life and I
am happy about that, I got a second
chance at life”, said Khorsheda.
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WASH

Water, Sanitation & Hygiene
Safe water, sanitation and hygiene are at the heart of sustainable
development and critical to the survival of people and the planet.
In Bangladesh, marked progress has been achieved in ensuring
access to safe drinking water, improved sanitation and eliminating
open defecation practices. However, a large section of underserved
communities remain deprived of adequate WASH facilities. The issue
is most pronounced in urban areas where WASH related diseases
abound among low-income and extreme poor communities due to
lack of safe drinking water, adequate sanitation and proper hygiene
practices. Recognizing WASH as an essential component of sustainable
development, SAJIDA Foundation has been working to deliver
integrated water, sanitation and hygiene services through several
innovative projects in partnership with donors and the Government of
Bangladesh.

“

Since its inception in
2012 with IMPACT project
WASH programs of the
organization have been
growing day by day with
versatility in interventions
leaving no stone unturned
for sensitizing people with
better WASH practices

WASH Services
---

”

WASH4UrbanPoor
In April 2018, SAJIDA launched the “WASH4UrbanPoor”
project in collaboration with WaterAid with the aim
to address the challenges and WASH requirements
for underserved communities in the Dhaka South City
Corporation (DSCC). This project seeks to ensure improved
environmental health and resilience of WASH for deprived
urban poor living in slums and low-income settlements.
Funded by the Swedish International Development
Cooperation Agency (SIDA), the project is scheduled to run
till December 2022 and is interlinked with the SDG Goal 6 –
Aims to achieve universal, sustainable and equitable access
to safe drinking water, sanitation and hygiene by 2030.
Major activities of the project are:


Increase awareness raising and provision of climate
resilient WASH services to address needs among target
communities;



Improve local governance in pro-poor WASH service
delivery and coordination with other services in target
cities and towns;



Evidence based advocacy to improve WASH policies and
strategies in favour of urban poor.

Sector

Population
Coverage
Target

Achievement
Up to June
2019

Water

35,000

5,736

Sanitation

34,000

4,507

School

10

2

Hygiene

50,000

6,712

Uses of Public
Sanitation

3,000,000

1,552,015

Slums

30

24

Table: Target Beneficiary Users and Coverage in
DSCC Project Location

Besides specific activities, SAJIDA Foundation is partnering
with Dhaka Water Supply and Sewerage Authority
(DWASA), City Corporation and other service providers
to ensure safe water for these underprivileged people by
warranting legal access to water facilities. Additionally,
ensuring easy access of pavement dwellers to these WASH
services is another key objective of the project.

40

SAJIDA Foundation Annual Report 2018-19

WASH for RMG Workers
Access to safe drinking water, proper
sanitation and hygiene (WASH) is a
basic human right and is fundamental
to transforming lives and ensuring
human dignity. Sustainable access
to WASH services helps people to
minimize their domestic hardship,
prevent diseases, focus on livelihood
opportunities and lead healthy lives.
Next to overseas remittance, the
readymade garment (RMG) industry
is one of the top sources of foreign
exchange earnings in Bangladesh.
There are currently more than 4,500
garment factories in the country
employing four million workers
of which 90% are rural women.
Improving their health and well-

being – of which safe water, proper
sanitation and knowledge and
exercise of correct hygiene practice is
an integral part – is a major challenge
of the sector. With the technical
support of WaterAid Bangladesh and
financial support from HSBC Global,
SAJIDA Foundation has commenced
WASH interventions in September
2018 in Rupganj and Araihazar
Upazila of Narayanganj district aiming
to address the WASH crisis among
10,000 selected group of low income
RMG workers at factory level and at
community where they live while
additionally reaching 22,000 people
with hygiene awareness indirectly.
Apart from WASH interventions,

Project Goals and Outcomes:
1

2

The overall goal of the project is to improve
the health and wellbeing of at least 10,000
RMG workers in the selected factory or
factories.
Improvement of WASH situation of RMG
workers at workplace as well as at living place
to ensure improved WASH practices aligning
with SDG Goal-6.

3

Increase of sustainable water resource in the
RMG factories following the installation of
Rainwater Harvesting Systems (RWHS).

4

Increasing awareness on hygiene with special
focus on menstrual hygiene influencing factory
authorities to ensure WASH compliance in
factories

inclusion of Rain Water Harvesting
System (RWHS) in RMG factory
premises is another major time
worthy initiative of the present
project. It is a unique initiative of
its kind to reduce the extraction of
ground water and create alternative
options of utilizing surface water. The
project could also make the authority
understand about the future
challenges of extracting ground
water for daily usage and allowed
the project initiative to install Rain
Water Harvesting System which is in
the process of implementation with
the active support of WaterAid and
HSBC.

Sector

Population
Coverage Target

Achievements

Water

10,000

679

Sanitation

10,000

679

Hygiene
(hygiene session,
awareness
campaign, event
etc.)

10,000

679

RWHS at
Factories

2

1

Table: Target Beneficiary Users and Coverage in
Narayanganj Project Location (As of June 2019)
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The Road Ahead
With the Bangladesh Garment
Manufacturers and Exporters
Association (BGMEA) as a supporting
member of this project, we aspire
to establish WASH practices as part
of compliance in garments factories.
Also, since most garments workers
are women, the addition of water,
hygiene, improved menstrual hygiene
practices and inclusive toilets can be
part of factory compliance processes
as well. Going forward, the project
aims to promote surface water usage
instead of groundwater in factories
and strengthen hygiene information
mechanisms. Additionally, solid waste
management, Occupational Safety
and Health (OSH) practices are areas
that this project aims to work with.

WaterCredit
Enabling underserved communities
to access safe drinking water and
improved sanitation facilities through
provision of special loans as part
of the “WaterCredit Program”
implemented with the support of
Water.org. Affordable financing being
one of the key barriers to safe water
and sanitation, SAJIDA provides
small loans for water facilities
and improved sanitation system
through an innovative “WaterCredit
Program” supported by Water.org.
This 3-year project that commenced
in September 2016, has introduced
separate loan products for installing

new as well as repairing existing
deep tube wells, and for building
or renovating improved sanitation
facilities. The loan amount varies
from BDT 5,000 to BDT 125,000
following different 7 loan products.
Borrowers are encouraged to invest
towards the cost of installing or
repairing facilities with their own
money. This project was initially
started through 43 Microfinance
branches to reach the 12,000
beneficiaries over 3 years. Till date,
the project has expanded to cover
members across all of SAJIDA’s 198
microfinances branches.

Activities

Achievements

Water Loans

6,879

Water Beneficiaries

30,955

Sanitation Loans

4,022

Sanitation Beneficiaries

18,099

Health & Hygiene Awareness
Population Coverage

82,390

Loan Disbursement Amount (BDT)

535,881,000

Table: Project Achievements (As of June 2019)

The Road Ahead
Going forward, the program seeks
to explore further opportunities of
financing of water and sanitation
through subsidized capital costs
for underserved communities
and raising awareness on hygienic
practices through use of new
technology.
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Highlights
---

Inauguration of Wash Facilities in the Telugu Community
On February 18, 2019, the Director General of Swedish International Development Cooperation Agency (SIDA)
Ms Cartin Jämtin, visited the WASH4UrbanPoor Project of SAJIDA Foundation and inaugurated the community
toilets at the Telugu Community.
Alongside Ms Jämtin, Ms Annika Otterstedt, Deputy Director, WaterAid, Ms Charlotta Schlyte, Swedish
Ambassador, Bangladesh and teams from SAJIDA Foundation and WaterAid from the WASH4UrbanPoor
project was present. Ms Jamtin expressed her boundless appreciation to WaterAid Bangladesh & SAJIDA
Foundation for creating such safe sanitation facilities for females. The WASH4UrbanPoor Project, focuses on
improving environmental health and resilience of WASH for deprived urban poor living in slums and low-income
settlements.

Unlocking Financing Opportunities for SDG 6 Program
On August 1, 2018, through Bangladesh WaterCredit Forum, Water.org organized a day-long program
“Unlocking Financing Opportunities for SDG 6” at Hotel Amari Dhaka. The goal of this forum is to identify market
opportunities and to share knowledge on how to unlock financing opportunities for SDG 6 “Ensure availability
and sustainable management of water and sanitation for all”. Md. Fazlul Hoque, Senior Director, SAJIDA
Foundation spoke on “Reaching the last-mile borrower through Digital Financial Services” by sharing empirical
knowledge on SAJIDA’s digital financing system and focusing on the WaterCredit Program. Sajid Amit, Country
Director, Bangladesh of Water.org presided over the session.
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Success Story
Dignity is Just as Important as Health
Nargis Begum is a 49 year old village woman. She is a
mother of one daughter and two sons. Her husband’s
name is Mr. Tofazzal and he is blind. By selling milk from
rearing cows, she helps her family financially but she faces
hardship as her youngest son is the only earner. Hence, she
needs to feed her entire family, including herself, which is
a burden. Her difficulties became even more pronounced
when she was facing different difficulties associated with
drinking water for her family and cattle.
She used to go to her neighbour’s house for collecting
water. There were three boys in that house and when she
went to fetch water; her daughter was sexually harassed.
She would cry at home and be too scared to go there. She
told her mother about the daily happenings. Nargis Begum
was worried about this and she shared this matter with her
son and husband. After discussion, they decided to install
a tube well at their house. But money was a problem. One
day a Government veterinary health assistant came to her
home on a visit. Nargis shared her difficulties about lack of

Beneficiaries of WaterCredit from SAJIDA

water availability and access. The health assistant informed
about a loan facility for water point installation with free
technical support from SAJIDA Foundation. She told her
to go the nearest SAJIDA Foundation centre and discuss
this matter. Nargis Begum became a member of SAJIDA
Foundation and applied for WaterCredit loan to install
a tube well in her house. She took Tk. 20,000 loan from
SAJIDA Foundation for a particular tenure and installed a
new tubewell. During the process of becoming member
and getting a loan she had to go through a number of
hygiene training session where she was sensitized with
personal hygiene, water safety plan and importance of
handwashing. Additionally, she got knowledge on operation
and maintenance of tube well through client training
session by dedicated SAJIDA’s WASH field workforce
SAJIDA Bondhu. Now they no longer need to go to their
neighbour’s home for collecting water. She can collect
and store water for her family and domestic cattle with
freedom from her own tubewell. Affordable financing has
helped restore her family’s health and dignity.
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Disaster and
Humanitarian Response
Reaching out to Disaster Stricken Lives

Due to Bangladesh's geographical location, and being
identified as a disaster-prone country, SAJIDA Foundation
put into place a Disaster Response agenda to carry out
timely interventions in the wake of major disasters,
humanitarian crises, national or local emergencies,
providing immediate relief and rehabilitation support to
victims including psychosocial support for trauma victims.

Categories
---

Natural Disasters

“

Our efforts focus on extending
emergency relief and support to
the best of our capacity in the
event of any natural or man-made
disaster

”

Our Disaster Response agenda strives to
provide a timely and effective response
like relief and rehabilitation support
provided to victims of cyclone SIDR in
2007 and floods in 1998 and 2004.
Simultaneously, SAJIDA Foundation in
partnership with Palli Karma-Sahayak
Foundation (PKSF) and World Bank, has
also undertaken an initiative to support
the people affected by frequent floods
and river erosion caused by fluxes in
the rivers Jamuna and Brahmaputra,
through access to safe drinking water and
improved sanitation.

Human-Made Disasters

Humanitarian Response

SAJIDA Foundation in collaboration with the Government
of Bangladesh and other partners works closely to mitigate
and respond to emergencies and manmade disasters
that often plague the country and its people. SAJIDA
Foundation provided support facilities and rehabilitation to
victims of Rana Plaza where a team of health professionals
such as doctors, nurses, paramedics and psychosocial
counsellors equipped with medical supplies, attended
to victims of the tragedy. Similar relief and rehabilitation
support was also provided for a fire outbreak at Mirpur
“Molla Slum” that destroyed a thousand shanties by
donating TK 5,000 to selected victims and worked closely
with the government to help rebuild homes.

The years 2017-2018, witnessed a humanitarian crisis
of staggering scale caused by violence in Myanmar’s
Rakhine state which forced over 800,000 Myanmar
Nationals to flee to Bangladesh. Of a million people
seeking refuge in Cox’s Bazar, the vast majority were
women (including pregnant and lactating women with
new born babies) and families with children in poor
health conditions. SAJIDA Foundation, with decades of
expertise in development work, particularly in the health
sector, responded immediately and was among the first
responders on the scene to provide emergency health
services, thus initiating the Forcibly Displaced Myanmar
National (FDMN) Project.

Forcibly Displaced Myanmar National Project
---

The million Forcibly Displaced Myanmar Nationals taking refuge in Cox’s Bazar were deprived of their basic human rights
and suffered both physical, and psychological challenges on their native length. Based on their health needs, SAJIDA
Foundation in partnership with Friendship Foundation and grant from Penny Appeal UK, implemented the project titled
"Comprehensive Health Response for Forcibly Displaced Myanmar Nationals” to provide reliable primary healthcare
services to the FDMN community in two phases.
In the first phase, total 8,041 FDMNs received health care services of which, 2,354 were pregnant and lactating women
and 1,360 received family planning awareness sessions. In the second phase, 12,671 primary healthcare consultations
were provided while 12,132 patients received free medicine. Through this project, SAJIDA provided health care services to
a total of 33,987 beneficiaries.

Emergency Humanitarian Response Strategy
Health Centre

Ambulance Support for Emergency Case Referral

With approval from the Civil Surgeon and the respective
Army In-charge in Balukhali, the Health Centre started
operations from 4th October 2017. Primary healthcare,
medication, counselling and nutrition awareness mostly to
children and women was provided as well as immediate
resuscitation support for emergency cases.

Ambulance support was provided for emergency patient
referrals. SAJIDA’s community health workers known
as “SAJIDA Bondhus” directly referred patients from
community to SAJIDA health centres, GoB or other NGO
facilities. The health centre referred emergency patients
to Ukhia Health Complex and other facilities like MSF and
Ad-Din.

Community Level Supports
SAJIDA Bondhus, with an ability to speak in a local dialect
and communicate effectively, visited shelters in targeted
locations, identifying pregnant women, lactating mothers,
sick children and referred them to SAJIDA’s health centre,
mobile camps and other facilities.

Psychosocial Support
SAJIDA’s Psychosocial Support Team assessed trauma
history at a community level, and provided need-based
mental health first aid and need-based psychosocial
counselling supports.

Total Target Population

40,387

ARI and RTI

16.72%

Total Patient Received Primary Health care

20,712

Peptic Ulcer Disease (PUD)

13.73%

Free Medicine Provided to Patients

17,819

Generalised Weakness

10.64%

Free Diagnostic Services Provided to Patients

152

Diarrhoea

8.43%

Others

64.21%

Category of Beneficiaries
Pregnant Women (ANC)

798

Children

4,853

Women of Reproductive Age

1,738

Lactating Mothers (PNC)

278

Elderly People

2,037

Referral Supports

Adolescent Girls

983

Mental Health Services

14

Number of Mothers with Labour Pain
Referred to Government or Other Health
Centres

202

Patients Referred For Advanced
Medical Care

593

SAJIDA has developed a strong network for referral with
Concern, WFP, UNICEF, etc. for nutritious food; pregnant
women with GoB, Red Crescent Hospital, BRAC, MSF, AdDin and other NGOs for lactating mothers and children
having malnutrition, delivery services for pregnant
mothers; suspected TB and Malaria cases with BRAC for
testing. Women and children were also linked with women
and child friendly space of Action Aid and BRAC.

Number of Households Visited by
Community Health Team

5,953

Child-Friendly Space for Children

Number of Referred Cases from
Community to SAJIDA Primary
Health care Centre

824

Number of Under-2 Children Referred
for EPI Vaccination

2,210

Family Planning Services and Counselling

3,052

Table: Second Phase Rohingya Data
(July 2018- June 2019)

Table: Most prevalent Case Distribution of
Primary Health care services

SAJIDA also created a child-friendly space for children
equipped with toys, games, colouring books and other
positively engaging activities to help children cope with
trauma. SAJIDA’s health centre is also equipped with
a hospital bed and emergency resuscitation, oxygen
inhalation and nebulization support and welcomed
international doctors and social workers to provide
trainings, workshops and health support at the health
camp.

Highlights
---

SAJIDA Inaugurated
Primary Healthcare Centre
at Forcibly Displaced
Myanmar National Camp in
Cox’s Bazar
SAJIDA inaugurated Primary Healthcare
Centre at Forcibly Displaced Myanmar
National camp in Cox’s Bazar on
30 January 2019. Officials from
BRAC, Friendship NGO, Community
Development Centre (CODEC), Action
against Hunger, Médecins Sans
Frontières (MSF) International were
present at the ceremony, and the
Camp-in-charge (CIC), Mr. Zahid Akhter
was chief guest. This healthcare centre
initially started serving 100 people a
day starting from doctor’s consultation
to disbursing medicine is completely
free of charge for the Forcibly
Displaced Myanmar National people,
and consists of two doctor’s chambers
and a WASH facility.
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Malaria Elimination
Protecting Communities from Malaria

In April 2008, in partnership with the Bangladesh Ministry of Health and Family
Welfare, SAJIDA Foundation joined a consortium of 20 NGOs led by BRAC
implementing the Bangladesh National Malaria Elimination Program (NMEP).
Since 2006, the NMEP is being funded by the Global Fund to fight AIDS,
Tuberculosis and Malaria (GFATM) to address the high risk of Malaria facing
16.5 million people in the country where the disease is endemic. The highest
transmission prevalence (more than 1 case per 1,000 population) was identified
in the Chattogram Hill Tract districts (Bandarban, Khagrachari, Rangamati)
in Southeastern Bangladesh, Cox’s Bazar and Chattogram districts. Sporadic
incidence with low transmission rate (0 to 1 cases per 1,000 population) occurs
in other 8 districts (including Sunamgonj, Netrokona, Mymensingh and Sylhet)
bordered by hilly epidemic states of India.
SAJIDA has been implementing NMEP in 945 villages in 26 Unions of
Dharmapasha, Durgapur, and Kalmakanda, sub-districts of Sunamgonj and
Netrokona with the goal to ensure that Bangladesh is on track to eliminate
malaria by 2030 – contributing towards country development and the
Sustainable Development Goals.

“

SAJIDA's
program
significantly
contributed in
achieving the
acceleration of the
progress of NMEP’s
new goal in line
with the Target
0.01 of SDG 3

”

Approach and Coverage
SAJIDA uses a community participatory approach for Malaria Elimination to inform and educate people at community
level, promote use of Long Lasting Insecticide Treated Nets (LLITN), distribute LLITN, and increase early diagnosis and
prompt treatment. The Foundation also enhances referral of symptomatic cases for diagnosis by RDT or Microscopy,
ensures treatment, and reduces stigma. Each Community Health Workers (CHW) manages 2,000 households on
average and visits approximately 20-25 households per day. During their visits, CHWs raise awareness about Malaria,
educate families about the disease impact and emphasizes the necessity of using LLITN and prompt diagnosis and
treatment.

Diagnosis and Treatment of Malaria Cases
SAJIDA CHWs are trained to perform instant diagnostic test of Malaria at household level using the RDT kit provided.
Symptomatic patients with positive RDT test are treated immediately by recommended anti-malarial drugs. The
CHWs also prepare blood slides of the symptomatic patients whose RDT test results are negative and send the slides
to the SAJIDA laboratory for confirmation of diagnosis by microscopic examination. A laboratory technician and an
assistant were appointed to perform microscopic examination of blood slides at the laboratory. They work at the
laboratory twice a week and other four days at sub-centres in the community, where they prepare blood films of
the symptomatic patients and transport the slides to the laboratory for microscopy. The CHW’s also search for active
cases in 60 households surrounding the area if 1 positive case is found.

Achievements
SAJIDA’s program significantly contributed in achieving the acceleration of the progress of NMEP’s new goal in the
line with the Target 0.01 of SDG 3. As of June 2019, SAJIDA Foundation performed a total of 43,491 diagnostic tests
by RDT and blood slides microscopy (27,226 from July 2018 to June 2019). During this reporting period, our remote
laboratory examined 4,252 blood slides (prepared either directly in the laboratory or sub-centres) and detected 36
positive cases of malaria by microscopy. The CHWs performed 16,265 RDTs and diagnosed one positive case in the
community.

At a Glance
As of June 2019

---

No. of Blood Slides
& RDTS Taken for
Malaria Diagnosis

43,491

No. of Malaria Cases
Diagnosed

36

No. of Falciparum
Cases Receiving Act

34

No. Of P. Vivax Cases
Receiving CQ+PQ

2

No. of LLITNS
Distributed

17,900

No. of Village Doctor
Orientations

6

No. of Orientations on
Malaria Prevention
and Control

10

Highlights
---

Meeting at BRAC to Strategize
Malaria Elimination Policies
with Different NGOs
During November 19-20, an annual planning
meeting was held by BRAC at BCDM for
Malaria Elimination Program with 16 partner
NGO directors and Program Managers.
The main purpose of the meeting was to
understand how to eliminate malaria in the
upcoming days. DGHS Malaria Elimination
Program’s MIS expert Mr. Anjan Saha
presented about a year wise projection on
this issue.
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Success Story
---

Attacked with viral fever, medical worker Latif visited SAJIDA’s Maheskhali Medical Laboratory. After hearing his history,
the lab technician took blood for pathological analysis. Here, Latif was diagnosed to have caught Felsium Plasmodium.
Immediately, Latif was admitted to hospital and was given ACT 24 and a single dose of Primaquine. He was given regular
medication hence he recovered. Latif spread the news that it was through SAJIDA Foundation’s malarial treatment that he
recovered so fast and advised others to do the same.
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Working with Women Phase II
Sensitization Makes Sense for the RMG Sector

With an aim to ensure mental health and wellbeing, and address issues
of gender-based violence faced by women RMG workers, we have been
working to create awareness, encourage dialogue, and promote mental
health and wellbeing alongside physical health of women in this sector.
SAJIDA Foundation with support of SNV Netherlands Development
Organization initiated “Working with Women: Phase II” in January 2018 to
train factory workers, mid-level management, welfare officers, as well as
male garment workers on gender-based violence and its legal implications.

Orientation to Factory Workers on
Gender Based Violence and Mental
Health Wellbeing
Maintaining a female to male ratio of 3:2 per session,
2,248 garments workers were well oriented on Gender
Based Violence, Sexual and Reproductive Health and Rights
and laws relevant to it. In addition, symptoms of mental
illness, remedy of mental illness and referral system were
discussed to equip them coping with stress in personal and
professional stature.

“

Through such
interventions, we aim
to uphold the wellbeing
and rights of women that
make up the vast majority
of the RMG industry

”

Establish Anti-Harassment Committee

The factories receiving trainings worked on creating
an anti-harassment committee to address GBV cases
and build a community support system. A total of 58
committee members was trained to facilitate workers
in difficulty. If the situations are not within the working
periphery of the committee members, the workers will be
referred to SAJIDA Foundation or any Professional centres
where they will further intervene. Until June 2019, 14
cases of complaints were successfully resolved.

At a Glance
As of June 2019

---

Worker Orientation on
Gender Based Violence
& Mental Health
Para-Counsellor
Training
Mid-Level
Management Training
World Mental Health
Day Observation
Training of Mental
Health First Aid
Para-Counselling by
Welfare-Officer
Anti-Harassment
Committee Formation
& Training

2,432
Persons

15

Persons

52

Persons

100

Persons

41

Persons

86

Sessions

58

Committee
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Train Factory Mid-level
Management

Training of Mental Health First Aid to
Workers and Welfare Officers

Sensitization of the factory mid-level management is the key to
successful completion and sustainability of the awareness or
interventions. Consequently, 52-factory mid-level management
are trained on gender-based violence and mental health
wellbeing.

To facilitate early detection and also understand the
need of seeking psychological help 41 workers are
trained on Mental Health First Aid on when to seek
help and what to do as early measures and help
prevent deterioration.

Provide Training of Trainers (TOT)
to Welfare Officers

Supervision of Para-Counselling
by Welfare Officers

To work as para counsellors and provide psychological
counselling support for factory employees, 15 welfare officers
were trained to identify cases through early detection and act
appropriately to combat such issues. Subsequently, capacitating
workers to resolve conflicts embrace positive communication
and lead a healthy and productive life. Till date, 11 psychological
group counselling sessions were made with 88 individuals case
solving and 3 cases of referral.

21 days of supervision programs were observed
focusing on discussion about Mental Health,
relaxation technique, techniques of self-care,
5 factors model of CBT, Cost-benefit analysis
technique, identifying emotions, thoughts,
behaviour, role playing, how to maintain register,
follow-up counselling session register and providing
feedback.

Highlights
---

Working with Women Phase 2 project observed
World Mental Health day on 10 and 11 October, 2018
at RMG factories, N.R. Group in Narayanganj and
Comfit Composite Knit Ltd in Mirzapur, Tangail with
over 100 participants to raise awareness on mental
health, gender based violence and legal issues.

SAJIDA participated at first National Conference
organized jointly by the Department of Population
Sciences of Dhaka University and SNV Netherlands
Development Organization on “Sexual and
Reproductive Health and Rights (SRHR) at Workplace”
on September 19, 2018 to leverage greater policy
support, collaboration and knowledge generation
to help improve access to sexual and reproductive
health and rights (SRHR) at the workplace.

SAJIDA Foundation observed 16 Days of
Activism against Gender Based Violence through
educational activities, writing pledges to act
out against gender-based violence on placards,
and posting on social media to raise awareness
on December 10, 2018. Barrister Sajeda Farisa
Kabir also took part in the activation through
inspiration and engaging speech on Gender-Based
Violence and how to work towards eliminating it.
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RMG Workers attending session on Mental Health and Wellbeing

Success Story
Para-Counselling
Najma is a 22-year old garments worker who is married
with two children. At present, she is suffering from family
issues that is having a negative impact on her work life.
Six months ago, she joined the garments factory without
informing that she was pregnant. After Eid vacation,
Najma was absent for a long time and her factory
management did not want her to continue her job. Now,
Najma is feeling shy, fearful and helpless. Floor in charge
referred Najma to the welfare officer. The welfare officer
greeting Najma offered her a safe place to talk it out. The
welfare officer also ensured Najma that all her information
would be confidential and exhibited empathy to establish
a healthy rapport. Using open questioning method, the
welfare officer explored the issues of Najma that she was

already expecting when she joined the factory. During Eid
holidays, Najma aborted her sixth month of pregnancy,
which resulted in absenteeism in her workplace. Due to
delay in resuming from holidays, the factory management
did not want to allow her continue the job. Through
questioning, welfare officer explored her deeper issues
and identified her core emotions triggering despair. The
welfare officer facilitated Najma to explore her positive
qualities to feel better about herself and life.
Non-judgmental attitude and empathy helped Najma
to feel connected and heal her pain. Most importantly,
Najma was able to continue her job.
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PROSHOMON

Promoting Sustainable Health and Nutrition Opportunities for
Marginalized Urban Extreme Poor Population
PROSHOMON ensures the health and nutrition status of the extreme
poor by increasing accessibility, coverage, comprehensiveness
and sustainability of existing primary health and nutrition services
in urban areas of Bangladesh. One third of the nationwide urban
population lives in slums and a significant proportion of the extreme
poor live in squatter settlements. Large disparities exist in most
of the health and nutrition indicators. In urban areas, Maternal
Newborn and Child Health (MNCH) services are usually offered in
static service delivery sites operated by the NGO Health Service
Delivery Project (NHSDP), the Urban Primary Health care Service
Delivery Project (UPHSDP), Marie Stopes Clinics; government
secondary and tertiary facilities or private providers. Extreme poor
people have little access to these services due to the high cost of
treatment and the inconvenient operating hours. In addition, the lack
of comprehensiveness of services and inadequate quality of care are
also major barriers for poor and extreme poor people for accessing
health services.

“

PROSHOMON, funded
by European Union and
technically supported by
Concern Worldwide; is
designed to increase the
access of comprehensive and
quality health and nutrition
services through panel of
private/NGO hospitals for
the extreme poor

”

At a Glance
As of June 2019

---

Households

15,000

Total
Beneficiaries

66,163

Reproductive
Aged Women
(15-49 years)

14,440

Pregnant and
Lactating Women

957

Children Under Five

4,076

Adolescent Boys
(10-19 Years)

4,543

Adolescent Girls

4,507

Elderly,
Over 60 Years

2,446

People
with Disability

571

* Implementing Sites: Feni and Chandpur
Municipalities
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Project Activities & Highlights
---

Project Launching
PROSHOMON was launched on September 11, 2018 and
September 19, 2018 at Chandpur and Feni municipality
respectively. Md. Mazedur Rahman Khan, Deputy
Commissioner, Chandpur was the Chief Guest and Mayor
of Chandpur municipality, Md. Nasir Uddin Ahamed,
chaired the program. Mr. Ashraful Alam Guitar, the Panel
Mayor for Feni was the Chief Guest and Dr Hasan Shahriyer
Kabir, Civil Surgeon chaired the program.

Project Orientations
Orientation of Municipality, NGO/Private Hospitals and
MoHFW officials about the Project Objectives and Voucher
Scheme was held in October 2018 in both project areas.

Design Workshop
The event took place in December 2018, with a view to
sharing the total design and how to implement the project
in the targeted municipalities.

Beneficiary Enrolment & SMART Health Card Distribution
At least one member from each household was enrolled with a total enrolment to be 66,163 followed by orientation
on Beneficiary Enrolment for SMART Health Card System and its utilization process was held in batches on April & June,
2019. The SMART Health Card distribution was conducted through an orientation focusing on the voucher scheme, and
utilization process, availability of health services. A total of 13,980 (Chandpur-7,167 & Feni-6,813) SMART Health Cards
has been distributed to selected households. The total enrolment process as well as distribution of SMART Health Card
was conducted by Voucher Scheme Field Worker (VSFW) with overall supportive supervision and monitoring from local
municipal authorities.

MoU Signing with Municipality
MoU Signing Ceremony was held among municipality, SAJIDA Foundation and Concern Worldwide at both municipalities
on January 2019.
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Orient Targeted Households to Improve Health and Nutrition Seeking Behaviour
Child and Maternal mortality & morbidity continues to be a major problem. According to the 2011 Bangladesh
Demographic and Health Survey (BDHS), 41 % of children under five were identified to be stunted. So, one of the major
activities of PROSHOMON was to orient targeted households to improve health and nutrition seeking behaviour and
preventive practices with special emphasis on extremely marginalized and excluded groups. Prior to inception of the
session, a ToT program was conducted for Voucher scheme field worker (VSFWs) on orientation of targeted households
to improve health and nutrition seeking behaviour and preventive practices during 20 November, 2018 at PROSHOMON
branch office, Feni. A total of twelve participants (VSWVs) of Feni and Chandpur district attended the program. The
objectives of the ToT were to provide necessary information to improve health and nutrition to the selected households
beneficiaries, to aware them about the preventive measures to keep them and their family members healthy, to share
experiences related to maternal child morbidity & mortality.

Municipality

Target of
Batches

Number of
Batches

Participants

Target Achieved

Chandpur

120

138

4,228

115%

Feni

60

62

2,091

103%

Total

180

200

6,319

Table: Status of BCC orientation in the year (2018-19)

Functionalize Ward Health Committee (WHC)
As per the Municipality Act 2009, each municipality should have functioning WHC’s to address the health issues, and as such,
the purpose of activation of the Ward Health Committee is to address the role of municipality and fulfil the needs of primary
health care, maternal and child health care and improve nutritional status of extreme poor, especially the urban poor.

Program Efforts and Major Successes
Chandpur Municipality allocated BDT 55 lacs in their 20192020 FY budget to extend PROSHOMON service coverage
from 8,000 to 9,500 households. The funding and operations
will be managed from the Municipality with learning and
facilitation support from PROSHOMON naming this initiative
as Municipality Health Coverage Project (MHCP). The printed
budget book was handed over to the PROSHOMON team on
June 27, 2019 at Chandpur Municipality. Mayor Mr. Nasir Uddin
Ahmed presided over the meeting which has added a new
dimension for PROSHOMON.

Way Forward
Support municipalities to develop funding strategy and mobilise
funds from their own budget and from Corporate Social
Responsibility funds of private sector/individual donation

Total Ward

18

Ward Health Committee Formed &
Meeting was Conducted

18

Table: Feni: Ward Health Committee Formation
& Meeting

Total Ward

15

Ward Health Committee Formed &
Meeting was Conducted

15

Table: Chandpur: Ward Health Committee
Formation & Meeting

Highlights
---

SMART Health Card Distribution Ceremony
PROSHOMON started distributing its SMART Health Card to
20 enlisted beneficiaries through a ceremony on May 16,
2019 in Roshuighor Restaurant, Chandpur and on May 28,
to 20 beneficiaries. Around 114 participants including 20
enlisted beneficiaries attended in the ceremony and senior
government officials attended the event.

Service Type

Name of Facility

Municipality

Honey Siddik Memorial
Hospital

Chandpur

Midland Hospital

Chandpur

249

0

0

249

Medinova Hospital

Feni

170

0

0

170

ZU Model Hospital

Feni

112

0

0

112

Life Care Diagnostic Centre

Feni

2

0

0

2

PHC

Maternity

Accident

309

13

1

Total

Grand
Total

323
572

Total
Table: Service Delivery, since start in June 16 until June 30, 2019

284

856
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Success Story
Maiden Use of PROSHOMON Smart Health Card
Dulal, a cobbler lives Saidnagar, Ward No. 7, in Feni Municipality, with his wife, Parul (35 years). They have a daughter
and a son. Dulal struggles to make ends meet. Through an orientation organized by PROSHOMON project, they received
a PROSHOMON Smart Health Card. On June 16, 2019, Parul felt a sharp pain in her chest and contacted Field Worker of
PROSHOMON. Maksuda brought her to the Z U Model Hospital, and on their way to the health facility, Maksuda called the
Managing Director of the facility to ensure quick admittance and fast service. Mr. Golam, the Managing Director quickly
reached the reception desk and welcomed Parul. After receiving health care in a digital format without having to pay any
cash, she returned home happy and content.
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SAMRIDDHI

Integrated Programs for Sustainable Development
through Community Action
Community action is an essential element towards achieving sustainable
development, and this can begin from being equipped with the right kind of
resources. Since 2013, SAJIDA has been implementing an integrated program
in partnership with Palli Karma Sahayak Foundation (PKSF) to develop an
entire community in Battajore Union under Bakshigonj sub-district of Jamalpur
District. The program has a unique and inclusive approach focusing on health,
education and youth development activities along with income generation, to
sustainably strengthen the capacity of the community as a whole by involving
local government and relevant stakeholders.

Components
---

Health

SAMRIDDHI ensures comprehensive primary health care
services for all households in intervention areas. 17 Health
Visitors and 2 SAMRIDDHI Health Officer Assistants provide
door-to-door health care services at least once every
month and eight satellite clinics are arranged every month
where an MBBS doctor provides diagnostic support free
of cost to beneficiaries. During July 2018 to June 2019,
384 Static Clinics operated under the program to ensure
coverage for all clients.

Education

The program addresses the issue of dropouts in addition
to providing tutoring support to students. The tutors are
primarily female, who are college going students and
able to use the honorarium as an investment in their own
education. The program supported 40 schools in 2019
under which, 233 girls 179 boys graduated from tutoring
services.

Medicinal Plant Cultivation
SAMRIDDHI has taken the initiative of promoting the
cultivation of medicinal plants, primarily Bashok, in
the homesteads or roadsides of SAMRIDDHI client
households. This contributes to the expansion of income
generating opportunities as well as ensuring raw materials
for pharmaceutical industries. 35 people are currently
cultivating medicinal plans and have sold plants worth BDT
85,645 during July 2018 to June 2019.

“

The program
will help raise
local community
members out of
poverty

”

At a Glance
As of June 2019

---

ANC & PNC

11,217

Operations for
Cataract Patients

357

Patients Receiving
Health Services

45,755

Latrines
Constructed

53

Education
Centre

40

HH based Latrines
Constructed

500

Tube Wells
Installed

45

Vocational
Trainings Provided

17

Beggars
Rehabilitated

11

SAMRIDDHI
House Developed
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Community Based
Development

Community members receive the
services of repairing or building
culverts, bridges, sanitary latrines
and semi deep tube-wells in public
places such as schools, colleges,
madrasas, mosques, temples and
libraries. During July 2018 to June
2019, 15 semi deep tube-well have
been constructed in this union with
consultation with the Union Parishad
and relevant stakeholders.

Sanitation

Sanitation activities have been
initiated to ensure 100 percent safe
sanitation throughout SAMRIDDHI
Unions. During July 2018 to June
2019, 100 sanitary latrines have been
constructed in 100 households.

Name of the
Activities

Total Loan
Disbursed
Amount

Number of
Total
Total
Beneficiaries Outstanding Members
Savings

Asset Creation
Loan (ACL)

8,222

227

Income
Generating
Activities Loan

6,593

154

Livelihood
Improvement
Loan (LIL)

120

8

Total

14,935

389

(BDT in
Thousand)

70,95,765

17,52,119

Table: SAMRIDDHI Income Generating Activity (As of June 2019)

Probin Jonogosthir Jibonman Unnyan
We have started Probin Jonogosthir Jibonman Unnyan activity under SAMRIDDHI program from December 2018. Monthly
probin allowance of BDT 600 is distributed per month among 75 vulnerable & destitute probin persons, along with wheel
chair, commode chair, walking stick, umbrella, blanket and body cloth sheets.

Highlights
---

Award Giving Ceremony for
Probin Jonogosthi

Re-Installation of Bamboo Bridge

An award giving ceremony had been organized by Probin
Jonogosthir Jibonman Unnyan under SAMRIDDHI Program
chaired by Battajore union parishad chairman Mr. Md.
Mozammel Haque Talukdar where 6 probin personalities
and 3 children had been given a certificate, honoraria crest
and a one-time financial grant for doing something for
society.

Ward probin committee secretary and local probin
members guided by SAJIDA Foundation Program Officer,
Probin Program, led an innovative work for re-installing a
bamboo bridge at Akandapara over Nuhai bill Battajore,
Bakshigonj, Jamalpur on 30 May, 2019. The re-installed
bamboo bridge was praised by the probin committee
members as an example of leadership building and
voluntary services of Probin Jonogosthir Jibonman Unnyan
activity of SAJIDA Foundation.

World Mother’s Day Observation

International Women’s Day

A discussion meeting was organized on 12th May by
SAMRIDDHI Program office for World Mother’s Day 2019
on the importance of the day. Honourable Upazila Woman
Affairs Officer delivered her speech as Chief Guest and two
successful mothers were awarded for their recognition as
the best and responsible mother. A rally also took place
where SAMRIDDHI Program staff, Jubo forum members
and probin program committee members were all present.

International Women’s Day was celebrated in full swing
on 11th March, 2019 where the SAMRIDDHI Program
organized a colourful rally and discussion meeting. Over
175 persons participated with Sabina Yeasmin, Upazila
Female Affairs Officer, Bakshigonj leading the rally
accompanied by famous freedom fighters, UP chairman,
Nagor Mamud High School students & teachers, Imam of
mosque and SAMRIDDHI Program staff.
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Health Camp
SAJIDA organized a health camp on
skin disease at SAMRIDDHI program
office campus in March as Dr Asadul
Islam and Dr Md. Rashedul Islam Arif
conducted the health camp. A total
of 4 health camps and 2 eye camps
were held during year.

Probin Jonogosthir
Jibonman Unnyan Program
Union Committee Meeting
& Satellite Clinic
SAJIDA Foundation organized 5 union
probin, 45 ward, and 107 village
committee meetings during the fiscal
year, as well as a special satellite
clinic for the elderly people and
treated 56 patients.

Sports & Cultural Program
Sports & Cultural Program including
a friendship football match was held
at Nagor Mamud High School field on
27th February, 2019 where Upazila
Female Affairs Officer Ms Sabina
Yeasmin and local UP Chairman were
present.
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Success Story
A Story of Fulfilling the Dream of Rezia Begum
Rezia Begum lives in Jhurpara village
of Battajore union of Bakshiganj
upazila of Jamalpur district. Her
husband is very old and is unable
to work. All of Rezia Begum’s three
children are married and live
separately. Hence, they are unable to
look after their parents. Even though
her only daughter moved away
with her husband, she occasionally
visits her parents and regularly
helps Rezia financially. It is worth
mentioning that, with the help of her
daughter, Rezia’s family is somehow
functioning. However, at their current
age and state, Rezia and her husband
are in a destitute situation. It was
very difficult for them to add even a
handful of food at times.
Luckily, Rezia Begum discovered
through SAJIDA's health inspector,
Rekha Mani, that SAJIDA Foundation
was compiling a list of men and
women at the age of sixty-six, to
assist the helpless, the poor, and
those who do not receive any
allowance or assistance from the
government. On knowing this, Rezia

Begum herself came in contact with
the Battajore Jinnah Bazar SAJIDA
Foundation Prosperity Program
Office. It was informed by the office
that work was underway to start lifelong development activities for the
elderly people in Battajore union and
according to the survey data, if they
find her fitting the company's criteria,
she might be provided with other
monthly benefits, including monthly
adult allowance.
At the end of the survey, she found
out that their family had been
identified as a helpless family in
destitute. She also learned that she
was selected to receive the elderly
allowance on behalf of the SAJIDA
Foundation. Realizing this, Rezia
Begum became extremely happy.
She spoke to her husband and
decided that if she gets a monthly
adult allowance, they would first buy
2-3 chickens and have the chickens
provide eggs. By nurturing chickens
they would abate the poverty of their
family.

According to the plan, Rezia Begum
bought 3 chickens using the elderly
allowance money and waited for the
chickens to lay eggs. One chicken
started laying eggs within the first 20
to 25 days after purchase, and about
a week later another chicken started
laying eggs. Both chickens were
set up to hatch. Within 21-22 days,
those 2 chickens hatched 18 chicks.
Currently, another chicken is sitting
on an egg and hopefully that third
chicken will hatch 15-16 chicks.
Rezia Begum looks after those
chickens all day and thinks how to
increase the number of chickens.
She now thinks of herself as a brave
woman and hopes that within the
next year she will be able to provide
extra income to her family and help
overcome the lack of income. She
expressed her gratitude to SAJIDA
Foundation and the Rural Workers’
Aid Foundation for creating such
courage and determination in
herself. Plus, she wishes that SAJIDA
Foundation can help more poor and
helpless elderly families like her.
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Adhunika Initiatives
Adhunika Women's Initiatives
---

Through a three-year project, ADHUNIKA Foundation
in association with SAJIDA Foundation has partnered
to empower and enable women to involve them in
development activities through programmatic approach,
thus contributing to Sustainable Development Goals by
providing accessibility to health, education, jobs, trainings
and enfranchisement in decision making. Women and
young girls will be trained for menstrual and personal

hygiene. Prevention of Violence Against Women and Girls
(VAWG) is advocated through Change Makers via skill
development training, apprenticeship and networking. This
will enable women to be financially independent, develop
a strong and supportive network and opportunities which
will have a significant impact in reducing poverty, gender
disparity and violence.

Activities
Reproductive Health Awareness Program for Female
includes awareness of breast and cervical cancers and
sessions for better health status with better life choices.
Promoting safe pregnancy by ensuring ANC, PNC, Delivery
Care by providing affordable health services and medical
consultations, in many cases free to pregnant mothers,
pre/during and post-delivery and ensuring safe health of
mother and baby.
Personal Hygiene Awareness including Menstrual Hygiene
Management by educating on personal and menstrual
hygiene management for women and for adolescent girls
through messages in the school curriculum.

Prevention of Violence against Women and Girls (VAWG)
through Trained Changemakers by initiating a campaign of
mass awareness and prevention, ensuring women’s access
to justice, protection and freedom from violence and
engaging the community.
Skill Development & Apprenticeships by training women
on how to start and run small businesses, teaching them
leadership skills and entrepreneurship which enables and
empowers them to become financially independent.
Scholarship Support to the Female Students through the
provision of 20 female stipends so that bright and poor
female children can continue their learning.
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Networking and Fundraising Events for women in
business to coach and inspire them by business
leaders for networking opportunities and encourage
female leadership. This helps many in getting jobs and
opportunities to share ideas.

Computer Education Support to students of Class V up
to Class IX on basic computer literacy which includes
identifying parts and functions of a Computer, input and
output devices, creating a file and a folder with MS Word
and Excel.

Tutorial Support for children in their home tasks, weekly
practice exams, improved handwriting courses all of which
help in improving their school results.

Nutrition Support through a nutritionist set weekly lunch
menu ensuring optimum growth and development.

Cultural Support is given for extracurricular activities such
as recitation, drawing, music, dancing, acting, debate and
craft making. There is also a general knowledge education
on Bangladesh’s Culture and History.

Awareness Sessions are arranged for children on drug
addiction, road safety, personal/menstrual hygiene, stress
management and behaviour which would help them
become more self aware.

Adhunika Junior Initiatives
---

Adhunika Jr. is a Team initiated by Sid S. Yousuf under the Adhunika Foundation in August 2015 and created to generate
funding for SAJIDA’s Amrao Manush Program, a project for the underprivileged and marginalized. The objective of the
project is to help children in academics, skills development and ensure proper nutrition, with the overall goal of enhancing
their quality of life so they are able to reach their true potential.

Activities
Tutorial Support for children is provided to complete
their home task given by the formal school with teaching
sessions to cover curricular contents of specific subject
with handwriting practice and weekly exams to improve
their results.

Computer Education Support consisting of basic computer
literacy (identifying different parts of a computer and their
function input and output devices, creating a file and a
folder and MS Word and Excel) for students of Class V to
Class IX.

Nutrition Support through a weekly lunch menu prepared
by a nutritionist to ensure a healthy lunch providing
optimum growth and development of the child.

Cultural Support for extracurricular activities like recitation,
drawing, music, dancing, acting, debating and craft making
to bring out their creative potential (card, doll, mask etc.)
using easily low cost material. Special attention is also
given to boost their general knowledge about Bangladesh
covering history, culture, demography and socio-cultural
events etc.

Awareness Session on different topics such as drug
addiction, personal hygiene, menstrual hygiene, road
safety, stress management and modification of behavior.
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Education
SAJIDA Foundation’s Education program for
underprivileged children started 30 years back with ten
children in 1987 as a humble educational initiative. As the
organization grew over the next few decades, education
remained a priority and today, SAJIDA’s Education program
offers non-formal education and provides scholarships
for meritorious students falling within the scope of the
SAJIDA’s Nirapotta (microinsurance) program. Additionally,
SAJIDA contributes to empowering aspiring young women
through computer and knowledge development training
through the “Adhunika Women’s Initiative.”

Activities
---

Non-Formal Education
SAJIDA reaches out to over 800 students age 5 to 10 years
in remote areas of Jamalpur, Sunamganj and Netrokona.
Students will be completing their Primary School
Certification Examinations by the end of next year.

Education Support Programs
At Primary Levels, SAJIDA Foundation with PKSF support
operates specialized schools as part of its Enhancing
Resources and Increasing Capacities of Poor Households
Towards Elimination of their Poverty (ENRICH) / SAMRIDDHI
programs. These 40 Education Support Centres, allow 1,193
students and provide after school lessons so that they
perform better in examinations.
Nirapotta Program at Secondary and Higher Levels
offers a social safety net mandate through a monthly
scholarship of BDT 500 to meritorious children of
cardholding members. The program has awarded 1,555
students with the scholarship where 451 of them pursuing

specialized subjects that include medicine, engineering
and polytechnic. There are regular status checks to ensure
the progress of students, who cumulatively received BDT 6
million worth of scholarships in 2016.
The Ultra Poor through Amrao Manush provides nonformal education for children aged 4-6 years who live on
the streets through 7 Pavement Dweller Centres (PDC) in
Dhaka and Chattogram. They also have lessons on hygiene,
positive behaviour and sports; students are also encouraged
to enter into vocational training schools. There are 357
children and adolescents enrolled under Nagar PathabasiAmrao Manush program, including those in the PDCs.
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SOCIAL ENTERPRISES
SAJIDA Hospitals
Ensuring Quality Care for All

SAJIDA started its health program to fill the gaps in
demand and supply and dissatisfaction around care
delivery system, and deliver quality health care at
reasonable costs to the community people. SAJIDA has
been operating two multidisciplinary secondary care
hospitals, in Keraniganj and Narayanganj with a total of
135 beds. These services are provided by expert medical

professionals, skilled nurses/paramedics, and technologists
using modern technology. Both hospitals run within
the principle of providing quality care at affordable cost
ensuring a client-friendly environment. Besides these
curative services, SAJIDA Hospital also provides family
planning and immunization (EPI) services in collaboration
with the government.

Hospital
Services
At a Glance

---

24 Hours Emergency
and Pharmacy

Medicine

Surgery

Obsterics and
Gynaecology

Paediatrics
and NICU

Eye Care

Orthopaedics

ENT

Dermatology

Dental Care

Physiotherapy

X-ray
and USG

Pathology

Blood Bank

EPI and
Family Planning

At a Glance
As of June 2019

---

No. of Hospitals

2

No. of Post-graduate
(Specialist) Doctors

51

No. of Graduate
Doctors

25

No. of Nurses/
Paramedics

87

Total Outdoor
Patients Treated

1.8 Million

Total Ante-natal Care
(ANC) Provided

64,293

Total Patients
Admitted

84,429

Total Cataract
Surgeries Performed

5,636

Total Normal
Deliveries Performed

4,804

Total Caesarean
Deliveries Performed

19,644

No. of Free Health
Camps Organized
(Narayanganj)

15

No. of Free Health
Camps Organized
(Keraniganj)

6

No. of Patients
Treated at Free Health
Camps (Narayanganj)

2,290

No. of Patients
Treated at Free Health
Camps (Keraniganj)

2,134
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Hospital Services
---

Diagnostic Facilities

Out-Patient Services

In-Patient Services

Qualified specialist doctors and
medical technologists provide
diagnostic services at SAJIDA
Hospitals, using modern diagnostic
facilities that include pathology, biochemistry, micro-biological services,
blood bank, ultrasonography,
digital X-Ray and other services. For
quality assurance, technologists are
supervised and monitored by Senior
Consultants, and cross-checking
of tests are performed on sample
basis in other standard diagnostic
laboratories routinely.

Outdoor consultation service is
provided by the specialists of
major disciplines like Medicine,
Surgery, Gynae/Obs, Child care,
Neonatal Intensive Care, ENT, Eye,
Orthopaedics, Physiotherapy, Skin,
Venereal Diseases, Dental Care along
with the general duty physicians.
Distribution of contraceptives with
counselling and immunization (EPI)
services have also been introduced
in the hospital outdoor services.
Outdoor services are provided 13
hours a day and 7 days a week.

Outdoor patients requiring
hospitalization are admitted for
indoor services for all available
specialist care and provided with
the option of general beds, airconditioned and non-air-conditioned
cabins. The Keraniganj hospital has
61 general beds, 10 air-conditioned
and 9 non air-conditioned cabins,
while Narayanganj hospital
constitutes 40 general beds and
5 air-conditioned and 5 non airconditioned cabins.

SAJIDA Hospitals provide the best patient care.
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Ensuring Quality Care
The quality of services of medical
officers, nurses, paramedics,
technologists, receptionists and
other management/support staff is
maintained and enhanced through
hands-on and formal training
sessions conducted by expert
consultants and trainers of SAJIDA
Hospitals, outsourced from home
and abroad. A process of continuous
discussion culture on various issues is
introduced engaging expert national
and international consultants to
mitigate the limitations and the
shortcomings that the service
providers face in carrying out
their duties with utmost care and
patience.

Hospital Price Package
In an effort to minimize any confusion
or obstacles faced by patients
regarding information on costs and
fees, SAJIDA hospitals display rate
charts and fees of hospital services
at patient-facing points as well as
at the reception area. SAJIDA has
also introduced “poor fund” for
individuals based on certain criteria,
who cannot afford health care.
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Income and Expenditure
Comparison in BDT
July 2018 – June 2019
The cost recovery was 74% for
Keraniganj Hospital and 66% for
the Narayanganj Hospital. The
operational cost recovery of the
Keraniganj hospital was 80% while
Narayanganj hospital recovered 68%
of the operational expenses exclusive
of depreciation and head office
overhead costs.

Income
Expenditure

Indicators

Keraniganj

Narayanganj

Total Outdoor Patients
Treated

47,697

27,078

Total Patients Admitted

3,911

2,384

Total Normal Deliveries
Performed

142

78

Total Caesarean Deliveries Performed

1,175

576

Total Cataract Surgeries Performed

178

-

Total Other Surgeries
Performed

521

499

No. of Service Contacts In Laboratory

37,357

29,084

No. of Service Contacts
in X-Ray

3,694

6,016

Number of Ultra Sonogram Performed 8,837

6,465

Table: Hospitals’ Highlights (July 2018 – June 2019)

Keraniganj

Narayanganj

Income and Expenditure
Comparison in BDT

The Road Ahead

Going forward, SAJIDA plans to focus
on strengthening initiatives to reach
more people with hospital based
health care services, particularly
those from low and mid-income
communities. Finally, SAJIDA
Hospitals look forward to expanding
activities to other areas outside
Dhaka and focus more on outreach,
marketing and branding to attract
and help more people avail SAJIDA's
services.

Highlights
---

Canadian Team Broken Earth visited Bangladesh to conduct
world-class training in collaboration with SAJIDA Foundation.
In a three-day long training program from 11-13 September
2018 for healthcare professionals, trainees learned to
strengthen their capacities on high-risk labour and delivery
management to provide better care for women in labour as
well as their foetuses, new-borns, and their families.

SAJIDA Hospital Keraniganj received award for the third time
for contributing to family planning services on 15th January
2019 by the Upazila Family Planning Office under Directorate
General of Family Planning.

In March 2019, SAJIDA Hospital
Keraniganj hosted an Eye Camp
at Chunkutia Girls’ High School
providing specialist doctor
consultations, general eye
examination and health cards
at a nominal cost of BDT 20
and surgery at 26% discount,
where a total of 629 patients
were given consultation and
15 people were identified as
requiring surgery.
SAJIDA Hospitals added
Phacoemulsification; a modern
surgical method to treat eye
cataract in Keraniganj and
Laparoscopic Hysterectomy in
Narayanganj Hospitals.

SAJIDA Hospitals’ Emergency
Department grew immensely in
confidence as well as capacity that
led to fewer referrals and higher
patient satisfaction as all emergency
staff and medical officers received
classroom and hands on training
by consultant trainer Dr A Z M
Ahsanullah; MBBS, D-card, Dip. in
Emergency Medicine.

Success Story
An Angel is Reborn
A little angel named Ayesha Moni, hailing from Jajira, Shariyotpur, who's father is
a farmer and lost everything in the river bank erosion, was delivered at home. On
her 24th day, she developed severe respiratory distress. She was taken to nearby
hospital but they referred her to Dhaka Medical College as there were no facilities
available to save her life. They had heard about SAJIDA Hospital and its NICU
services from one of their relatives. With heart full of hope they came to SAJIDA
Hospital, Keraniganj on 10th July 2019. She got admitted at the NICU and was
diagnosed as a case of congenital heart disease and pneumonia. On 17th July 2019
she got discharged from NICU with advice. She was given a discount as they were
unable to pay the costs and was about to leave without treatment. Ayesha is now
completely fine and healthy. She smiles at everyone with joy in her eyes.

“

I have
also found
my smiles
back with my
Ayesha Moni’s
smiles!

”

– Ayesha Moni’s mother
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Institute of Health Sciences
---

Developing the Capacity of
the Health Workforce in Bangladesh
Nurses and paramedics play a significant role to ensure
patient friendly and effective clinical care in the health
sector. Bangladesh suffers from an acute shortage of
quality and qualified diploma nurses and crisis of such
professionals is more pronounced in the private sector.
Responding to the lack of Health Human Resource (HHR)

in Bangladesh, SAJIDA Foundation established the Institute
of Health Sciences (IHS) to develop the capacity of the
health workforce in Bangladesh. With the aim to stimulate
a competent, compassionate and responsive health
workforce, the IHS started its journey in September 2011
in the premise of its Hospital in Keraniganj.

Evaluation and Follow-Up
of Trainings at IHS
SAJIDA recognizes that constraints
and obstacles in the post-training
environment can interfere with and
limit the transfer of knowledge.
Learning and behavioral changes
following training will be short-lived
without activities to support transfer
in the field. Therefore, SAJIDA
considers follow-up assessment
and evaluation as important aids
to promoting transfer of learning.
The Foundation undertook several
activities to ensure that the
participants receiving training have
really benefited from what they have
learnt and implemented learning
skills on-the-job.

The activities include:


Participants follow-up at their
workplace;



Taking periodic report from
trainees about what they are
doing;



Performance assessment;



Peer meetings;



Supervisory consultations for
gathering feedback from
participants’ direct supervisors
and other stakeholders;



Providing technical assistance
and backstopping after training
(if needed);



Providing refresher courses to
further strengthen the
capabilities of the trainees.

“We also create a favorable
environment for hands-on
training and continued capacity
development and a learning
culture across the organization”

At a Glance
As of June 2019

---

SAJIDA Bondhu
Training (Basic)
Dental Training
for SAJIDA
Bondhu

314

Breastfeeding Training
for Community
Paramedic

63

Community
Paramedic

26

IHS Paramedic
Training

64

88

PHC Training for
Paramedics of
Jamalpur

60
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Elder Care
Support for Your Loved Ones

SAJIDA Foundation provides quality in-home health care
for the elderly and chronically ill through trained and
compassionate caregivers, building on their extensive
experience in providing clinical and personal care through
SAJIDA Hospitals.

which also include associated services like physiotherapy,
occupational therapy, medical and transportation services.
Whether someone wants to create a safe environment
for their loved-one while they are at work, or someone
to assist a relative with their daily living activities, or even
nursing services for someone who requires professional
expertise such as tube feeding or airway management –
SAJIDA Elder Care offers versatile, flexible, and customized
services that one can trust.

SAJIDA established ‘Elder Care,’ to provide high-quality
and individualized health care services for the elderly and
chronically ill in the comfort of their home. SAJIDA’s Elder
Care program recruits and trains caregivers providing three
levels of services customized according to client’s needs

“

Level

Female

Male

Total

L1

39

24

63

L2

18

9

27

L3

9

-

9

Total

66

33

99

Table: Elder Care’s Caregivers (July 2018 – June 2019)

We provide
quality in-home
health care
for the elderly
and chronically
ill through
trained and
compassionate
caregivers,
building on
our extensive
experience in
providing clinical
and personal care
through SAJIDA
Hospitals

”

At a Glance
As of June 2019

---

Male
Patients

24

Female
Patients

43

Total
Patients

67
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Educational
Qualification

Description

Level 1

SSC/HSC
Graduates

Assistance with activities of daily living [ADL’s], range of motion
exercises, walking, movement and positioning, oral feeding, recording
and reporting vitals, and insulin administration.

Level 2

Diploma Nurses Experienced nurses or paramedic-level care for patients with Tube
or
feeding, IV medication, catheter care, wound care, suctioning and
Paramedics
nebulization, personal hygiene, etc.

Care Package

Caregiver Personal Care

Caregiver Personal Care plus
Clinical Care

Level 3

Caregiver Personal Care plus
Advance Clinical Care

Special Services

Experienced
Nurses

Skilled Nursing, post-ICU Level Care, infusion therapy, home medical
equipment usage, wound care, pain management, palliative care,
suctioning and nebulization, strong nursing intuition for emergency
management.

Medical supplies / items & Assistive devices, Physiotherapists, and Doctors can be
provided as per request.

Highlights
---

Alex Berland, a versatile senior
executive and consultant with
global experience in Canada who
worked extensively in teaching
hospitals and universities in Canada
and Bangladesh, helped the Elder
Care program develop a plan for
an improved and more effective
care program and works closely to
improve processes and training for
caregivers.

Client-feedback based training provided
for caregivers conducted by Mr Alex
Berland, Consultant and Advisor for
SAJIDA Foundation, which included
sessions on movement, positioning &
falls, skills training and communication
& etiquette.
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Success Story
Mr. Ahmed recently had a stroke, after which he had difficulty speaking, and needed
assistance with walking. He was admitted in the hospital internal care unit and had
to put a stop to his daily activities. After the stroke, his daughter contacted Elder
Care. Five months after taking services from Elder Care, he can now work and travel
without any assistance, and will begin his daily activities again. When asked how
his quality of life has improved as a result of Elder Care, SAJIDA Foundation, he
said that he was given three wonderful people as his carers and that his family is
indebted to Elder Care for giving them such wonderful, professional helping hands.
On being asked about his goals, Mr Ahmed said that he wants to recommend Elder
Care, SAJIDA Foundation to future clients and added that he needs “a few extra
pamphlets.”
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“

I think I have met
some fine people, who
took extra care of
me, while I was sick.
I learnt to sing again
for them, I learnt to
be more careful to
Elders. I learnt to be
a kinder person. I will
forever remember Elder
Care.

”

– Mr. Ahmed
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Inner Circle Ltd.
Child Specialist Services

SAJIDA Foundation, with the vision of
Health, Happiness & Dignity for All,
has collaborated with Autism Recovery
Network (ARN) and set up a centre
to provide world-class interventions
for children with special needs. Inner
Circle brings world class services
through different international
partnerships to provide three forms of
therapy, Applied Behaviour AnalysisVerbal Behaviour (ABA-VB), Speech
and Language Therapy (SLT) and
Occupational Therapy (OT). Their
Speech and Language Therapists and
Occupational Therapists are trained
by fully registered supervisors from
Singapore.

“

We believe that every child is
a unique individual with different
strengths and abilities, therefore we
tailor our education programs to each
individual child to provide significant
learning opportunities and benefits for
him/her. With the right opportunities,
the child will be able to maximize his/
her potential.

”

At a Glance

As of June 2019

---

Children
Served
Therapists
Employed

49

New Service Added:
Speech & Language
Therapy

1

18

New Flagship Centre
Inaugurated

1
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Inner Circle Ltd. Services
---

A. Individual ABA Program

What is ABA-VB Program

Applied Behaviour Analysis (ABA)
has been the most researched and
scientifically proven intervention
to-date for children with Autism
Spectrum Disorder (ASD) or
developmental delay. Each child’s
program is individualized and
conducted by trained behavioural
technicians from Autism Recovery
Network (ARN) Singapore, a leading
ABA provider in Asia. Children receive
early intensive behavioural treatment
and show functional gains in IQ,
language, academic performance,
and adaptive behaviour as well
as some improvement of social
behaviour.

ABA is a science of learning and behaviour, involving application of principles
of learning to improve socially important behaviour to a meaningful degree
and demonstrate that procedures are responsible for a change in behaviour.
Methods of ABA are applied by breaking down skills into simple steps and
teaching each step in succession. Verbal Behaviour is still Applied Behaviour
Analysis but its emphasis is the functional analysis of language rather than
behaviour in general.

What are the Benefits of ABA-VB?
The advanced form of ABA program provided at the centre targets specific
developmental areas such as socially significant behaviours that include reading,
academics, social skills, communication and adaptive living skills. Adaptive living
skills include gross and fine motor skills, eating and food preparation, using the
toilet, dressing, personal self-care, domestic skills, time and punctuality, money
and value, home and community orientation, and work skills. The goal is to
enable the child to function as independently and successfully as possible in a
variety of environments.

Embrace Differences

Services Under ABA Program:
1. Social Learning Class

2. Shadow Teaching

The social learning class is a group program designed
for children who need additional support in developing
social skills with the goal to aid children in becoming
socially skilled and to acquire the ability to respond to
their social environment in a manner that helps them
produce, maintain and enhance positive interpersonal
relationships.

They provide additional support to help fill in the gap by
building self-confidence to promote positive interaction in
the classroom by helping the student focus on the important
concept and to develop academic and social skills. The
shadow teacher also helps the student prepare and organize
class and guides the main teacher to handle challenging
behaviour the student might display.
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3. Social Thinking Program
Social Thinking addresses
social learning and social
interaction challenges that some
special needs children face
including, coaching students to
recognize verbal and nonverbal
communication cues (e.g., eye
movements, tone, and gestures),
and grasping non-literal meaning
of a statement. Children are
taught this strategy to develop the
ability to recognize the different
levels of their own and others; to
manage their behaviours for more
rewarding social outcomes and
to adapt to people and situations
around them.

4. School Readiness Program
The objective of the school readiness program is to integrate
children with additional needs into mainstream schools
by orientating them to classroom routines and facilities.
They will undergo the program that includes all elements
of a typical classroom, focusing on strengthening existing
academic skills of reading, writing, spoken language and
numeracy. Inner Circle is a strong advocate of inclusive
schools and is currently providing technical support to
mainstream schools to ensure inclusion.

Some skills taught in this program are:
1

Staying seated in a chair and/or at circle time

2

Following instructions and completing tasks

3

Paying attention and responding to teachers

4

Learning in a group setting

5

Lining up

6

Being aware of personal space and body
awareness

7

Self-care skills (e.g. using the restroom,
washing hands, feeding self)

8

Eating lunch around others

9

Playing cooperatively and interacting with
peers

10 Leaving the home to attend a new place with
new people

B. Speech and Language Therapy
Inner Circle's Speech and Language program is designed
specifically for children with speech and communication
disorders which can include physical exercise to strengthen
the muscles for speech or speech drills which helps
improve the sound production (clarity). Speech Therapy
at Inner Circle is led by Sum Hui Ting, a registered and
experienced Singaporean Speech Therapist.
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C. Occupational Therapy

Occupational Therapy program is designed to help
children be independent including sensory-processing
deficits, cognitive skills, fine motor skills, and visualperceptual skills. It helps develop play skills as well as
engagements in appropriate age- related activities, thus
enhancing their sense of accomplishment and improving
self-esteem. Occupational Therapy at Inner Circle is led
by Dr Guo Hua, registered and experienced Singaporean
Occupational Therapist.

Therapists are trained to assist a child in
the following:

Inner Circle Center, Inaugurated in April 2019

1

Fine Motor Skills

2

Visual Perceptual Skills
(Eye-Hand Coordination)

3

Sensory Processing Deficits

4

Social Emotional Regulation

5

Attention

6

Motor Planning and Organization

7

Activities of Daily Living

8

School Readiness Skills
(Cutting, Pre-Writing, Visual Attention)

Highlights
---

SAJIDA Foundation’s Inner Circle Ltd. organized
a month long training on ABA-VB therapy for 9
trainee therapists in July, 2018, conducted by
supervisors from Autism Recovery Network,
Singapore.

Inner Circle Ltd. organized event
“Embrace Differences” in April to
raise awareness about the best
practices available in the field of
autism and create an enabling
environment for children with
special needs by building
stronger support systems and a
caring environment.

Inner Circle Ltd. launched School
Readiness Program in August to
integrate children with additional
needs into mainstream schools
through orientations on classroom
routines and strengthening
existing academic skills.
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Psychological Health
and Wellness Clinic Ltd.

A One-Stop Place for Your Psychological Health and Wellness Needs
The Psychological Health and Wellness Clinic (PHWC) Ldt, established in 2018 in
partnership with SAJIDA Foundation, is a global standard mental health clinic and a
one-stop Centre for treatment of individuals experiencing psychological distress of
any nature.
Throughout Bangladesh, PHWC seeks to provide the highest levels of service, geared
towards effective care and ensuring availability of supportive mental health care
so that the best resources and knowledge can help the community understand the
values of effective mental health treatment and provide everyone the individual level
of attention they deserve. The team is supervised by Lead Psychiatrist and Managing
Director, Dr Ashique Selim, and Lead Counselor Nissim Jan Sajid.

“

We believe
wellness is a
state of optimal
wellbeing

”

At a Glance
As of June 2019

---

Clients Reached for
Psychological Support

1,050

Organizations
Received Corporate
Workshops/Trainings

10

NGOs received PsychoSocial Support (PSS)

4

Clients Under
Wellness Day Centre

4

Events Organized

2
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Services

Clinical Services

---

The clinic based in Banani
provides a range of services:

Wellness Day Centre



The wellness day centre provides a place for clients to come and take part in
activities such as arts and crafts, cooking/baking, music, outdoor excursions
amongst others.

Individual/Group/Couples
Counselling



Psychiatric Assessment

Organizational Well-Being Support



Bio-psycho Social Triage



EBT/CBT Based Therapy



Family Therapy



EMDR

Apart from clinical counselling, PHWC's team of Psychiatrists and Psychologists
are often requested to provide seminars and talks with corporations or
universities regarding mental health. Topics include but aren’t limited to stress
management; depression; anxiety; work life balance; gender in workplace and
building a resilient brain.

Development Organizations
PHWC has also partnered up with various NGOs to provide remote counselling services for their employees for on-site
psychosocial support to staff members of an organization who work in highly stressful and traumatic work environments.

Corporates
PHWC is also known for developing international standard training modules for corporates as well as training their
personnel. Corporate Wellness Programs are designed to support and encourage a holistic approach to employee
wellbeing and cultivate healthy habits among employee populations to improve health outcomes, increase productivity,
and optimize human resource investments thereby boosting employee engagement. One of the core services of PHWC
includes Employee Assistance Program for corporates and NGOs. PHWC is a preferred provider that also offers Employee
Assistance Program (EAP) to support the employees of the organizations and immediate family members with a 24 hour
tele-counselling, face to face counselling, group supervision, life management support service and emergency crisis
management.

Academic Institutions
PHWC provides weekly individual counselling support for university students and staff members for Independent
University of Bangladesh and created a drug awareness campaign for IUB. Awareness sessions on bullying, stress and
life management, body image, etc. have been conducted in Sunbeams, AISD, ISD and Aga Khan including activities
such as Zumba, Yoga, Mindful meditation and Wellness activities. Sunbeams school teachers are also trained on basic
understanding of Mental Health issues.

Current and Upcoming Projects
---

Mindfulness Session
Mindfulness is the basic human ability to be fully present, aware of where we are and what we’re doing. When we’re
mindful, we reduce stress, enhance performance, gain insight and increase our attention to others’ well-being in our daily
lives. The sessions last two hours and span over 5 weeks.

Mental Health First Aid Training
Mental Health First Aid (MHFA) teaches professionals and non-professionals to assist someone experiencing a mental
health issue or substance use-related crisis. The MHFA course will teach one to identify risk factors and warning signs for
mental health and addiction concerns, strategies for how to help someone in both crisis and non-crisis situations, and who
to turn to for help. Certified instructors lead each course and follow an international curriculum and teaching standards,
while emphasizing hope for recovery.

Highlights
---

Psychological Health and Wellness Clinic (PHWC) hosted
three-hour workshop on Understanding and Coping
with Anxiety facilitated by Life Coach Samah Kabir to
assist them in managing and coping with anxiety

Psychological Health and
Wellness Clinic (PHWC)
conducted a 5-day training
on “Training of Trainers
on Para-Counselling” from
August 5-9, 2018 at SAJIDA
Foundation’s Head Office

PHWC hosted events
with schools to increase
mental health awareness
through a workshop on
Stress Management and
Mindfulness at a retreat for
youth in Gazipur

PHWC participated at Dhaka
Lit Fest
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Governance,
Management & Finance
Governance
---

General Body
The General Body of SAJIDA comprises of 22 members who are involved in policy making, approval of the annual audit
report, budget planning and electing the Governing Body. The 25th Annual General meeting was held in December 2018.
The members adopted the audited financial report for the financial year ended 30th June 2018, appointed external
auditors for the 2018-19 and decided on the annual budget of the organization.

Members of the General Body
Shib Narayan Kairy
Sajida Humayun Kabir
Syed S. Kaiser Kabir
Abdul-Muyeed Chowdhury
Dr. Asif Mujtaba Mahmud
Dr. Erum Mariam
Barrister Sajeda Farisa Kabir
Mujtaba Rahman Khan

Dr. Sarwar Ali
Md. Shafiul Alam
Asadot Daullah
Owais Salam
Barrister Junayed A. Chowdhury
Safi Rahman Khan
Junaid K. Doja
Kaiser Tamiz Amin

Mridul Chowdhury
A. K. Faizan Salam
Iresh Zaker
Sukhendra Kumar Sarkar
Sayeda Tahya Hossain
Tanya Tazeen Karim

Governing Body
The Governing Body comprises of seven members selected for their wide-ranging expertise and knowledge. They
are distinguished professionals, activists and entrepreneurs. Elected for three years, the Governing Body also reviews
operational performances and gives approval for strategic decisions. In the fiscal year 2018-2019 the Governing Body held
four meetings with an overall attendance of 75%.
Number of Meeting

Date of Meeting

Number of Members
Attended

Total Number of
Members

88th

21 July, 2018

5

7

89th

26 December, 2018

6

7

90th

7 April, 2019

6

7

91th

30 June, 2019

4

7

Legal Status, Registration & License
SAJIDA Foundation is registered with Registrar of Joint Stock Companies under the Societies Act of 1860 and at the NGO
Affairs Bureau of Bangladesh under Foreign Donation Regulations Ordinance 1978. In 2008, SAJIDA was also enlisted with
Micro-Credit Regulatory Authority and received a license for conducting Microfinance.

Zahida Fizza Kabir, Executive Director

Members of the Governing Body
Shib Narayan Kairy,
Chairperson
Shib Narayan Kairy is currently the Treasurer, BRAC University. He was also the Chief Financial Officer of BRAC and BRAC
International, the largest Non-Governmental Organization (NGO) in the world. Mr. Kairy has more than thirty four years of
experience in the development finance sector. Following the completion of his M.Com in accounting from the University
of Dhaka, he joined the accounts section of BRAC in April 1982. He is currently serving on the board of BRAC Bank Limited,
bKash Limited, BRAC EPL Investments Limited, BRAC EPL Stock Brokerage Limited and BRAC Tea Companies as a Director.
He is the Chairman of Dhaka Handicrafts Limited; member of the Board of Trustees of RDRS; and Governing Body member
of Credit and Development Forum (CDF).

Abdul Muyeed Chowdhury,
Member
Mr Abdul-Muyeed Chowdhury is the Founder and CEO of Tiger Tours Ltd. and served in Civil Service for 33 years, prior to
serving as Secretary to the Government in various Ministries and as ex-officio Chairman of the National Board of Revenue
(NBR). He also served as an Adviser to the Caretaker Government of Bangladesh in 2001. Upon completion of his MA with
First Class in Modern History from University of Dhaka, he also attended University of Tennessee as a Fulbright Scholar to
study Public Administration.
A Founding Board Member of Bangladesh NGO Foundation (BNF), he was Executive Director of BRAC, Chairperson of
BracNet Ltd., and Managing Director of Biman Bangladesh Airlines, while serving as Founder Chair of SME Foundation,
Federation of NGOs in Bangladesh (FNB), Bangladesh Youth Enterprise Advice and Help Centre (B’Yeah), and Founder
Trustee of Grameen Trust (GT). He is also an active Board Member of several renowned organizations including GSS, BRAC
University, ACI Formulations Ltd., and Summit Alliance Port Ltd. among others.

102

SAJIDA Foundation Annual Report 2018-19

Barrister Junayed Ahmed Chowdhury,
Member
Barrister Junayed Ahmed Chowdhury is the managing partner of Vertex Chambers, a leading law firm in Bangladesh. He
is a Barrister and Advocate of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh and a Registered Foreign Lawyer under the Law Society
of New South Wales, Australia specializing in Corporate and International Taxation, Oil and Gas law, Infrastructure and
Construction, M&A, Structuring Venture Capital and Private Equity Transactions, International Finance, and International
Environmental Law. He completed his LLB degree from the University of London and went on to earn a Post Graduate
Diploma from the Inns Court School of Law under City University, London, and an LLM degree from the University of
Chicago Law School.

Dr. Asif Mujtaba Mahmud,
Member
Dr. Asif Mujtaba Mahmud is a medical graduate from Chittagong Medical College. He obtained his Diploma in Tuberculous
and Chest Diseases from IDCH Dhaka and Doctorate in Medical Science from Japan. He started his career as an assistant
surgeon and served in various capacities across the country. He is a qualified pulmonologist who has a long career in
respiratory medicine focusing on Asthma and airway disorders, Interstitial Lung Diseases and Tuberculosis in particular.
He has pioneered quality care for multi-drug resistant TB patients in Bangladesh thereby achieving great reputation in
respiratory care services for patients with chest diseases. He has been working as an Associate Professor of Respiratory
medicine since 2004. Presently, he is serving as Consultant of Respiratory Medicine at Asgar Ali Hospital alongside being
Senior Technical Advisor for KNCV on the Challenge TB project.

Mujtaba Ur Rahman Khan,
Member
Mujtaba Ur Rahman Khan is the Chief Executive Officer of Integrated Risk Consulting Group (iRCG). Mr. Khan began his
career at Tysers’ North American subsidiary in 1995, subsequently moving back to Bangladesh to continue his career in
insurance with Reliance. He re-joined Tysers when they established the country’s first Risk Management consulting firm
in 2002. He has been instrumental in creating awareness in risk management within local and multinational companies
in Bangladesh. Mr. Khan is an MBA in Marketing, and has received several formal trainings in risk management at Swiss
Re (Switzerland), Munich Re (Germany), and Tata-AIG (India). He is also a lecturer and trainer on Principles of Risk
Management. He is a Permanent Member of Uttara Club and Life Member of Bangladesh Flying Academy and American
Alumni Association.
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Sukhendra Kumar Sarkar,
Member
Sukhendra Kumar Sarkar has been the Chairman of BURO, a reputed national NGO. Prior to this he was the Treasurer of
BRAC University. He was also the Director of Administration, Monitoring and Audit at BRAC, also overseeing the Partnership
Strengthening Unit and Transport departments. Throughout his career he has been dedicated to several important
projects including the Oral Therapy Extension Programme, Child Survival Programme, Women’s Health Development,
the Rural Credit Programme and the Management Development Programme. He was the founding Chairperson of Credit
and Development Forum (CDF). Apart from being a member of SAJIDA Foundation’s governing body, Mr. Sarkar is also a
member of the general committees of BRAC, CDF and Srizony and a member of the Governing Body of Nova Consultancy
Bangla. Mr. Sarkar earned his Master’s in Management from the Asian Institute of Management in Manila, and his
Bachelors of Education (B.Ed.) and Bachelors of Science (B.Sc.) degrees from Rajshahi University.

Dr. Erum Mariam,
Member
Dr. Erum Mariam holds a PhD in Education from Cambridge University. She also has an MBA from the Institute of Business
Administration (IBA) and MSc in Media and Communications from the London School of Economics. Currently, she serves
as the Executive Director of BRAC University-IED and is the Former Head of the Education Program (BEP) of BRAC.

Audit Committee
Formed in 2008, the Audit Committee assists SAJIDA’s Governing Body in conducting the organization’s financial review
and assessing the effectiveness of internal control systems. It also provides guidance to the internal audit section and gives
special assignments if need arises. In 2017 the audit committee was reconstituted with the following members:

Chair
Sukhendra Kumar Sarkar,

The main roles and responsibilities
of the committee

Member, SAJIDA Governing Body.



Monitor the integrity of the financial statements.



Barrister Junayed Ahmed Chowdhury,
Member, SAJIDA Governing Body.

Review the integrity of the internal financial
control and risk management systems.



Kaiser Tamiz Amin, Member, SAJIDA General Body.

Monitor and review the effectiveness of the
internal audit function.



Review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process, taking into consideration
relevant professional and regulatory requirements.

Members

Meeting in 2018-19
On 26th December, the audit committee meeting was held.

Investment Committee
Formed in 2019, the Investment committee assists SAJIDA’s Governing Body in taking core investment decisions. It reviews
the core investment proposal from the management and recommend Governing Body for taking decisions.

Chair

External Auditors

Mr. Syed S. Kaiser Kabir,

A Qasem & Co. Chartered
Accountants, an experienced auditing
firm known for their professionalism
and quality.

General Member and Managing Director, Renata Ltd.

Members
Kaiser Tamiz Amin, General Member, Member Audit Committee
Zahida Fizza Kabir, Executive Director & Member Secretary
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SAJIDA Foundation has formed 12 committees at the management level for ensuring smooth
functioning and transparency as a whole. Brief description of core committees:

Sexual Harassment Elimination Committee (SHEC)
As part of its commitment, to uphold court verdict and to ensure gender equality, SAJIDA Foundation has taken numerous
initiatives to cultivate anti-sexual harassment values and

culture in the organization. To achieve this goal, SAJIDA
Foundation has formed a nine-member committee titled ‘Sexual Harassment Elimination Committee, four are members of
other organizations, having extensive experience in human rights, gender and sexual harassment.

Procurement Committee (PC)
The Procurement Committee has been formed to smoothen the procurement operation, develop procurement policy
and reduce misconduct in system. This procurement committee ensures integrity, competitive price, quality product
and service for exceptional and emergency procurement as well as regular procurement. The committee directs the
development and implementation of Procurement policies and plans in SAJIDA Foundation and guide the procurement
team to achieve the common goal.

Executive Management Committee (EMC)
The Executive Management Committee (EMC) comprises SAJIDA’s Executive Leaders who meet once a month. This
monthly strategic discussion aims to facilitate sharing of important agenda regarding the direction, progress and challenges
of the Organization. Important decisions are taken at this meeting, which establishes important effective communication
within SAJIDA’s Executive Management to support strategic decision-making.

Performance Management Committee
The Performance Committee is established to strengthen the performance culture across the Organization through its
oversight capacity and to provide advice and make recommendations to the Executive Management Committee once in
a fiscal year in relation to the broad performance of the staffs across the organization, the performance indicators to be
used to measure staff’s performance, and monitoring of the overall effectiveness and outcome of performance indicators.

Monitoring & Code of Conduct Review Committee
The Foundation is committed to ensuring institutional transparency and accountability of its internal activities under the
internal monitoring department. The Committee is constituted at headquarters for making accurate, transparent and
unbiased decisions based on the information received.

Audit Review Committee
According to the decisions of Audit Committee of SAJIDA Governing Body, the audit review committee being formed with
the senior management staff. The review committee work based on the ToR especially developed for the committee. Their
main task is to assist the Audit Committee by ensuring sanctions if any and conduct audit hearing. The committee sits as
and when required but at least once in every two months. Currently 5 member committee is managing the activities.

Compliance Committee
The purpose of the compliance committee is to review compliance status of the organization and protect the organization
from risk associated with compliance both internal and external. Overseeing compliance within the organization, and
ensuring compliance with laws, regulatory requirements, policies and procedures. Facilitating annual regulatory risk
assessment, and providing recommendations based on the results. The committee sits in every two months for reviewing
compliance status and to establish a compliance environment within the organization.

Apart from Committee, SAJIDA Foundation also adopted key policies in its operation to uphold its
objective: Gender policy, Institutional protection policy, Child safety policy, Cost Allocation policy and
Investment policy.
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Management
---

Human Resources
This year, the Human Resources (HR) Department has conducted the performance appraisal process successfully with a
new dimension, HR has given the opportunity to get promotions for different levels by setting out performance objectives
for all levels of staff. The HR team is currently working to establish a KPI (key performance indicators) based performance
appraisal system as well as monitoring progress.
HR will introduce a new customized HR software for digitizing its’ functions. The software will also benefit the employee
too. Staff members will get all the information from this software which will record information and can free up staff time.

Communications
SAJIDA Foundation’s Communications Department, introduced in 2017 to establish the SAJIDA brand both internally and
externally, has come miles to live up to the goals and strategies it set-forth to achieve. The Team expanded further during
the fiscal year and organized numerous campaigns to uphold the brand’s vision of health, happiness and dignity for all.
To that end, the Team worked united towards strengthening their core values aiding to increased visibility, stronger voice,
greater awareness, and an overall better communication with its stakeholders. Through the use of different online, offline,
and paper-based media, Communications department successfully highlighted their achievements of catering to their large
spectrum of beneficiaries spread throughout the 4,000 villages in 23 districts it operates in.
A few major achievements of the department include the successful completion of a 3-day hands-on training conducted
by Team Broken Earth in collaboration with SAJIDA Foundation for health professionals on high risk labour and delivery
management, creating mental health and well-being awareness through a month-long campaign for the entire
organization, upholding SAJIDA’s vision through actively partaking in 16 days of Activism to end Gender-Based Violence
Against Women, along with celebrating women and mothers on dedicated days. Building up brands, creating unique
communication guidelines, and setting forth higher goals for the road ahead, SAJIDA’s Communications Team is paving the
way for more successes in the days to come.

Capacity Building
As a value driven organization, SAJIDA recognizes the importance of capacity building of each employee in the organization
and are aware about the invaluable contribution of staff and dedicated efforts to help the organization fulfil its mission
of improving the quality of the life for the disadvantaged and marginalized. The Capacity Building Unit works with an
annual strategic plan which is developed by working closely with Programs and strategizes the rollout of capacity building
initiatives for all staff. Newly recruited staff also undergo regular training courses that include Organizational Orientation
and a Basic Operational Course.
Staff from CBD executed the Loyal Customer Program orientation. Over 2,000 staff underwent the orientation Programs.
The Capacity Building Unit is also responsible for developing a resource pool within key Programs and organized a one
yearlong training for Assistant Branch Managers and potential Branch Managers. The best performers of microfinance staff
were trained as ToT.
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Outside Training Attended by Staff

Quality Improvements In Training

A significant number of SAJIDA staff, over 800, participated
in various trainings and workshops conducted by other
organizations, e.g. Enroute, MDF, BRAC, BD Jobs, HSPP,
MRA, independent trainers, and PKSF during the reporting
year. Two staff members participated in a Diploma Course
on microfinance at Institute of Inclusive Finance and
Development (InM). Besides, staff from SAJIDA Hospitals
and different health related programs, participated in the
training conducted by international trainer.

The Capacity Building Unit implemented planned efforts to
review and upgrade the training modules and educational
materials in order to make the training pragmatic. To make
the training more effective and sustainable, facilitators
used innovative training methods, such as games and
creative activities and has involved observers from within
the organization to assess the training quality for further
improvement.

Future Plans
Currently SAJIDA Foundation is focusing on a selfdependent approach for the entire support units. SAJIDA
Foundation is also committed to continuously exploring
and developing new and innovative approaches in
enhancing skills and performance of its human resources.
In future, SAJIDA intends to introduce blended learning,
which is the effective combination of online learning and
classroom learning. On-site learning programs will allow to
train more people working across the organization making
it cost-effective and greater process consistency.
Senior Management of SAJIDA Foundation

In the upcoming year, more attention will be given on
pragmatic or hands-on training besides the soft skill
development training. Talent management, staff retention
and required staff pool development will be the equal
priority for Capacity Building. As the organization is
stepping into new phase, capacity building requires to take
it as challenge and needed to take development programs
which brings all the employees to an expected grade so
they all have standard level of skills and knowledge to
materialized organizational goals.
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Management Information System (MIS)
SAJIDA’s Management Information System (MIS) is a
dynamic department which engages in continuous
data collection and presentation through a central
repository which enables the management to make
prudent and efficient decisions for the organization.
The MIS department is currently working on enhancing
its data collection processes by implementing a system
with a simple graphic user interface which features a

logical distribution of functions to enable each user to
easily access and manipulate information and deliver to
management on time as and when required. The MIS
team also produces special reports from the system so
programs are able to gather quantitative information on
the development activities undertaken. Major features of
the MIS department include:

1

Organizing data in a central location and making it accessible for quick analysis and presentation.

2

Helping strategic and long-term decision-making and improving overall productivity of the organization.

3

Making up-to-date information readily available to facilitate greater monitoring and improving controllability
and operational efficiency of the organization.

4

Facilitating easy access to all the important data of the organization to the people in the management

5

Automatically generating information related to incentives every month using MIS software.

Information Technology Department (IT)
SAJIDA’s IT department provides important support to all
departments and programs to ensure smooth and efficient
work processes and data sharing within the organization.
Installation and maintenance of all hardware and software
related work for all SAJIDA’s staff is undertaken by the IT
department in addition to continuous strategic planning
and upgrading of innovation and technology. To this end,
the department introduced Office 365 in July 2018 to
give SAJIDA staff access to the benefits of Microsoft’s
office productivity and communication software suite,

arguably recognized as the industry standard solution
and a MIS Dashboard system for Senior Management to
see at-a-glance key details of SAJIDA’s performance in the
microfinance sector. Data from SAJIDA’s 202 Microfinance
branches which generate data in a de-centralized fashion
and required major consolidation. The department also
renewed efforts to protect the organizational data through
implementation of anti-malware solutions from reputed
software security companies.

Administration
Equally, like other successfully run departments within
SAJIDA Foundation, the seven-member Administration
Team also leads and guides the organization and works

closely in partnership with other support departments to
ensure that organizational needs are met in a timely and
smooth fashion on the following key activities:

1

Ensuring organizational rules and regulations within the organization;

2

Renting and preparing different types of agreement (office rent, vehicle rent and hiring consultants);

3

Maintaining Government liaison with respective departments;

4

Maintaining land tax, land registration, mutation, land evaluation for purchase;

5

Update different types of licenses;

6

Procuring different types of products and services and ensuring them in a timely manner;

7

Preparing different types of agreement for periodical procurement;

8

Asset management; Inventory management for stationery, printing items and assets;

9

Ensuring security for employees, asset and documents;

10 Vehicle management; interior, repair and maintenance (asset, equipment and vehicle) work;
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During the reporting year, the department developed different types of operational
strategies and updated the operational procedure according to the organizational
demand. These include:
1

Developing a strategy to collect demand for printing items and disbursement strategy through online system
for every product;

2

Developing staff field visits through UBER or other online systems (inside Dhaka City and nearest areas);

3

Developing Head office staff pick and drop service by third party vendor;

4

Developing safety manual and safety awareness program for the organization;

5

Developing different types of staff operations for cleaner, security and support staff;

6

Developing motorcycle documentation storage and update through BRTA.

In future, the Administration Department will be working towards developing procurement policies for products and
services and preparing security operations plan to ensure asset and employee security and plans to engage in more
discussions with field staff to assess their operational needs and areas where the department can provide further support.

Infrastructure Development
This year, as part of our efforts to improve on all aspects of our operations, the organization looks towards expansion, so
an Infrastructure Development Unit was established with the key objective of ensuring maintenance of proper guidelines
and protocols. The department, launched in January 2018, is working on establishing an infrastructure developed guideline
and quality monitoring manual which will guide processes and decisions regarding office space renting, construction,
renovation, branding, maintenance and compliance and lead and initiate innovative technical solutions to reduce cost and
time and while upholding the highest standard of safety and quality at all SAJIDA’s workplaces.
During 2018-2019, the Infrastructure Development Unit completed new office set up for Inner Circle and Home and
Community Care unit at Gulshan 2, Dhaka. 34 Nos. Microfinance branches and 10 Nos. Client service point in various
regions were restructured and renovated by the unit with a new interior to boost employee satisfaction and performance,
in addition to routine maintenance work at SAJIDA’s Pavement Dweller Centres, Sajida Hospitals and Head Office.

Sexual Harassment Elimination Unit
SAJIDA strives to create an environment in the organization that promotes mutual respect irrespective of gender, sex,
ethnicity and race. Towards this end and in line with Government directives, a Sexual Harassment Elimination Unit was
formed during the reporting year to make everybody aware about the organization’s gender policy, practice zero tolerance
of any gender-based violence and undertake appropriate redressals in case of violations. A committee was also launched
with nine members - four from external organizations who are reputed gender specialists and legal experts and five from
within SAJIDA in October. A three-member team is assigned to raise awareness and also investigate the sexual harassment
related issues alongside twenty-one field focal points selected and trained to monitor particular regions and be easily
available.

Objective of SHE Unit:
1

Ensure zero tolerance on sexual harassment issues

2

Ensure security of victims

3

Ensure fast resolution of complains

4

Create a gender-friendly environment
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Monitoring
The Monitoring Department started its journey in February 2017 as a support unit for Microfinance and other programs.
The eighteen member monitoring department has been working to uphold the institutional values of accountability,
transparency, innovation, and quality for the foundation. In this regard, the department has been working to ensure quality
of financial operations, prevention of irregularities and misappropriations through regular methodical inspections; as well
as investigating special cases and instances of violation of the code of conduct.
The department runs based on the level of risk category of branches, thereby affecting the frequency of visits, and also
has an independent line of reporting that is separate from the Operation team, so as to maintain unbiased results. The
team reports directly to the Executive Director of the foundation upon review with the Monitoring Review Committee who
propose action plans to mitigate issues to the Executive Director.
With the mission to ensure health, happiness and dignity for all, the department operates in line with SAJIDA’s values
and works towards making the Foundation even more sustainable for the long run, through proper implementation of
regulations and monitoring of program operations.

Business Development Unit
(Microfinance Program)
SAJIDA Foundation believes, organizational success and survival depend on its ability to adapt and transform. This is only
possible, when an organization has the continuous mind-set to improve its internal processes and practices. With that
aim, SAJIDA Foundation formed a full-fledged Business Development Unit in 2019 for its Microfinance Program. This unit
will ensure efficient execution of organizational strategy and strategic projects, support the operation team to improve
portfolio and performance of the Program and constantly discover partnership opportunities for growth and innovation.

Business Development Unit
(Non-Microfinance)
The Non-microfinance Business Development Unit acts as a support and intelligence unit for all other functions/programs/
enterprises (except Microfinance) of SAJIDA Foundation. The team supports SAJIDA Foundation and consists of project
managers, economics graduates, doctors, engineers, nurses, and technologists. Shared values and beliefs influence the
work that SAJIDA does. The biggest strengths are diversity and a problem-solving attitude to endeavour to drive change
through designing contextual and tangible solutions for clients.

Our ethos –





Innovation starts with people.



Our combination of data, design, and the right
digital technologies can help build intelligent
products and services that improve people’s lives.

Complex problems are best solved collaboratively.
Best practices take time to develop, and they take
even longer to implement

The Non-Microfinance Business Development Unit has 5 pathways through which it works –


Research and Incubation



Technology Project Management



Program/Process/Service Design



Marketing



Metrics and Quality Assurance

The NMF-BDU continues to take shape every day. The team is actively handling 4
software project implementations at SAJIDA Foundation, and have a portfolio of smaller
projects related to the 5 pathways mentioned above.
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Donors & Partners
---

Development Partners

• Government of Bangladesh
• Palli Karma-Sahayak Foundation (PKSF)
• BRAC
• Concern Worldwide Bangladesh
• Irish Aid
• Global Fund
• UNDP
• WaterAid Bangladesh
• Rockefeller Philanthropy Advisors (RPA)
& MetLife Foundation
• Adhunika Foundation USA
• JICA and Bangladesh Bank
• Water.Org
• SNV Netherlands Development Organization
• Christian Aid
• Team Broken Earth
• ABN-AMRO MeesPierson
• Penny Appeal UK
• Big Dutchman- BD Agriculture (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd
• United Way Worldwide- USA
• Save the Children UK
• ORBIS International- USA
• International Labour Office (ILO) Switzerland

Banking Partners

• Bangladesh Bank
• Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA)
• Agrani Bank Ltd.
• Bank Alfalah Ltd.
• Dhaka Bank Ltd.
• Habib Bank Ltd.
• Standard Chartered Bank
• HSBC Bank
• BRAC Bank Ltd.
• Eastern Bank Ltd.
• Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.
• Prime Bank Ltd.
• Jamuna Bank Ltd.

Network Partners

• Banking with the Poor Network (BWTP), Australia
• Internal Network of Alternative Financial Institutions
(INAFI), Bangladesh
• Credit and Development Forum (CDF), Bangladesh
• Community Based Health Insurance (CBHI) Network,
Bangladesh
• Federation of NGOs in Bangladesh (FNB)
• Coalition for Urban Poor (CUP)
• FreshWater Action Network South Asia (FANSA)

Awards & Recognition
---



CITI Micro-Entrepreneurship Awards as best MFI: 2014



Best Innovative Microfinance Institution in Bangladesh Award by Citi Group: 2013



3rd Best Microfinance Institution in Bangladesh Award by Citi Group: 2010



Trophy by ILO Microinsurance Innovation Facility (2011-2013), Jakarta, Indonesia



1st Prize for the Entrepreneurs Organization Award, 2018



Merit Certificate for best published annual report – SAFA Awards: 2013 - 2017



Securing top two positions Best Annual Report by ICAB: 2014-2018



Securing third position for Best Annual Report by ICAB: 2008 & 2018

---

Organogram

Governing Body
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Finance
---

SAJIDA Foundation

Statement of Financial Position
as of 30th June 2019

Taka in Million
Indicators
Financial Position
Fixed Assets
Investments
Loan portfolio
Advance and Deposits
Current Assets
Current Liabilities
Net Current Assets

Net Assets

Represented by:
Capital Funds
Other Funds
Member Savings
Loan Loss Provision
Term Loan

FY 2018-19

FY 2017-18

FY 2016-17

FY 2015-16

FY 2014-15

579
734
14,980
267
1,110
214
895

524
594
11,855
201
526
128
398

455
758
7,493
167
176
90
86

387
385
4,614
107
173
102
71

324
281
2,834
97
182
71
111

17,457

13,572

8,959

5,565

3,647

3,127
247
3,658
640
9,784

2,328
197
3,022
340
7,685

1,777
149
2,367
151
4,515

1,180
115
1,679
156
2,435

895
117
1,248
129
1,257

Net Assets

17,457

13,572

8,959

5,565

3,647

Cash Flow
Operating Activities
Investing Activities
Financing activities
Cash and cash equivalents at year-end

801
(3,244)
2,724
655

936
(4,500)
3,847
373

582
(3,357)
2,768
90

343
(1,975)
1,612
98

188
(397)
35
118

4,176
3,481
695

2,874
2,300
574

2,021
1,452
569

1,261
984
277

1,033
860
173

Income & Expenditure
Income
Expenditure
Operating Surplus

Five Years' Comparative Data (in Million BDT)
4,500
4,000
3,500
3,000
2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000
500
-

Income
Expenditure
Operating Surplus

SAJIDA Foundation Annual Report 2018-19

Expenditure

Income
5,000

4,000

4,000

3,000

3,000

2,000

2,000

1,000

1,000
-

-

Capital Funds

Operating Surplus
800

4,000

600

3,000

400

2,000

200

1,000
-

-

Member Savings

Loan Portfolio
20,000

15,000
10,000
5,000

-

4,000
3,000
2,000
1,000
-
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Total Income Contribution
% for FY 2018 to 2019

Total Expenditure Allocation
% for FY 2018 to 2019

3,513 BDT in Millions
84.13%

3,065 BDT in Millions
88.05%

Microfinance
Program
169 BDT in Millions
4.04%

Social Enterprises
Program

144 BDT in Millions
3.46%

Other Development
Program

350 BDT in Millions
8.38%

Source of Fund

Application of Fund

BDT in
Million

%

57.57%

Loans to members

14,980

88.15%

3,658

21.52%

Investments

734

4.32%

3,341

19.66%

Grants, receivables and
Advance

700

4.12%

212

1.25%

Property, plant and equipment

579

3.41%

16,994

100%

Total

16,994

100%

%

Financing from Financial
Institution

9,784

Members savings deposits
Capital fund and Reserve
Grants and advance others
Total
Grants and
advance others
212
Capital fund and
Reserve
3,341

262 BDT in Millions
7.52%

Investment

BDT in
Million

as of June 2019

154 BDT in Millions
4.42%

Financing from
Financial Institution
9,784

as of June 2019

Grants, receivables
and Advance
700

Property, plant and
equipment
579

Loans to members
14,980

Investments
734

BDT in
Million

BDT in
Million

Members
savings deposits
3,658

Financing from
Financial Institution

Capital fund
and Reserve

Loans to
members

Grants, receivables
and Advance

Members savings
deposits

Grants and
advance others

Investments

Property, plant
and equipment

SAJIDA Foundation Annual Report 2018-19
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SAJIDA Foundation
Five Years Data

Vertical Analysis
Particulars

Taka in Million
FY
2018-19

%

FY
2017-18

%

FY
2016-17

%

FY
2015-16

%

FY
2014-15

Income & Expenditure
Income
Expenditure
Operating Surplus

4,176
3,481
695

100%
83%
17%

2,874
2,300
574

100%
80%
20 %

2,021
1,452
569

100%
72%
28%

1,261
984
277

100%
78%
22%

1,033
860
173

Capital and Liabilities
Capital Funds
Other Funds
Member Savings
Loan Loss Provision
Term Loan
Current Liabilities
Total

3,127
247
3,658
640
9,784
214
17,671

18%
1%
21%
4%
55%
1%
100%

2,328
197
3,022
340
7,685
128
13,700

17%
1%
22%
2%
56%
1%
100%

1,777
149
2,367
151
4,515
90
9,049

20%
2%
26%
2%
50%
1%
100%

1,180
115
1,679
156
2,435
102
5,667

21%
2%
30%
3%
43%
2%
100%

895
117
1,248
129
1,257
71
3,718

Assets
Fixed Assets
Investments
Loan portfolio
Advance and Deposits
Current Assets
Total

579
734
14,980
267
1,110
17,671

3%
4%
85%
2%
6%
100%

524
594
11,855
201
526
13,700

4%
4%
87%
1%
4%
100%

455
758
7,493
167
176
9,049

5%
8%
83%
2%
2%
100%

387
385
4,614
107
173
5,667

7%
7%
81%
2%
3%
100%

324
281
2,834
97
182
3,718

Horizontal Analysis
Particulars

FY
2018-19

Change over
preceding
year (%)

FY
2017-18

Change over
preceding
year (%)

FY
2016-17

Change over
preceding
year (%)

FY
2015-16

Change over
preceding
year (%)

FY
2014-15

Income & Expenditure
Income
Expenditure
Operating Surplus

4,176
3,481
695

45%
51%
21%

2,874
2,300
574

42%
58%
1%

2,021
1,452
569

60%
48%
106%

1,261
984
277

22%
14%
60%

1,033
860
173

Capital and Liabilities
Capital Funds
Other Funds
Member Savings
Loan Loss Provision
Term Loan
Current Liabilities
Total

3,127
247
3,658
640
9,784
214
17,671

34%
26%
21%
88%
27%
67%
29%

2,328
197
3,022
340
7,685
128
13,700

31%
32%
28%
125%
70%
43%
51%

1,777
149
2,367
151
4,515
90
9,049

51%
29%
41%
-3%
85%
-12%
60%

1,180
115
1,679
156
2,435
102
5,667

32%
-2%
34%
21%
94%
44%
52%

895
117
1,248
129
1,257
71
3,718

Assets
Fixed Assets
Investments
Loan portfolio
Advance and Deposits
Current Assets
Total

579
734
14,980
267
1,110
17,671

11%
24%
26%
33%
111%
29%

524
594
11,855
201
526
13,700

15%
-22%
58%
20%
199%
51%

455
758
7,493
167
176
9,049

18%
97%
62%
56%
2%
60%

387
385
4,614
107
173
5,667

19%
37%
63%
11%
-5%
52%

324
281
2,834
97
182
3,718
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Credit Rating
The Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh Limited (CRAB) has affirmed the credit rating of SAJIDA Foundation with an
“AA3” (Double A Three) rating in the long term and “ST-2” rating in the short term. CRAB performed the rating based on
audited financial statements up to June 30, 2018 and other relevant quantitative and qualitative information. Microfinance
Institutions (MFIs) rated “AA3” have very strong capacity to meet their financial commitments.
The summary of SAJIDA’s ratings, dating 27th December 2018 and valid till 31st December 2019 is as follows:

2019

2018

Long Term

Long Term

AA3

AA3

Long Term

Long Term

AA3

AA3

---

---

Definition
Strong capacity & High quality, MFIs rated ‘AA3’ have strong capacity to meet their financial commitments but are
somewhat more susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in circumstances and economic conditions than MFIs in
higher-rated categories. ‘AA3’ is judged to be high quality and are subject to low credit risk.
ST-2: MFls rated in category are considered to have strong capacity for timely repayment. MFls rated in this category
are characterized with commendable positioning in terms of liquidity, internal fund generation and access to alternative
sources of funds.

Contribution of SAJIDA
to the Government Exchequer
Income Year

FY 2018-19

FY 2017-18

Income Tax deduction at source by the third parties

37,766,398

48,976,941

Income Tax deduction at source from Staff Salary

9,732,186

2,165,982

Income Tax deduction at source from the third parties

5,249,511

23,625,202

66,854,057

36,617,237

119,602,152

111,385,362

VAT Collection from the third parties

Total

SAJIDA Foundation Annual Report 2018-19
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT AND
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SAJIDA FOUNDATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

A member firm of
Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Gulshan Pink City
Suites # 01-03, Level: 7, Plot #15, Road #103
Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka - 1212, Bangladesh

Phone
FAX
E-mail
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: 880-2-8881824-6
: 880-2-8881822
: a.qasem@bd.ey.com

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of General Body of SAJIDA Foundation
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of SAJIDA Foundation (the entity), which comprise the statement of financial
position as at June 30, 2019, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in fund and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
entity as at June 30, 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA
Code and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs,
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the entity’s financial reporting process
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
EY Refers to the global organization, and/or one or more of the independent members of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.



 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
Other Matter
The financial statements of SAJIDA Foundation for the year ended 30 June 2018 – which were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 01 October 2018 – has been restated in respect of a correction of
an error which has been appropriately disclosed in note 3.09 to the financial statements.

A. Qasem & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Dhaka, November 07, 2019

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
EY Refers to the global organization, and/or one or more of the independent members of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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SAJIDA Foundation

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Statement of financial position
as at 30 June 2019

Notes

Amount in BDT
30 June 2019
30 June 2018
Restated 3

Assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress
Deferred expenditure
Investment in related undertaking
Investment in securities and others

6
7
8
9
10

419,879,269
159,525,330
16,633,874
67,701,060
6,722,522
670,462,055

369,444,161
154,704,040
14,478,927
53,036,060
10,692,666
602,355,854

Current assets
Loan to members
Short term investment
Grants and accounts receivables
Advance, deposits and prepayments
Advance income tax
Staff loans and advance
Inventories
Cash and cash equivalents

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

14,980,232,196
660,049,900
277,603,121
88,801,194
178,637,847
155,194,545
5,569,049
654,582,745
17,000,670,597

11,855,466,311
535,172,724
16,964,144
59,635,615
140,871,448
114,920,726
6,006,531
373,451,737
13,102,489,237

17,671,132,652

13,704,845,091

19
20

3,127,462,485
213,071,776
3,340,534,262

2,332,661,136
153,959,766
2,486,620,902

21
22
23
24

710,716,664
7,028,937
300,232,927
817,770,171
1,835,748,699

564,833,331
5,730,889
97,034,282
561,324,064
1,228,922,566

9,072,821,572
340,111,905
2,840,234,185
27,189,452
214,492,577
12,494,849,691
14,330,598,390
17,671,132,652

7,120,194,065
242,727,802
2,461,158,575
37,039,202
128,181,979
9,989,301,623
11,218,224,189
13,704,845,091

Total assets

Funds and liabilities

Funds
Capital fund
Reserve fund and others
Total funds
Non current liabilities
Term loans
Deferred income
Loan loss provision
Member savings deposits

Current liabilities
Short term loans
Loan loss provision
Member savings deposits
Grants received in advance
Other current liabilities

25
26

Total liabilities
Total funds and liabilities

1

Signed as per our audit report of same date annexed.

2

The annexed notes form an integral part of this statement of financial position.

3

Certain amounts shown in the comparative do not correspond to previous year’s financial statements and reflect
adjustments made, refer to Note 3.09.

Director (Finance & Accounts)
SAJIDA Foundation

Dated, Dhaka
November 07, 2019

Executive Director
SAJIDA Foundation

Chairperson, Governing Body
SAJIDA Foundation

A. Qasem & Co.

Chartered Accountants

122

SAJIDA Foundation Annual Report 2018-19

SAJIDA Foundation

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended June 2019

Amount in BDT
Notes

2018-19

2017-2018

Income
Income from microfinance

27

3,449,594,793

2,312,155,817

Donor grants

28

156,005,624

124,429,357

Income from investment

29

339,418,129

279,594,316

61,949,016

32,435,599

168,305,390

123,955,522

638,898

1,220,298

4,175,911,848

2,873,790,909

3,065,145,484

1,968,069,981

154,022,799

127,151,900

3,219,168,282

2,095,221,881

1,172,915

2,275,807

Amrao manush program

50,821,476

47,437,837

Wash awareness program

49,524,780

29,576,057

Health awareness program

21,270,246

4,654,843

Other development project

21,036,822

29,732,391

Total expenditure of development program

143,826,239

113,676,935

SAJIDA own funded program

118,056,935

90,627,831

3,481,051,457

2,299,526,647

694,860,391

574,264,262

4,175,911,848

2,873,790,909

Income from bank interest
Income from social enterprise
Income from community contribution

Expenditure
Microfinance program
Social enterprises
Total expenditure of microfinance and enterprises
Education program

Total expenditure
Net surplus for the year

1

Signed as per our audit report of same date annexed.

2

The annexed notes form an integral part of this statement of comprehensive income.

Director (Finance & Accounts)
SAJIDA Foundation

Dated, Dhaka
November 07, 2019

Executive Director
SAJIDA Foundation

Chairperson, Governing Body
SAJIDA Foundation

A. Qasem & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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SAJIDA Foundation

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Statement of cash flows
for the year ended June 2019

Notes
A. Cash flows from operating activities:
Excess of income over expenditure
Adjustment for non-cash items:
Loan Loss Provision Expenses
Amortization on Deferred Expenses
Depreciation
(Gain) / Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant & Equipment
Assets Disposal / Accumulated Depreciation
Prior Year adjustment (Capital fund)
a) Operating profit before working capital changes
Increase (decrease) in reserve fund and others
Increase (decrease) in loan loss provision
Increase (decrease) in deferred income
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities
Decrease (increase) in Short Term Investment
Decrease (increase) in advance, deposits & prepayments
Decrease (increase) in advance income tax
Decrease (increase) in Staff loans and Advance
Decrease (increase) in grants & accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in inventories
b) Adjustment for changes in working capital
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities
B. Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of property, plant & equipment
Sale of property, plant & equipment
Work in progress (Building)
Deferred expenditure
Investment in related undertaking
Investment in Securities and Others
Disbursement of loan to members
Net Cash Provided by/(used in) investing activities

1

Signed as per our audit report of same date annexed.

2

The annexed notes form an integral part of this statement of cash flows.

SAJIDA Foundation

Dated, Dhaka
November 07, 2019

694,860,391

574,264,262

331,854,398
12,981,606
34,012,277
1,047,339
3,169,736
99,940,958
1,177,866,705
59,112,011
(31,271,650)
1,298,048
86,310,599
(124,877,176)
(29,165,579)
(37,766,398)
(40,273,819)
(260,638,977)
437,482
(376,835,460)
801,031,245

207,223,604
9,616,511
27,398,439
121,124
3,253,295
(22,968,150)
798,909,085
26,012,318
(18,689,371)
636,003
38,245,539
180,482,836
2,856,608
(36,175,194)
(58,322,809)
2,828,328
(472,645)
137,401,613
936,310,697

(88,776,628)
112,169
(4,821,290)
(15,136,553)
(14,665,000)
3,970,144
(3,124,765,885)
(3,244,083,043)

(52,234,358)
1,283,577
(49,241,140)
(20,464,668)
(15,657,879)
(504,230)
(4,362,904,000)
(4,499,722,697)

139,975,711

144,564,892

(154,803,404)
(2,566,497)
(5,373,577)
12,918,017
635,521,717
1,010,000,000
(864,116,667)
35,746,398,243
(33,793,770,737)
2,724,182,806
281,131,008
373,451,737
654,582,745

(123,029,556)
(1,716,225)
(7,998,240)
9,096,363
655,458,948
662,500,000
(511,666,670)
20,556,764,364
(17,537,427,233)
3,846,546,642
283,134,642
90,317,095
373,451,737

30

C. Cash flows from financing activities:
Grant received during the year
Grant utilized during the year:
Operational expenditure
Investment of property, plant and equipment
Grants receivable realized during the year
Grants receivable
Received from member savings deposit
Term loan received during the year
Term loan repayment during the year
Short Term loan received during the year
Short Term loan repayment during the year
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities
Net Increase (decrease) (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the Year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Director (Finance & Accounts)

Amount in BDT
2018-2019
2017-2018

Executive Director
SAJIDA Foundation

Chairperson, Governing Body
SAJIDA Foundation

A. Qasem & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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SAJIDA Foundation

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Statement of changes in fund
as at 30 June 2019

Amount in BDT
Notes

30.06.2019

30.06.2018
Restated 3

Capital fund
Opening balance (01.07.2018)

2,332,661,136

1,776,533,232

Net surplus for the year

694,860,391

574,264,262

Add: Prior years adjustment, Short/(Excess) provision

162,747,269

8,777,860

-

12,093,111

(62,806,311)

(39,007,329)

3,127,462,485

2,332,661,136

Add: Transferred from Nirapotta reserve fund
Less: Transferred to MF reserve fund
Closing balance (30.06.2019)

1

Signed as per our audit report of same date annexed.

2

The annexed notes form an integral part of this statement of changes in fund.

3

Certain amounts shown in the comparative do not correspond to previous year’s financial statements and reflect
adjustments made, refer to Note 3.09.

Director (Finance & Accounts)
SAJIDA Foundation

Dated, Dhaka
November 07, 2019

Executive Director
SAJIDA Foundation

Chairperson, Governing Body
SAJIDA Foundation

A. Qasem & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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SAJIDA Foundation
Notes to the financial statements

as at and for the year ended 30 June 2019

1.00

About the organization
In 1987, SAJIDA Foundation (“SAJIDA”) started as private family-funded charity with a small garage school in
SAJIDA’s founder’s residence. By 1993, the organization evolved into a formal institution offering micro-credit to
poor urban women in old Dhaka.
SAJIDA Foundation is a reputed national development organization, which has been working on reducing poverty
and improving the livelihood of the poor since 1993. The organization has implemented many major development
activities including Microfinance, Micro-insurance, Health, Education and other specialized programs, specially
designed for the poor. Currently SAJIDA working across 22 districts, covering a population of over 6.0 million
people transforming the quality of their lives with positive impact. SAJIDA Foundation is registered under the
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Farms, NGO Affairs Bureau and Micro Credit Regulatory Authority of
Bangladesh.
At present, SAJIDA is working with a consortium of national and international donors. SAJIDA owns 51% shares
of Renata Limited. At present dividend earning from Renata Limited constitutes a great part of SAJIDA’s financial
sustainability.

2.00

About the organization
Name of organization

SAJIDA Foundation

Year of establishment

1987

Legal entity

SAJIDA Foundation is a non-government, non-profit voluntary organization registered
with –
1. Registrar of Joint Stock Companies registration no. S1403(37)/91 dated
08/05/1991.
2. NGO Affairs Bureau registration no. 984 dated 31/10/1995.
3. Micro credit Regulatory Authority registration no.00251-00155(Ka)-00155,
dated 16/03/2008.

Name of the operations
(Programs)

Microfinance Program, Education Program, Health Program, Amraomanush Project,
Amraomanush Savings, Malaria Control program, Institute of Health Science, Inner
Circle, IMPACT, Nirapotta, OPTIX, Adhunika Women’s Centre, Elderly Care, Access
to WASH, WASH-RMG, UPD, ILUEP, Wash4Urban Poor, UPDP, PROSHOMON, SNV
Project, Wash Crisis, SAJIDA Own Fund.

3.00

Basis of preparation of financial statements

3.01

Basis of accounting
SAJIDA prepares its financial statements on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). SAJIDA follows the accrual basis of accounting
(except for donation on cash basis).
SAJIDA Foundation processes its accounting data in a systematic way ensuring required control. It receives
donations and funds from different sources through bank account (mother account). Then funds are transferred
to the related programs and branch accounts. Transactions are recorded in the systems on daily basis and
produces vouchers, ledgers, trial balance and financial statements on periodical basis. Any omission
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or adjustment is corrected by the concerned personnel of Software Company which should be administered by
organization personnel. Head office general fund accounts and other projects accounts are also maintained in
software systems.
Branch office and head office record financial transaction in different software. Branch offices maintains the
record in SouthTech Software. The entire record on the closing data is then copied to a separate software named
“Anirban” for Microfinance combined report on a monthly basis. For the accounting of hospitals, enterprises and
other development programs – separate software is used. At every month end, SAJIDA prepares the ultimate
financial statements manually in spreadsheet.
3.02

Preparation of financial statements
Financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS). The
financial statements are expressed in Bangladeshi Taka.

3.03

Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

3.04

Reporting period
The financial period of the SAJIDA Foundation covers one-year period from 01 July 2018 to 30 June 2019.

3.05

Comparative information and rearrangement thereof
Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the one-year period from 01 July 2017 to 30 June
2018 for all numeric information in the financial statements and also the narrative and descriptive information
where it is relevant for understanding of the current year’s financial statements.
Figures for the period ended on 30 June 2018 have been rearranged wherever considered necessary to ensure
comparability with the current period.

3.06

Going concern
Management has assessed SAJIDA’s ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that SAJIDA has access
to resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the SAJIDA’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

3.07

Transition of accounting policies

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Changes n accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 will generally be applied retrospectively.
However, SAJIDA has taken advantage of the exemption allowing it not to restate comparative information for
prior periods with respect to classification and measurement (including impairment) changes.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and Related Interpretations and it applies to
all revenue arising from contracts with customers, unless those contracts are in the scope of other standards.
The new standard establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The standard requires entities to
exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying
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each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also specifies the accounting for the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a contract.
Most of the revenue items of SAJIDA are out-of-scope as these are subject to other standards like IFRS 9.
Recognition of revenue for the remaining revenue items, which are in scope for IFRS 15, does not change
when the five-step model is applied. Based on the assessment made, implementation of this standard has no
impact on the financial statements. The accounting policies relating to the recognition of revenue is separately
presented in note 4.02.
3.08

Standards issued but not yet effective

IFRS 16 LEASES

IFRS 16 specifies how an entity will recognize, measure, present and disclose leases. The standard provides a
single lease accounting model, requiring leases to recognize assets and liabilities for most leases with exceptions
for leases with a term of 12 months or less or if the underlying asset has a low value. IFRS 16 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. A lessee can choose to apply the standard using either
a full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The standard’s transition provisions permit certain
reliefs.
SAJIDA will elect to use the exemptions proposed by the standard on lease contracts for which the lease terms
ends within 12 months as of the date of initial application, and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is
of low value.
SAJIDA’s corporate headquarters, regional offices and branches are leased and these leases are classified as
operating leases, which under IFRS 16 may be required to be recognized on SAJIDA’s statement of financial
position. SAJIDA is performing a preliminary assessment of the potential impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 on
its financial statements. The standard may have an impact on the financial statements. The nature and timing of
expenses related to those leases will change as IFRS 16 replaces the straight-line operating lease expense with a
depreciation charge for right of use assets and interest expense on lease liabilities.
3.09

Correction of errors

Accounting of Psychological Health and Wellness Centre Ltd. (PHWC)
SAJIDA Foundation established a company in the name of “Psychological Health and Wellness Centre Limited”
in the year 2017. The authorized share capital of the company is Tk. 30,000,000 (three crores only) divided
in to 300,000 (three lacs only) ordinary shares of Tk. 100 (one hundred only) each. The paid-up capital of the
company is Tk. 49,01,900 divided in to 49,019 shares of Tk. 100 each. SAJIDA holds 25,000 shares @ Tk.100 each
which is 51% of total share capital. The investment was recognized in equity method in the financial statements
in last year. But in accordance with IAS 27, as per policy described in note 5.06, this investment is recognized at
cost in current year as well as in previous years retrospectively.
The error has been corrected in accordance with IAS 08 by restating each of the affected financial statement line
items for the prior periods.

4.00

Summary of significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies followed in the preparation and presentation of these financial statements
are summarized below:

4.01

Currencies
The financial statements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka (BDT) which is SAJIDA’s functional currency. All
financial information presented in Bangladesh Taka (BDT) has been rounded off to the nearest Taka.

4.02

Revenue recognition
The is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to SAJIDA and the revenue
can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
considering contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties. SAJIDA has

128

SAJIDA Foundation Annual Report 2018-19

concluded that it is principal in all its revenue arrangements.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Service charge on loans
In accordance with IFRS 9, income is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income based on the
effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, SAJIDA estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument. The
calculation includes all amounts paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate of a financial instrument including transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Rebate on service charge
Special rebate is given to beneficiaries on advance payment of loan installment.

Interest on saving deposits
Interests on saving accounts and fixed deposits are recognized as the interest is accrued unless collectability is
in doubt.

Income from Investment
Income from investment is recognized when SAJIDA’s right to receive the payment is established. This income
from investment is shown separately in the note 29 of the financial statements.

Other income
All other incomes are recognized when SAJIDA’s right to receive such income has been reasonably determined
and all conditions precedent is satisfied.
Revenue from different segments/activities are separately presented in Annexure C.

4.03

Expenses

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that SAJIDA incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred in accordance with IAS 23,
except where such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset, in which case these costs are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest paid on savings of beneficiaries
Interest paid on savings is accounted for on accrual basis and shown as expenses in the related period.

Program expenses
Program related expenses arise from goods and services being distributed to beneficiaries in accordance with
the program objectives and activities.
No recurrent expenditure has been charged to the fund account.
4.04

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost in accordance with IAS 16. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if, and only if all the following conditions are
met:




It is probable that future economic benefits will flow to SAJIDA Foundation
The cost of the item can be measured reliably and exceeds Tk. 5,000
It is expected to be used for more than one year
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Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged for
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives at the following annual rates. Provided that when the
depreciated value of an item becomes nil, SAJIDA’s policy is to assign Tk.1 value for recognition of the asset.
Group of PPE

Annual depreciation rate (%)

Building
Furniture & fixtures
Equipment -IT and Medical
Equipment
Vehicles
Bicycles
Motorcycles
Software

2.5 to 5
10
33.33
15
15
15
15
33.33

Subsequent recognition
The cost of replacing part of an item of property or equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item,
if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the organization and its
cost reliably measured. The cost of the day to day servicing of the property, plant & equipment is recognized in
the statement of income and expenditure as incurred expenditure.

Sale of property, plant and equipment
Sale price of property, plant and equipment are determined based on fair value of the assets. Gain or losses on
sale of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the statement of income and expenditure incurred as
per provision of “IAS-16, property, plant and equipment.”
4.05

Capital work-in-progress
Property, plant and equipment under construction/acquisition have been accounted for as capital work-inprogress until construction/acquisition is completed.
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost and not depreciated. Depreciation on capital work-in-progress
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

4.06

Impairment of Financial Assets
The previous ‘incurred loss’ model under IAS 39 delayed the recognition of credit losses until there was a trigger
event which resulted in a mismatch in timing of the recognition of interest income and charge of credit loss of
a particular financial instrument. IFRS 9 adopts an expected loss model for impairment of financial assets which
provides users of financial statements with more useful information about an entity’s expected credit losses on
financial instruments. The model requires an entity to recognize expected credit losses (‘ECL’) at all times and to
update the amount of expected credit losses recognized at each reporting date to reflect changes in the credit
risk of financial instruments.

Measurement of expected credit loss/loan loss provision
IFRS 9 does not prescribe measurement methods. Also, an entity may use various sources of data that may
be internal (entity-specific) and external. For the measurement of ECL, IFRS 9 distinguishes between three
impairment stages. All loans need to be allocated to one of these stages. Stage 1 loans are loans where since
inception no significant increase in credit risk occurred (12M ECL), while stage 2 loans are those loans where
since inception credit risk has significantly increased (lifetime ECL). Stage 3 loans are so-called credit-impaired
loans.

Approach taken by SAJIDA
SAJIDA has calculated ECL for its loan portfolios following the approach described in note 5.01.
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Cost allocation policy between Microfinance and Development Program
SAJIDA uses an allocation methodology and ensures each project or program is charged with its fair share of
shared costs, and to provide compliance with rules and regulations. Expenses of the management employees
are booked based on involvement of the individual in respective project or program. Direct expenses of the
support departments are booked based on their activities in respective projects or programs. Utility bills and
other expenses are charged to the projects or programs based on the actual space utilization or relevant head
count by respective projects or programs or as per management guidance.

5.00

Significant organizational policies

5.01

Loan loss provision
SAJIDA reviews its non-performing loans at every month end to assess the adequacy of the allowance for credit
loss as recorded in the statement of comprehensive income. Due to the nature of the business, i.e. micro credit
to low-income clients, the loan portfolio consists of a very high number of individual customers with a relativelvy
low number of individual outstanding exposures.
SAJIDA uses a provisioning methodology as prescribed by the regulator. SAJIDA records a provision for credit
loss based on a percentage of outstanding loans with percentages increasing as loans are outstanding for a
longer period. At the end of every month, SAJIDA calculates required provision for loan loss based on the loan
classification and provisioning methodology which is shown below and any adjustment, if required, are made
and accounted for in the financial statements:

Loan classification

Days in arrears

Provision required (%)

Regular

Current (no arrears)

1

Watchful

1 - 30

5

Sub-standard

31 - 180

25

Doubtful

181 - 365

75

Bad

Over 365

100

Loans written off
The write-off of loans, if necessary, are charged against the provision for loan losses. Loans within their maturity
period are classified as “regular loan”. Loan which remains outstanding after their maturity period are classified
as per prescribed methodology. Generally, loans are written off in every quarter. Any collections realized from
loans previously written off are credited to the statement of income and expenditure.
Loan loss provision and expenses regarding the loan losses are shown separately in the financial statement.
5.02

Loan to beneficiaries
SAJIDA’s activities include providing micro credit to group and individual members without collateral, on service
charge basis under various programs and recognize this as financial instrument in accordance with
IFRS 09.
SAJIDA’s core micro credit program is implemented through Group Model, whereby members form a group of
five, and subsequently form Centre composed of roughly six groups. Centre meetings are held each week/ month
by field/ credit officers (F/CO). At such meetings, members can submit loan application, make loan repayment
and deposit savings. Target clients are identified on the basis of sex, age and household income, after which
interested persons are invited for group discussion regarding SAJIDA’s micro credit products and regulations.
This represents various loans outstanding with the clients in the following categories:

Suchona-Jagoron Loan
This is to allow rural and urban people to finance their economic activities. Jagoron Loans are working capital
loans given to poor and disadvantaged households. Jagoron ranges from Tk. 20,000 up to Tk. 74,000 are given
for refund within one year and service charge 25% (declining rate) per year, grace period is 15-30 days.
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Suchona-Pragrosor Loan
This category of loan allows members to borrow from BDT 75,000 to BDT 149,000 which repaid within 12-24
months. All persons availing the Pragroshor loan are eligible for the Agrosor or Special Loan if a. They had maintained all stipulations within the scope of the loan and had paid their loan premiums in a timely
fashion.
b. They had availed the Pragrosor loan at least twice
Members of other microfinance organizations who have a history of following rules and regulations or previous
members of SAJIDA Foundation with good records are eligible to avail this loan as well. The member must present
his/ her passbook/ a copy of subsidiary ledger/ transaction record/ and any other relevant documentation in
order to avail such loan. The member must also be able to prove that s/he has a minimum of a year’s experience
in the area which they would use the loanThese loans have a declining service charge
of 25%.

Agrosor Loan (Microenterprise)
Loans falling within the scope of Agrosor includes Agrosor, Migration, Remittance and are ranged within Tk.
1,50,000 and Tk. 10,00,000. These loans must be repaid within one of four payment periods: 12/15/18/24
months and have a declining service charge of 22%-25%. Agrosor Loans can be taken by both group and individual
members. However, the Migration, Remittance or Service Holder Welfare Loans are not available for groups.

Sonali Loans
These loans can fall within the scope of any of the prior mentioned loans only for individual member with
the exception that loans falling within this category exceed Tk. 10,00,000 and would need to be repaid within
12/15/18/21/24/33/36 months. Loans falling within the scope of the Agrosor and Pragrosor loans must have
a record of having taken loans within the scope of those loans at least twice previously. All investments and
businesses undertaken with this loan within 12-36 months and development of fixed assets such as building/
repairing homes, buying land, taking mortgages etc. should be completed within 36 months. It is proposed
that it would be better to take loans for periods less than 18 months on investments that do not involve the
development of fixed assets. The Migration/ Remittance or Service holder welfare loans are not available for
groups. These loans have a declining service charge up-to 20%.

Agriculture Loan
This loan is provided to marginalized farmers at a declining service charge of 19%- 25% with the view to support
cereal crop cultivation, seasonal farming, dairy or cattle rearing, fish culture, the purchase of agricultural
machineries or any agriculture related activities. The loan ceiling is maximum BDT 74,000, can be taken individually
or as group for 12-36 month duration. Repayment is through weekly, bi-weekly, or monthly instalments. Clients
are also allowed to take seasonal loans just after 3 months to meet emergency expenses.

KGF-Sufolon loan
This loan is exclusive for agriculture, enterprise, livestock etc. activities and is designated to increase the farm
and business activities. The seasonal loan also enhances “Social Food Security Net” of the households. Seasonal
loan ranges up to from Tk. 5,000 to Tk. 3,00,000 are given for Agri Production. Repayment within 3-12 months
and service charge 19-25% (declining rate) per year.

Small and Marginal Sized Farmers Agricultural Productivity Improvement and
Diversification Financing Project (SMAP)
This loan is exclusive for agricultural productivity and diversity of the small and marginal farmers through
providing agricultural loan and technical support service. This loan is ranges from Tk. 5,000 to Tk. 2,00,000.
Maturity of sub-loans range is from 3 months to 2 years. Short term loans less than 1 year have grace period of
1 month and the loans exceeding a year have a grace period of 3-6 months.

Ultra-Poor Loan (Buniad)
This product specifically targets the ultra-poor who have no particular source of income or livelihood. Any man
or woman identified as ultra-poor on the basis of these criteria can avail this loan at declining service charge
15-20%. Loan ceiling is highest at Tk. 60,000 with repayment through weekly, bi-weekly or monthly instalments.
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Water and Sanitation Loan
SAJIDA offers water and sanitation loan for improved access to water and sanitation. The loan amount varies
between Tk. 5,000 to Tk. 1,25,000 with declining service charge of 25%. Borrowers are encouraged to partially
invest in the cost of installing or repairing facilities with their own funds. This loan is eligible for both groups and
individuals.

Health and Emergency Loan
Emergency Loan is provided for health and other emergencies amounting from 5,000 to Tk. 60,000 with a 15%
declining service charge and is repayable through 24 monthly installments after a one to three months grace
period.

Migration loan
This loan is exclusively disbursed to migrant people for going abroad. The migration loan ranges Tk. 1,50,000 to
Tk. 5,00,000. Repayment within 1-2 year and service charge 22-25% (declining rate) per year.

Remittance loan
This loan is exclusively disbursed to migrant people are staying abroad. The Remittance loan ranges Tk. 1,50,000
to Tk. 5,00,000. Repayment within 1-2 year and service charge 22-25% (declining rate) per year.

5.03

Policy on savings collection
There are three types of member’s savings:




Compulsory Savings
Voluntary Savings (SAMRIDDHI)
Voluntary Savings (Astha)

Compulsory savings
SAJIDA’s Microfinance Program has a mandatory savings provision, with a view to facilitating and encouraging
savings by Centre Members/ Individual Member. The interest rate on mandatory savings is 6%. Savings amounts
are decided at the centre level with a minimum weekly savings requirement of Tk. 75. Each centre members
deposits a minimum of Tk. 75 in a weekly meeting, 300-400 in a monthly meeting. During the first loan period
members are unable to withdraw savings. For consecutive loans members are eligible to withdrawal savings as
long as they maintain a savings balance of 7.5% of the loan amount. This savings is to be mentioned in the pass
book, subsidiary ledger, general ledger individually/ separately.
While savings differ from member to member, the minimum agreed upon saving must be Tk. 75 a month. For
the first loan period, it is mandatory for the client to retain 2.5% of the total loan amount in savings and s/he is
unable to withdraw the saving. For those who had already availed loans, they are able to draw from the savings
as long as they maintain a balance of 2.5% of the total disbursed loan amount.
The savings can be withdrawn if following incidents happen:
1. Death of the member
2. Disabilities of the member by accident
3. Death of principal earning member of the family
4. Suffering from incurable diseases
5. Marriage of daughter etc.
The entire amount of savings deposits of a centre member or individual will be refunded when the member
retires or is terminated from membership.
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Voluntary Savings (SAMRIDDHI)
SAJIDA implemented an optional savings program called SAMRIDDHI. The interest on this program is 9%
annually, compounded monthly. The special savings account is like a current account. Beneficiaries can save
monthly one time or withdraw the amount on demand. This savings stands for those who deposit voluntarily
beyond their regular savings. The minimum depositing amount of this fund is Tk. 200 and maximum depositing
amount is Tk. 10,000. This special savings is to be mentioned in the pass book, subsidiary ledger and general
ledger individually. While refunding the special savings the beneficiaries have to come to office and complete
the required process for withdrawal.

Voluntary Savings (Astha)
SAJIDA offers another voluntary fixed deposit savings product called Astha Tk. 5,000 minimum to any amount.
The interest rate of Astha savings is min 9.25%.
Interest on saving deposits are separately presented in the financial statement.
5.04

Grants/Donation accounting
Grants are recognized as income in accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 20, “Accounting for
Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance”, over the periods necessary to match them with
the corresponding costs as incurred.
Income from donor grants is recognized when conditions on which they depend have been met. Substantially,
SAJIDA’s donor grants are for the funding of projects and programs, and for these grants, income is recognized
to equate the expenditure incurred on projects and programs. For donor grants which involve funding for
fixed assets, grant income is recognized as the amount equivalent to depreciation expenses charged on the
fixed assets concerned. All donor grants received are initially recorded at fair value as liabilities in Grants
Received in Advance Account. For grants utilized to purchase fixed assets, the donor grants are transferred to
deferred income accounts whilst for grants utilized to reimburse program-related expenditure, the amounts are
recognized as income. Income recognition of such grants follows that of cash-based donor grants and would
thus depend on whether the grants are to be utilized for the purchase of fixed assets or spent as program-related
expenditure. For ongoing projects and programs, any expenditure yet to be funded but for which funding has
been agreed upon at the end of the reporting period is recognized as grant receivable.
The amount of donation received from the donors during the period for the projects are separately presented
in Annexure D.

5.05

Provision for liabilities
Provisions for liabilities are recognized in accordance with IAS 37 when SAJIDA has a present obligation as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the best current estimate. Where the effect of the time value
of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required
to settle the obligation.

5.06

Investment in subsidiaries
In the separate financial statements, in accordance with IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements, investment in
subsidiaries is accounted for at cost. No gain or loss is recognized in respect of fair value of such investments.
SAJIDA applied the same accounting policy for its all subsidiaries.

5.07

Investment in FDR and interest income recognition
Interest earned on investment in Fixed Deposit Receipts (FDR) before maturity date is recognized as income
on accrual basis. When FDR reached in maturity date, Investment in FDRs debited, and receivable interest is
credited.

5.08

Inventories
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Retail inventories are stated at cost in accordance with IAS 02. The cost of inventories includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition. Provision is
made for obsolete or slow-moving items, to reduce their carrying amounts to net realizable value. Inventories
are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories comprised all cost of purchase,
cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Expenditure is recognized at the moment when such inventory is delivered or consumed; obsolete inventories
are written off. In case of write off of inventories; such amount is recognized as an expense in the period.

5.09

Employees’ provident fund
SAJIDA maintains recognized contributory provident fund for its eligible permanent employees. The fund
is operated by the Board of Trustee. All confirmed employees are contributing 10% of their basic salary as
subscription of the fund. SAJIDA also contributes equal amount of the employees’ contribution to the fund each
month. Interest earned from the investment is credited to the employees’ accounts on a yearly basis and this
fund is audited every year by a Chartered Accountants Firm.

5.10

Employees’ gratuity fund
SAJIDA makes provision for an Employee Gratuity fund, on the basis of two months basic salary for each
completed year in employment (based on basic salary of the last month). Gratuity is disbursed upon retirement
or resignation of employees provided the employee has completed five years’ service at the rate of one month’s
basic salary last drawn for each completed year of service. After the employee has completed Seven years
uninterrupted service the gratuity is disbursed at the rate of one and half month basic salary for each completed
year, based on the final salary drawn. After the employee has completed Ten years uninterrupted service the
gratuity is disbursed at the rate of two-month basic salary for each completed year, based on the final salary
drawn.

5.11

Staff Group Insurance
As part of SAJIDA’s continuous and dedicated efforts to prioritize the health and wellbeing of SAJIDA’s employees,
the Foundation has introduced a Life and Health Insurance for all full-time staff effective from 1st May 2019.
SAJIDA Foundation signed an agreement with Pragati Life Insurance in May 2019. This inclusive insurance
package will not only provide health and life insurance for employees, but also cover their immediate family
members. The family will be able to avail financial benefits of up to BDT 400,000 per year (Taka 100,000 per each
family member) if receiving medical services from a licensed hospital. The insurance ensures death coverage
in this manner - 50 monthly salaries in case of natural causes of death and 100 monthly salaries in case of
accidental death.

5.12

Taxation and VAT
Under the Income Tax Ordinance (ITO), 1984 as amended, SAJIDA is subject to taxation for some of its enterprise
incomes and dividend incomes. As per 6th Schedule, Part-A, para-1A of ITO 1984, Income from Microfinance
activities is tax exempted. SAJIDA submits its return for tax for the organization SAJIDA as a whole and TIN
Number is 829491386477/Circle 101 (Companies) Dhaka.
Under the Value Added Tax Act, 1991, VAT Registration Number is, for Head Office 18121028263 for Keranigonj
Hospital 90203-9071058432 and for Narayangonj Hospital 210504-21021002315. Under Value Added Tax and
Supplementary Duty Act, 2012, SAJIDA obtained a central registration on 12 August 2018 vide BIN 001335028.

5.13

Financial instruments other than loan to beneficiaries/members
Financial instruments are recognized in accordance with IFRS 09 in the statement of financial position when
SAJIDA becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Receivables
Receivables are carried at anticipated realizable values. Bad debts are written off when identified and an
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estimate is made for doubtful debts based on a review of all outstanding amounts as at the balance sheet date.

Payables
Payables are stated at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and
services received.

Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-bearing bank loans, overdrafts and securitized financing are recorded at the amount of proceeds
received, net of transactions costs. For borrowings made specifically for the purpose of acquiring a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalization is the actual borrowing costs incurred on that
borrowing during the period less any investment income on the temporary investments of funds drawdown
from that borrowing facility. All borrowing costs are recognized as per policy described in note 4.03.
The carrying values of these financial instruments approximate their fair values due to their short-term maturities.
5.14

Statement of cash flows
Statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with the International Accounting Standard IAS-7,
‘Statement of Cash Flows’ under indirect method.

5.15

Events after the reporting period
There have been no material events, after the reporting date, that may affect the financial statements that
require disclosure or adjustment in accordance with IAS 10.

5.16

Prevention of Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing
SAJIDA Foundation fully comply the guidelines of Prevention of Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing for all
the transactions. SAJIDA Foundation makes payment through bank transfer and A/C payee cheque. Any transfer
above taka one lac is made through banking channel. SAJIDA has a Money Laundering policy. As per policy “Chief
AML/CFT Compliance Officer (CAMLCO)” and Branch AML/CFT Compliance Officer BAMLCO regularly monitor
the transactions and ensure all transactions are transacted and recorded properly.
Amount in BDT
Notes

6.00

30.06.2019

30.06.2018

Property, plant and equipment
Opening balance cost

523,404,090

489,752,008

Add: Acquisition during the year

88,776,628

52,234,358

Less: Adjustment/write-off during the year

16,926,626

18,582,276

Property, plant and equipment at cost

595,254,092

523,404,090

Less: Accumulated depreciation as on 01.07.18

153,959,929

140,485,771

Less: Depreciation charged duringthe year

34,012,277

27,398,439

Less: Adjustment/write-off during the year

12,597,383

13,924,281

Accumulated depreciation as on 30.06.19

175,374,823

153,959,929

419,879,269

369,444,161

A schedule of property, plant and equipment is given in Annexure-A
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Amount in BDT
Notes
7.00

30.06.2019

30.06.2018

Capital work in progress
Opening balance

154,704,040

105,462,900

22,062,578

49,241,140

(17,241,288)

-

159,525,330

154,704,040

Opening balance

14,478,927

3,630,770

Add: Addition during the year

15,136,553

20,464,668

(12,981,606)

(9,616,511)

16,633,874

14,478,927

Add: Addition during the year
Less: Adjustment / write-off during the year

A Training Centre is under construction at Mouchak, Gazipur.
8.00

Deferred expenditure

Less: Amortization during the year

SAJIDA Foundation is maintaining two hospitals, microfinance, elder care and inner circle program in rental
building. Due to requirement of program operation, renovation work and surgical equipment needed in every
year. Yearly renovation expenses considered as deferred expenditure. Amortize yearly on the basis of 1/3 of
addition during the year.
9.00

9.01

Investment in related undertaking
Investment in Renata Limited

9.01

32,546,389

32,546,389

Investment in PHWC Limited

9.02

35,154,671

20,489,671

67,701,060

53,036,060

32,546,389

32,546,389

32,546,389

32,546,389

Investment in Renata Limited
Shares at cost

SAJIDA Foundation purchased 2,155,390 shares of Tk. 10 each of Renata Limited from Pfizer Corporation for Tk.
32,546,389 (Tk. 15.10 per share) vide agreement between Pfizer Corporation and SAJIDA Foundation dated 07
July 1993. As at 30 June 2019 SAJIDA Foundation holds total 4,10,72,848 shares including 3,89,17,458 bonus
shares received to date. Market value of such shares on 30th June 2019 is Tk. 49,221,701,043 (Tk. 1,198.40 per
share). SAJIDA owns 51% share of Renata Limited.
Investment in PHWC Limited
Shares at cost

2,500,000

2,500,000

Loan opening Balance

17,989,671

-

Add: Loan paid during the year

14,665,000

17,989,671

35,154,671

20,489,671
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The Authorized Share Capital of the Company Tk. 3,00,00,000 (three crore) divided in to 3,00,000 (three lac)
ordinary share of Tk. 100 (one hundred) each. The Paid-up Capital of the Company Tk. 49,01,900 divided in to
49,019 share of Tk. 100 each. SAJIDA Purchases 25,000 share @ Tk.100 each which is 51% of total share capital.
Dr Ashique Selim Purchases 100 share @ Tk.100 each and 16,076 shares allocated for a consideration other than
cash as goodwill of service, total share 16,176 which is 33% of total share capital. Onward Consultation Services
Ltd. Purchases 100 share @ Tk.100 each and 7,743 shares allocated for a consideration other than cash as goodwill of service, total share 7,843 which is 16% of total share capital.
An Agreement signed between SAJIDA and PHWC Ltd. Dated 14th December 2017 for payment loan to PHWC
Ltd. to meet its establishment and operational cost @ 8% effective interest on the date of disbursement amount.
Agreement period from 14th December 2017 to 30th June 2020.
Amount in BDT
Notes
10.00

30.06.2019

30.06.2018

Investment in Securities and Others
Security market

10.01

6,722,522

6,652,666

Post office savings bank

10.02

-

4,040,000

6,722,522

10,692,666

6,652,666

6,148,437

69,856

504,229

6,722,522

6,652,666

Opening balance

4,040,000

4,040,000

Less: Encashment during the year

4,040,000

-

-

4,040,000

PSB savings fund

-

2,020,000

PSB savings fund

-

2,020,000

-

4,040,000

A Training Centre is under construction at Mouchak, Gazipur.
10.01

Security market
Opening balance
Add: Addition during the year profit

10.02

Post office savings bank

Post office savings bank

SAJIDA Foundation invested an amount of Tk. 4,040,000 in Post Office Savings Bank (POSB) Account broken down
as Members savings fund account Tk. 2,020,000 and Loan Loss Provision Fund Account Tk. 2,020,000 respectively
in Dhaka GPO. We have received PSB Deposit amount with interest up to 19th May 2010 (Written petition
submission date in Supreme Court of Bangladesh against GPO.) We have submitted a letter to Post Master General
to give interest as of 9th June 2019.
11.00

Loan to members
Opening balance

11,855,466,311

7,492,562,311

Add: Addition during the year

24,863,354,461

19,489,354,500

Less: Realized during the year

(21,709,592,342)

(15,107,814,688)

(28,996,234)

(18,635,812)

14,980,232,196

11,855,466,311

Less: Write-off
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Amount in BDT
Notes
12.00

30.06.2019

30.06.2018

Short Term Investment
Fixed deposits:
Opening balance

535,172,724

715,655,561

Add: Addition during the year

781,582,115

563,170,675

(656,704,939)

(743,653,511)

660,049,900

535,172,724

Members’ savings fund (microfinance)

352,052,048

302,192,360

Surplus fund (microfinance)

212,456,250

150,000,000

Poor fund (own fund)

450,000

450,000

Scholarship fund (own fund)

300,000

300,000

90,311,750

53,150,000

Insurance fund (Nirapotta)

-

24,835,911

Institute of Health Science

1,406,596

2,139,374

Members' savings fund (Amrao Manush)

3,073,256

2,105,079

660,049,900

535,172,724

Interest on fixed deposits

10,747,228

4,551,699

Grant receivables

13,230,369

9,096,363

Other receivables

253,625,524

3,316,082

277,603,121

16,964,143

Employees, suppliers and Others

39,757,611

17,359,383

Office rent

29,206,125

28,367,932

Security deposits

19,837,458

13,908,300

88,801,194

59,635,615

140,871,448

104,696,255

37,766,398

36,175,193

178,637,847

140,871,448

Less: Encashment during the year

Fixed deposits:

Dividend fund (own fund)

13.00

14.00

15.00

Grants and accounts receivables

Advance, deposits and prepayments

Advance income tax
Opening balance
Add: Addition during the year
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Amount in BDT
Notes
16.00

11,787,823

13,186,692

143,344,082

101,440,447

62,640

293,587

155,194,545

114,920,726

4,782,093

5,484,531

62,130

85,947

724,826

436,053

5,569,049

6,006,531

Cash in hand

22,895,757

41,045,458

Cash at bank

631,686,988

332,406,279

654,582,745

373,451,737

2,332,661,136

1,776,533,232

Add: Net surplus for the year

694,860,391

574,264,262

Add: Prior years adjustment, Short (Excess) provision

162,747,269

8,777,860

-

12,093,111

(62,806,311)

(39,007,329)

3,127,462,485

2,332,661,136

205,360,753

143,279,548

995,683

270,577

-

3,370,542

1,888

3,347,711

-

408,938

Durud sharif fund

(121,488)

47,637

Poor fund

1,382,539

487,979

Scholarship fund

1,034,191

387,598

691,266

159,133

3,726,944

2,200,102

213,071,776

153,959,765

Motor cycle loan
Bi-cycle loan

Inventories
Stock of medicine
Optical frame
Health instrument

18.00

19.00

Cash and cash equivalents

Capital fund
Opening balance

Add: Transferred from Nirapotta reserve fund
Less: Transferred to MF reserve fund

20.00

30.06.2018

Staff loans and Advance
Staff loan

17.00

30.06.2019

Reserve fund and others
Reserve fund (microfinance)
Reserve fund (Nirapotta)
Capacity Building Fund (MF-KGF)
Staff security fund (IHS)
Motor cycle risk fund

Amrao Manush fund
Disaster fund

20.01
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Amount in BDT
Notes
20.01

30.06.2019

30.06.2018

Reserve fund (microfinance)
Opening balance
Add: Transferred from Capital Fund

143,279,548

104,272,219

62,081,205

39,007,329

205,360,753

143,279,548

In compliance with MRA rules No.20 Page no. 421, SAJIDA Foundation makes reserve 10% of cumulative
Microfinance Program surplus of cut off date and invest in FDR against the reserve fund.
21.00

Term loans
Non-current Portion
Palli Karma Shahayak Foundation (PKSF)

21.01

460,716,664

394,833,331

Bangladesh Bank (SMAP)

21.03

250,000,000

170,000,000

710,716,664

564,833,331

Current Portion

21.01

Palli Karma Shahayak Foundation (PKSF)

21.02

506,950,000

412,499,999

Bangladesh Bank (SMAP) and other banks

21.04

8,565,871,572

6,707,694,066

9,072,821,572

7,120,194,065

Opening balance

394,833,331

335,333,330

Add: Received during the year

610,000,000

492,500,000

1,004,833,331

827,833,330

(37,166,667)

(20,500,000)

(506,950,000)

(412,499,999)

460,716,664

394,833,331

Opening balance

412,499,999

401,166,670

Add: Payable during the year

506,950,000

412,499,999

919,449,999

813,666,669

(412,499,999)

(401,166,670)

506,950,000

412,499,999

Palli Karma Shahayak Foundation (PKSF)
Non-current Portion

Less: Repayments during the year
Less: Payable within one year

21.02

Palli Karma Shahayak Foundation (PKSF)
Current Portion

Less: Paid during the year

Borrowing from Palli Karma Sahayak Foundation (PKSF) 					
Jagoron, Agrosor, Sufolon loan (Seasonal and agriculture) , KGF-Sufolon and IGA loan are taken from PKSF and the
duration of those loan is three years with a grace period of six months. The loan is repaid to the Funding agency on
quarterly basis with a declining balance method of interest @ 7.5%. Livelihood and Assets creation loans are taken
from PKSF and the duration of those loan 2.5 and 3.5 years. The loan is repaid to the Funding agency on quarterly
basis with a declining balance method of interest @ 2%. Buniad loan is taken from PKSF and the duration of this
loan is two years. The loan is repaid to the funding agency on quarterly basis with a declining balance method of
interest of 1%.
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Amount in BDT
Notes
21.03

30.06.2019

30.06.2018

Bangladesh Bank (SMAP)
Non-current Portion

21.04

Opening balance

170,000,000

90,000,000

Add: Received during the year

400,000,000

170,000,000

570,000,000

260,000,000

Less: Refunded during the year

(170,000,000)

-

Less: Payable within one year

(150,000,000)

(90,000,000)

250,000,000

170,000,000

6,707,694,066

3,778,356,935

35,089,448,243

6,707,694,066

150,000,000

90,000,000

41,947,142,309

10,576,051,001

(33,381,270,738)

(3,868,356,935)

8,565,871,572

6,707,694,066

Bangladesh Bank (SMAP) and other banks
Current Portion
Opening balance
Add: Received during the year
Add: Payable during the year
Less: Paid during the year

Borrowing from commercial banks					
Loans from commercial banks are taken for Jagoron, Agrosor, Sufolon and Buniad component disbursement and
the duration of this loan is six month to one year.
22.00

Deferred income
Opening balance

5,730,889

5,094,886

Add: Fund used for property, plant and equipment for the year

2,929,995

1,716,225

(1,176,566)

(1,028,070)

(455,381)

(52,152)

7,028,937

5,730,889

Opening balance

339,762,084

151,227,851

Provision made during the year

331,854,398

207,223,604

-

(53,559)

(31,271,650)

(18,635,812)

640,344,832

339,762,084

Non-Current Portion (365+ days)

300,232,927

97,034,282

Current Portion

340,111,905

242,727,802

640,344,832

339,762,084

Less: Amortization
Less: Adjusted with donor Fund/write-off

23.00

Loan loss provision

Less: Adjustment with other income
Less: Written off during the year

-
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Amount in BDT
30.06.2019

30.06.2018

Opening balance

3,022,482,639

2,367,023,691

Deposits during the year

2,702,832,857

2,370,517,421

(2,267,251,382)

(1,875,070,097)

199,940,242

160,011,624.00

3,658,004,356

3,022,482,639

Ashtha Savings (Fixed Deposit)

326,898,331

134,351,918

Special Savings (Monthly)

488,929,594

425,074,689

1,942,246

1,897,457

817,770,171

561,324,064

2,840,234,185

2,461,158,575

2,840,234,185

2,461,158,575

Notes
24.00

Member savings deposits

Withdrawals during the year
Interest credited

Non-Current Portion:

Savings (Amrao Manush Project)

Current Portion:
Mandatory Savings (microfinance)

25.00

Grants received in advance
Opening balance

37,039,202

16,121,969

129,142,951

144,564,892

10,832,760

-

Bank interest received

251,698

325,746

Other income

271,680

695,605

(155,326,782)

(124,056,436)

(2,566,497)

(1,716,225)

-

5,529

19,645,012

35,941,080

(5,373,577)

(7,998,240)

14,271,435

27,942,840

12,918,017

9,096,363

27,189,452

37,039,202

171,548,453

85,753,666

Security deposits

2,350,000

2,430,000

Accounts payable

39,382,943

39,103,607

VAT and income tax

775,533

526,639

Loan with gratuity fund

557,604

368,067

Loan with provident fund

(80,771)

-

Loan with SSS

(41,184)

-

214,492,577

128,181,978

Received during the year
SAJIDA Contribution

Less: Transferred to grant income
Less: Fund used for property, plant and equipment for the year
Less: property, plant and equipment write-off for the year
Less: Last year grant receivable adjustment
Add: Receivable as on 30 June 2019

26.00

28.00

Other current liabilities
Provision for expenses
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Amount in BDT
30.06.2019

30.06.2018

3,344,603,464

2,194,176,027

8,698,363

6,069,112

585,476

1,235,800

95,707,489

110,674,878

3,449,594,793

2,312,155,817

155,326,782

124,056,436

Bank interest received

(251,697)

(325,746)

Other income

(246,026)

(695,605)

Amortization of deferred
income-investment in PPE

1,176,565

714,325

-

679,947

156,005,624

124,429,357

339,298,209

279,513,815.78

119,920

80,500.00

339,418,129

279,594,316

331,854,398

207,223,604

Depreciation

34,012,277

27,398,439

Amortization on deferred expenses

12,981,606

9,616,511

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

1,047,339

121,124

Assets disposal/accumulated depreciation

3,169,736

3,253,295

99,940,958

(22,968,150)

483,006,314

224,644,823

Notes
27.00

Income from Microfinance
Microfinance Service charge
Sale of pass books & admission fees
Visa verification fee
Nirapotta Service Fee

28.00

Donor grants
Transferred from grants as expenses

Other fund expenses

29.00

Income from Investment
Income from investment (Dividend-Renata Ltd.)
Security market

30.00

25.00

Non-cash items
Loan loss provision expenses

Prior Year adjustments

489,752,008

Closing balance as on
30.06.2018

52,234,358

88,776,628

3,222,514

448,981

-

31,433,626

21,555,801

-

32,115,706

Additions
during the
year

-

-

18,582,276

16,926,626

-

406,816

10,028,488

4,801,237

1,690,085

Disposals
during the
year

523,404,090

595,254,092

18,652,249

1,169,936

54,613,472

150,872,842

66,226,601

17,702,682

286,016,310

Closing
balance
30-06-2019

33.33%

15%

15%

15 to 33.33%

10%

2.5% - 5%

Rate

as at 30 June 2019

-

140,485,771

153,959,929

11,450,959

542,092

43,282,473

82,564,309

14,333,429

1,786,667

Opening
balance
01-07-2018
-

27,398,439

34,012,277

3,246,593

130,712

5,641,639

19,121,724

5,314,566

557,043

Charged
during the
year

13,924,281

12,597,383

-

176,907

7,472,648

4,087,745

769,511

90,572

-

Adjustment
for disposals
during the
year

Depreciation

-

153,959,929

175,374,823

14,697,552

495,897

41,451,464

97,598,288

18,878,484

2,253,138

Closing
balance
30-06-2019

369,444,161

419,879,269

3,954,697

674,039

13,162,008

53,274,554

47,348,117

15,449,544

286,016,310

Written down
value as at
30-06-2019

Annexure - A

During the year, an amount of Tk. 11,76,565 has been transferred to the statement of income and expenditure from Deferred income - investment in property, plant and equipment to cover
the depreciation charge for donor funded property, plant and equipment as disclosed in Note 28

523,404,090

15,429,735

1,127,771

64,641,960

Closing balance as on
30.06.2019

Software

Motor cycles

Vehicles

124,240,453

46,360,885

Furniture and fixtures

Equipment

17,702,682

253,900,604

Opening
balance
01-07-2018

Building

Land

Particulars

Particulars

SAJIDA Foundation

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Schedule of Property, Plant and Equipment

9,072,821,571
340,111,905
2,840,234,185
3,867,004
162,169,778
57,080,105
344,675,577

16,711,302,000

Total assets

12,820,960,125

Short term loans
Loan loss provision
Member savings deposits
Grants received in advance
Other current liabilities
Inter project payable
Inter project loan account

Current liabilities

710,716,664
300,232,927
815,827,925

1,826,777,516

Non-current liabilities

Term loans
Deferred income
Loan loss provision
Member savings deposits

1,857,207,923
206,356,436

2,063,564,359

Capital fund
Reserve fund and others

Funds

Fund and liabilities

16,711,302,000

14,980,232,196
564,508,297
258,514,368
42,291,632
16,819,361
154,865,052
117,259
605,737,700

Loan to members
Short term investment
Grants and accounts receivables
Advance, deposits and prepayments
Advance income tax
Staff loans and advance
Inventories
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

16,623,085,865

83,083,179
5,132,956
-

Property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress (Buildings)
Deferred expenditure
Investment in related undertaking
Investment in securities and others

Current assets

88,216,135

2019
Taka

13,023,287,073

7,120,194,065
242,727,802
2,461,158,575
4,167,324
117,080,085
397,684,008

10,343,011,859

564,833,331
97,034,282
559,426,607

1,221,294,220

1,309,457,022
149,523,972

1,458,980,994

13,023,287,073

11,855,466,311
477,028,271
8,896,891
30,782,417
13,482,422
113,799,510
616,665
314,554,883

12,814,627,370

68,609,746
36,009,957
4,040,000

208,659,703

2018
Taka

Microfinance Program

Non - current assets

Assets

as at 30 June 2019

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Segmental statement of financial position

SAJIDA Foundation

41,708,096

3,459,863
(954,044)
-

2,505,819

-

-

39,202,277
-

39,202,277

41,708,096

260,717
9,381,749
1,073,191
329,493
4,726,965
3,390,328

19,162,443

21,398,188
1,147,464
-

22,545,652

2019
Taka

42,445,898

2,784,385
-

2,784,385

-

-

39,372,525
288,989

39,661,514

42,445,898

336,554
10,224,177
973,105
962,928
4,953,813
1,473,915

18,924,492

22,418,437
1,102,969
-

23,521,406

2018
Taka

SAJIDA Hospital

29,576,526

3,643,660
201,562
2,256,000

6,101,222

-

-

23,473,416
1,888

23,475,304

29,576,526

1,406,596
7,511,546
4,350,612
244,786
724,826
2,531,694

16,770,061

9,162,417
3,644,048
-

12,806,465

2019
Taka

9,833,998

900,522
-

900,522

-

-

8,892,961
40,515

8,933,476

9,833,998

2,139,374
3,703,037
1,508,804
191,860
436,053
532,933

8,512,060

1,089,747
232,191
-

1,321,938

2018
Taka

Other Enterprise

Social Enterprise

71,284,621

7,103,523
(752,482)
2,256,000

8,607,041

-

-

62,675,692
1,888

62,677,580

71,284,621

1,406,596
7,772,263
13,732,361
1,317,977
329,493
5,451,791
5,922,023

35,932,504

30,560,605
4,791,512
-

35,352,117

2019
Taka

Total

52,279,896

3,684,907
-

3,684,907

-

-

48,265,486
329,504

48,594,990

52,279,896

2,139,374
4,039,591
11,732,981
1,164,965
962,928
5,389,866
2,006,848

27,436,552

23,508,184
1,335,160
-

24,843,344

2018
Taka

-

-

193,795

159,638
25,964
(412,101)
420,294

193,795

-

-

-

-

193,795

193,795

193,795

2019
Taka

-

-

838,664

392,406
25,964
420,294

838,664

-

-

-

-

838,664

412,101
66,800
359,763

838,664

2018
Taka

Education Program

Development Program
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787,881
1,942,246

2,283,882

1,639,034
644,848
-

Term loans
Deferred income
Loan loss provision
Member savings deposits

Current liabilities

Short term loans
Loan loss provision
Member savings deposits
Grants received in advance
Other current liabilities
Inter project payable
Inter project loan account

7,247,724

2,730,127

Non-current liabilities

Total assets

2,233,715
-

2,233,715

Capital fund
Reserve fund and others

Funds

Fund and liabilities

7,247,724

3,073,256
(2,027)
426,700
109,909
2,852,006

Loan to members
Short term investment
Grants and accounts receivables
Advance, deposits and prepayments
Advance income tax
Staff loans and advance
Inventories
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

6,459,843

787,881
-

Property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress (Buildings)
Deferred expenditure
Investment in related undertaking
Investment in securities and others

Current assets

787,881

2019
Taka

11,979,222

7,634,638
62,074
-

7,696,712

687,055
1,897,457

2,584,512

1,697,998
-

1,697,998

11,979,222

2,105,079
15,656
333,500
92,358
8,745,574

11,292,167

687,055
-

687,055

2018
Taka

Amrao manush program

Non - current assets

Assets

as at 30 June 2019

8,328,857

543,659
1,297,789
4,579,248

6,420,696

1,908,161
-

1,908,161

-

-

8,328,857

3,752,726
37,896
2,630,074

6,420,696

1,908,161
-

1,908,161

6,431,215

855,024
97,466
3,763,735

4,716,225

1,714,990
-

1,714,990

-

-

6,431,215

621,508
223,000
3,871,717

4,716,225

1,714,990
-

1,714,990

2018
Taka

Wash program

2019
Taka

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Segmental statement of financial position

SAJIDA Foundation

19,340,459

18,450,608
218,223
-

18,668,831

671,628
-

671,628

-

-

19,340,459

60,000
18,608,831

18,668,831

671,628
-

671,628

2019
Taka

6,270,459

6,234,463
-

6,234,463

35,996
-

35,996

-

-

6,270,459

6,234,463

6,234,463

35,996
-

35,996

2018
Taka

Health awareness program

9,537,166

699,288
5,832,516
2,432,747

-

8,964,551

264,225
-

264,225

308,390
-

308,390

9,537,166

3,483,477
150,000
5,303
5,680,589

9,319,369

217,797
-

217,797

2019
Taka

19,308,516

14,287,596
4,505,267
(8,452)

18,784,411

209,550
-

209,550

314,555
-

314,555

19,308,516

1,151,866
175,000
5,303
17,789,905

19,122,075

186,441
-

186,441

2018
Taka

Other development project

843,898,029

1,830,221
37,199,936
(55,915,522)
(354,363,866)

(371,249,231)

3,397,042
-

3,397,042

1,205,036,766
6,713,453

1,211,750,218

843,898,029

91,061,750
4,082,313
32,102,605
160,385,297
12,957,729

300,589,693

302,650,018
159,525,330
6,709,406
67,701,060
6,722,522

543,308,336

2019
Taka

584,450,045

3,467,751
2,726,216
(401,859,585)

(395,665,618)

3,083,298
-

3,083,298

972,926,075
4,106,290

977,032,365

584,450,045

53,900,000
1,826,531
16,321,917
126,126,400
158,288
19,888,584

218,221,720

274,701,749
18,694,083
13,143,767
53,036,060
6,652,666

366,228,325

2018
Taka

SAJIDA own funded program

17,671,132,652

9,072,821,571
340,111,905
2,840,234,185
27,189,452
214,492,577
-

12,494,849,690

710,716,664
7,028,937
300,232,927
817,770,171

1,835,748,699

3,127,462,486
213,071,776

3,340,534,262

17,671,132,652

14,980,232,196
660,049,900
277,603,121
88,801,194
178,637,847
155,194,545
5,569,049
654,582,745

17,000,670,596

419,879,269
159,525,330
16,633,874
67,701,060
6,722,522

670,462,055

2019
Taka

2018
Taka

13,704,845,091

7,120,194,065
242,727,802
2,461,158,575
37,039,202
128,181,979
-

9,989,301,623

564,833,331
5,730,889
97,034,282
561,324,064

1,228,922,566

2,332,661,136
153,959,766

2,486,620,902

13,704,845,091

11,855,466,311
535,172,724
16,964,144
59,635,615
140,871,448
114,920,726
6,006,531
373,451,737

13,102,489,237

369,444,161
154,704,040
14,478,927
53,036,060
10,692,666

602,355,854

Grand Total
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Net surplus/(deficit) for the year

368,262,526

2,336,332,507

3,513,033,511

1,968,069,981

447,888,027

3,065,145,484

Total assets

761,926,118
53,310,001
60,100,711
11,021,857
26,254,326
409,036
703,401
1,082,018
10,353,174
17,191,558
1,894,323
88,147,291
4,803,677
24,207,131
47,561,417
448,210,375
172,980,888
207,223,604
14,392,768
16,296,307
-

2,336,332,507

3,513,033,511

1,130,668,707
89,328,223
77,049,990
13,279,387
51,317,240
1,384,812
4,267,334
14,720,300
21,283,776
7,943,013
97,267,906
234,532
39,061,399
76,942,296
822,862,656
217,850,255
331,854,398
20,237,183
2,517,499
45,074,578
-

2,312,155,817
4,960,219
19,216,471
-

2018
Taka

3,449,594,793
6,646,582
56,792,136
-

2019
Taka

Microfinance Program

Salary and allowances
Travelling and transportation expenses
Office rent and utilities
Printing and stationery
Staff training & workshop
Beneficiaries’ training and workshop
Publicity and advertisement
Research and evaluation
Communication expenses
Repair and maintenance
Audit fees and consultancy
Nirapotta benefits
Community health
Maintenance and general expenses
Other program expenses
Service charge paid on PKSF loan
Service charge paid to other commercial bank
Interest on member savings
Loan loss provision expenses
Depreciation
Amortization on deferred expenses
Interest on loan-Interproject
Interproject dividend transfer

Expenditure

Income from microfinance
Donor grants
Income from investment
Income from bank interest (STD & FDR)
Income from Social Enterprise
Income from community contribution

Income

as at 30 June 2019

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Statement of comprehensive income

SAJIDA Foundation

122,563,202

(201,659)

122,764,861

106,906,175
5,764,292
15,207,248
1,268,850
1,855,116
813,703
457,252
7,048,424
537,833
2,483,880
27,220,193
8,082,045
1,418,287
(56,298,436)

122,563,202

114,025
122,449,178
-

2019
Taka

102,346,774

(6,747,169)

109,093,943

85,635,588
5,453,895
14,344,681
1,256,134
71,070
167,870
314,827
7,120,756
100,000
2,300,507
26,008,612
8,239,013
3,044,627
(44,963,636)

102,346,774

51,098
102,295,676
-

2018
Taka

SAJIDA Hospital

45,950,573

14,692,635

31,257,937

49,665,024
1,366,558
9,614,056
297,280
4,322,725
956,093
635,966
962,982
1,494,561
2,043,952
1,245,048
2,405,174
(43,751,482)

45,950,573

94,361
45,856,212
-

2019
Taka

21,853,810

3,795,853

18,057,957

24,605,519
701,133
2,541,990
113,022
729,032
34,962
43,923
331,119
197,845
250,000
1,091,814
385,929
(12,968,331)

21,853,810

193,964
21,659,846
-

2018
Taka

Other Enterprise

Social Enterprise

168,513,775

14,490,977

154,022,799

156,571,199
7,130,850
24,821,304
1,566,130
6,177,840
1,769,796
1,093,218
8,011,406
2,032,394
4,527,831
27,220,193
9,327,093
3,823,461
(100,049,918)

168,513,775

208,386
168,305,390
-

2019
Taka

Total

124,200,584

(2,951,316)

127,151,900

110,241,107
6,155,028
16,886,671
1,369,156
800,102
34,962
211,793
645,946
7,318,601
350,000
3,392,322
26,008,612
8,624,942
3,044,627
(57,931,967)

124,200,584

245,062
123,955,522
-

2018
Taka

1,172,915

-

1,172,915

766,500
21,034
32,600
13,500
35,100
304,181
-

1,172,915

942,985
229,930

2019
Taka

2,275,807

-

2,275,807

2,011,701
36,468
99,000
19,530
14,040
6,320
88,748
-

2,275,807

1,757,280
15,292
503,235

2018
Taka

Education Program

Development Program
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18,603,989

1,243,257

5,015,740
327,174

5,558,873

497,879

Office rent and utilities

Printing and stationery

Staff training & workshop

139,844

2,075,773
328,631
373,801

1,779,519

-

-

320,500

1,033,130

Publicity and advertisement

Research and evaluation

Communication expenses

Repair and maintenance
798,351

-

-

678,714

Nirapotta benefits

Community health

18,243,512
-

18,518,131

-

-

-

-

Service charge paid to other commercial bank

Interest on member savings

Loan loss provision expenses

-

-

-

Interest on loan-Interproject

Interproject dividend transfer

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year

Total assets
661,638

48,099,475

548,976

51,370,452

47,437,837

-

-

Amortization on deferred expenses

50,821,476

287,765

Depreciation

367,610

Other program expenses

Service charge paid on PKSF loan

Maintenance and general expenses

Audit fees and consultancy

57,500

Beneficiaries’ training and workshop

171,508

Salary and allowances

1,567,530

48,099,475

51,370,452

20,270,581

47,436,415
138,367
524,693

2018
Taka

50,810,607
175,109
384,735

2019
Taka

Amrao manush program

Travelling and transportation expenses

Expenditure

Income from microfinance
Donor grants
Income from investment
Income from bank interest (STD & FDR)
Income from Social Enterprise
Income from community contribution

Income

as at 30 June 2019

-

29,576,057

49,524,780

29,576,057

17,206,157
652,046
1,099,234
46,836
115,006
90,441
114,841
97,414
161,065
71,520
1,322,959
8,324,846
273,692
-

29,576,057

29,537,629
38,428
-

-

49,524,780

20,744,717
825,189
1,032,004
123,853
141,960
199,187
8,165
202,596
185,244
107,500
1,518,078
23,883,747
552,540
-

49,524,780

49,438,951
-0
85,829
-

2018
Taka

21,270,246

-

21,270,246

15,056,302
1,625,436
1,436,824
194,757
67,088
88,602
41,772
170,542
420,042
210,249
1,795,624
163,008
-

21,270,246

21,245,483
24,763
-

2019
Taka

4,654,843

(0)

4,654,843

3,712,839
213,203
282,427
750
46,570
18,778
90,080
1,827
86,352
175,525
26,492
-

4,654,843

4,646,390
8,453
-

2018
Taka

Health awareness program

Development program

Wash program
2019
Taka

(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Statement of comprehensive income

SAJIDA Foundation

21,030,657

(6,165)

21,036,822

6,921,621
595,131
388,474
29,434
1,630,910
1,405,556
337
22,467
24,358
96,750
82,011
9,746,366
93,407
-

21,030,657

20,865,319
141,105
24,233

2019
Taka

29,732,391

-

29,732,391

5,213,346
476,691
419,060
94,228
405,695
1,141,347
1,221,911
40,565
17,157
52,000
305,685
20,218,329
126,376
-

29,732,391

29,276,448
263,573
192,370

2018
Taka

Other development projects

349,995,512

231,938,577

118,056,935

10,817,711
1,110,957
3,155,465
675,743
1,318,857
-0
12,515
14,875
235,974
247,523
5,274,314
23,876,742
6,428,837
3,271,436
6,640,646
-45,074,578
100,049,918

349,995,512

6,055,696
339,418,129
4,521,688
-

2019
Taka

298,919,245

208,291,414

90,627,831

27,445,468
1,676,759
3,216,504
155,902
933,236
113,594
46,503
765,761
152,227
4,247,929
3,666,404
6,571,884
-16,296,307
57,931,967

298,919,245

6,814,977
279,594,316
12,509,952
-

2018
Taka

SAJIDA own funded program

4,175,911,848

694,860,391

3,481,051,457

1,361,817,338
102,204,350
113,475,534
16,367,182
60,838,903
4,857,676
6,099,920
14,875
16,765,597
31,240,580
15,511,471
97,267,906
234,532
70,259,206
87,592,899
76,942,296
822,862,656
217,850,255
331,854,398
34,012,277
12,981,606
-

4,175,911,848

3,449,594,793
156,005,624
339,418,129
61,949,016
168,305,390
638,898

2019
Taka

2018
Taka

2,873,790,909

574,264,262

2,299,526,647

946,360,725
63,763,453
87,119,347
13,015,903
28,714,309
3,897,971
2,273,688
1,962,620
11,619,784
25,154,854
6,615,772
88,147,291
4,803,677
30,290,721
72,795,299
47,561,417
448,210,375
172,980,888
207,223,604
27,398,439
9,616,511
-

2,873,790,909

2,312,155,817
124,429,357
279,594,316
32,435,599
123,955,522
1,220,298

Grand Total
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(Registered in Bangladesh under the Societies Registration Act, 1860)
Scedule of donation recieved
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Amount in BDT
Name of the projects

Donor

2019

2018

6,193,467

4,515,221

-

2,646,574

Adhunika (USA)

580,075

1,106,560

BRAC

710,217

1,422,648

United Way Worldwide-USA

-

8,421,000

Rockefeller Philanthropy Advisors (RPA)

-

29,212,521

Water.Org-USA

5,564,713

2,946,250

WaterAid

9,069,376

10,478,297

Urban Pavement Dwellers -UPD

Concern Worldwide-Bangladesh

19,855,529

16,717,228

ILUEP

Concern Worldwide-Bangladesh

23,051,234

32,249,500

SNV Netherlands

2,055,033

866,658

WASH4Urban Poor

WaterAid

14,769,229

3,324,049

WASH-Crisis

WaterAid

8,152,087

-

Concern Worldwide-Bangladesh

27,903,793

6,321,277

Malaria Control Program
IMPACT
Adhunika
Education Program
Citi Award
OPTIX
Access to WASH
WASH-RMG

SNV Project

PROSHOMON

BRAC/GFATM
WaterAid

UPD Project

Broken Earth

-

2,829,812

Rohingya

Broken Earth

2,409,605

1,634,898

Various Local Donor

2,640,000

6,072,070

WaterAid

1,778,166

1,895,813

PKSF

4,205,015

3,140,495

Project

SAJIDA Contribution

9,054,760

8,231,600

Access to WASH

SAJIDA Contribution

-

412,101

Education Program

SAJIDA Contribution

1,778,000

-

ILUEP

Various Local Donor

-

69,920

Adhunika

SAJIDA Contribution

195,212

156,300

Amrao Manush Project

Various Local Donor

-

782,793

Other Funds

Various Local Donor

10,200

50,400

139,975,711

144,721,192

Team Broken Earth
DFS
Prime, SAMRIDDHI and Agri

Amrao Manush Savings
Total
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Five Years Performance Analysis
Indicators

FY 2018-19

FY 2017-18

FY 2016-17

FY 2015-16

FY 2014-15

202
1,767.11
312.75
417.59
348.11
69.49
3,556

178
1,370.00
232.78
287.38
229.95
57.43
2,672

188
904.87
177.65
202.12
145.19
56.93
2,353

162
566.66
117.95
126.07
98.38
27.69
1,870

124
371.76
89.55
103.27
85.97
17.31
1,581

17.70%
4.02
84.77%

16.99%
4.31
86.54%

19.63%
3.61
82.80%

20.82%
3.25
81.43%

24.09%
2.61
76.24%

4.43%
25.47%
108.41%
119.96%

5.05%
27.98%
111.35%
124.97%

7.74%
38.52%
112.38%
139.21%

5.90%
26.69%
106.99%
128.15%

4.81%
21.44%
116.67%
120.13%

Revenues
Financial Revenues/Assets
Profit Margin
Yield on Gross Portfolio

25.62%
16.64%
23.07%

24.16%
19.98%
21.42%

26.49%
28.16%
21.21%

25.31%
21.96%
20.90%

26.62%
16.76%
25.92%

Expenses
Total Expenses/Assets
Financial Expenses/Assets
Operating Expenses/Assets
Personnel Expenses/Assets
Administrative Expenses/Assets

19.70%
6.32%
15.07%
8.68%
4.27%

16.78%
5.00%
14.19%
8.18%
4.20%

16.05%
4.45%
14.26%
8.40%
4.83%

17.36%
3.73%
16.46%
8.97%
6.45%

23.12%
5.11%
18.64%
9.11%
7.81%

282,367
1,498.02
53,052
26.36%
9,202
5.05%

236,338
1,185.55
50,163
58.23%
6,811
3.89%

193,280
749.26
38,765
62.37%
5,134
1.96%

165,883
461.45
27,818
62.80%
3,841
2.85%

134,362
283.44
21,095
9.05%
4,055
5.22%

181
96.03

200
100.47

201
77.80

231
64.36

239
50.42

0.22%
3.65%
93.34%
7.86%

0.19%
2.54%
92.13%
7.06%

1.32%
2.54%
122.16%
9.38%

0.53%
3.82%
124.51%
8.53%

0.37%
3.80%
89.86%
10.71%

General Information
Number of Branch
Total Assets (Taka in Crore)
Total Equity (Taka in Crore)
Total Revenue (Taka in Crore)
Total Expenditure (Taka in Crore)
Net Income during the year (Taka in Crore)
Total Staff
Financing Structure
Capital/Asset Ratio
Debt to Equity Ratio
Portfolio to Assets
Overall Financial Performance
Return on Assets
Return on Equity
Operational Self-Sufficiency
Overall Self-Sufficiency

Outreach Indicators
Number of Borrower
Loan Portfolio (Taka in Crore)
Average Loan Balance per Borrower
Growth in Average Outstanding
Cost per Loan
Portfolio at Risk
Productivity
Borrower per Field Staff
Loan Outstanding per Field Staff (In Lac)
Risk Coverage and Liquidity
Write-off Ratio
Loan Loss Rate
Risk Coverage Ratio
Non-earning Liquid Assets as a % of Total Assets
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Donor and Partner Wise Source of Funds
as of June 2019

A. Grants and Donations:
Name of Donor/Partner

Neimeth Foundation

Programs

Project Life

Microcredit
Health Program
Vocational Training

July 2001 - December 2004
July 1998 - December 2006
January - December 2000

Sub Total
January 2002 - December 2005
March 2006

Sub Total
BRAC
GFATM through BRAC
GFATM through BRAC

January 1999 - December 2018
May 2008 - 31st December 2020
August 2010 - June 2015

Sub Total
March 2008 - Dec. 2016
October 2010 - September 2014
June 2015 - August 2016
January 2017 - Dec. 2019
February 2017 - Dec. 2019
February 2018 - Dec. 2019

Sub Total

121,325,583
17,098,339
4,675,873
43,022,316
63,838,273
34,225,070
284,185,454

Training on Rehabilitations of NMT Pullers
Poor Owners

October 2007 - June 2009

9,723,720

Palli Paramedic Training
Prime
SAMRIDDHI
Agri
KGF
DIISP
CCCP

March 2012 - April 2012
July 2013 - June 2017
July 2013 - June 2019
July 2013 - June 2018
July 2015 - June 2019
January 2014 - Aug. 2016
Sept. 2015 - Dec.2016

1,702,179
72,366,887
16,631,160
6,618,207
2,747,215
924,538
14,563,039

Sub Total
ORBIS International
Mr. S.H. Kabir & his Family
DFID through CLP
Save the Children-UK UNDP
Community Contribution
Local Donor
Local Donor
Local Donor
Local Donor
Local Donor
Adhunika Women’s Centre USA
Adhunika Women’s
Centre Local Donor
WaterAid
WaterAid
WaterAid
WaterAid
WaterAid
United Way
Worldwide-USA
Water.Org-USA
Rockefeller Philanthropy Advisors
(RPA)
SNV Netherlands
Team Broken Earth
Team Broken Earth
ABN-AMRO MeesPierson
Broken Earth
Local Donor

8,059,702
30,862,969
12,900,307
51,822,978

Amrao Manush Project
Amrao Manush Model Project
DIPECHO-VIII
Urban Pavement Dwellers -UPD
ILUEP
PROSHOMON

Palli Karma Sahayak
Foundation

1,810,641
82,835
1,893,476

Education Program
Malaria Control Program
TB Control Program

Concern Worldwide
Bangladesh

11,191,132
8,614,258
1,216,359
21,021,749

Family Savings Program
Poverty Assessment

CARE Bangladesh

Amount (BDT)

125,276,945
Integrated Eye Project
Education Program
Nirapad Palli Sanchay Project
Blue Peter Meal and Deal Project
Chattogram Hill Tracts Development
Facility (CHTDF)
CCCP
Amrao Manush Project
Amrao Manush Manik Nagar Project
Poor Fund
Darud & Zakat Fund
Scholarship Fund
Adhunika Women’s Centre
Adhunika Women’s Centre
IMPACT
WASH-RMG
WASH4Urban Poor
DFS
WASH4-Crisys
Citi Award
Access to WASH
OPTIX
SNV Project
Training
UPD Project
UPD Project
Rohingya
Endowment

March 2005 - February 2008
January 1993 - June 2010
July 2007 - March 2009
Feb. 2009 - March 2010
February 2010 - December 2011

8,647,214
7,605,524
9,147,578
1,700,538
78,484,033

Sept.2015 - Dec.2016
July 2017 - June 2018
July 2017 - June 2018
July 2017 - June 2018
July 2017 - June 2018
July 2017 - June 2018
July 2013 - June 2019
July 2013 - June 2018
Oct.2012 - March 2018
June 2016 - March 2019
January 2017 - April 2022
July 2017 - June 2019
August 2018 - December 2020
July 2015 - June 2018
Sept. 2016 - Aug. 2020
January 2015 - December 2018
July 2017 - June 2018
July 2018 - June 2019
July 2017 - June 2018
July 2017 - June 2018
July 2017 - December 2018
July 2017 - June 2018

2,309,934
1,839,880
3,660,743
1,034,093
330,000
120,566
6,523,705
812,729
42,532,281
25,685,660
18,093,278
3,673,979
8,152,087
22,019,229
14,539,963
40,348,261
2,921,691
8,712,070
1,901,076
928,736
4,044,503
100,000

Sub Total

315,869,351

Grand Total

800,069,953
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Donor and Partner Wise source of Funds
as of June 2019

B. Loans:

Amount
Received
(BDT)

Amount
Returned
(BDT)

Dues
(BDT)

10,000,000
277,000,000
112,308,000
10,000,000
3,261,911
60,000,000
2,007,100,000
790,000,000
120,000,000
980,000,000
980,000,000
80,000,000
290,000,000
270,000,000
4,000,000
400,000
600,000

10,000,000
277,000,000
112,308,000
10,000,000
3,261,911
60,000,000
2,007,100,000
790,000,000
120,000,000
610,000,000
522,000,000
53,333,336
220,000,000
230,000,000
1,600,000
200,000
200,000

370,000,000
458,000,000
26,666,664
70,000,000
40,000,000
2,400,000
200,000
400,000

5,994,669,911

5,027,003,247

967,666,664

12,205,451
264,990,265
6,000,000
2,310,000
754,100,000
50,000,000
235,932,267
190,000,000
2,650,000,000
250,000,000
500,000,000
1,270,000,000
211,843,016
1,319,854,000
1,397,023,930
474,358,389
5,660,000,000
3,773,181,318
2,900,000,000
323,159,347
1,550,000,000
19,156,691,779
2,250,000,000
3,236,639,395
1,610,000,000
2,203,469,609
13,740,632,627
250,000,000
100,000,000
1,509,335,560
678,438,305
1,500,000,000
50,000,000
50,000,000
500,000,000
300,000,000

12,205,451
264,990,265
6,000,000
2,310,000
504,100,000
50,000,000
43,105,174
190,000,000
1,750,000,000
250,000,000
375,000,000
1,270,000,000
211,843,016
1,119,854,000
1,250,023,930
472,366,231
4,660,000,000
3,717,222,687
2,400,000,000
223,261,809
1,250,000,000
18,661,301,269
1,500,000,000
2,995,864,171
1,610,000,000
2,203,369,458
12,359,541,982
250,000,000
100,000,000
579,335,560
476,291,860
1,000,000,000
4,056,824
50,000,000
2,250,000
300,000,000

250,000,000
192,827,093
900,000,000
125,000,000
200,000,000
147,000,000
1,992,157
1,000,000,000
55,958,631
500,000,000
99,897,538
300,000,000
495,390,511
750,000,000
240,775,224
100,151
1,381,090,645
930,000,000
202,146,445
500,000,000
45,943,176
497,750,000
-

Sub Total

70,930,165,258

62,114,293,687

8,815,871,571

Grand Total

76,924,835,169

67,141,296,934

9,783,538,235

Name of Donor/Partner

Palli Karma Sahayak Foundation

Programs

Project Life

Livelihood Restoration
Program
Seasonal
RNPPO
EFRRAP
Institutional Development
Program
Seasonal Agriculture
Microcredit (RMC&UMC)
Micro Enterprise
Ultra Poor
Jagoron
Agrosor
Buniad
Sufolon
KGF(Sufolon)
IGA
Livelihood Improvement
Program
Asset Creation

July 2007 - January 2008
February 2009 - June 2015
October 2007 - June 2012
February 2009 - January 2012
April 2007 - February 2011
February 2012 - June 2015
September 2005 - Ongoing
July 2006 - Ongoing
July 2012 - Ongoing
September 2014 - Ongoing
September 2014 - Ongoing
September 2014 - Ongoing
September 2014 - Ongoing
September 2014 - Ongoing
June 2017 - Ongoing
June 2017 - Ongoing
June 2017 - Ongoing

Sub Total

CARE Bangladesh
BRAC
ASA
Bangladesh Bank (Grihayan Tahbil)
Bangladesh Bank (SMAP-JICA)
Sonali Bank Ltd.
Sonali Bank Ltd.(OD)
One Bank
Eastern Bank
Bank Asia Ltd.
Habib Bank Ltd.
Jamuna Bank Ltd
Jamuna Bank Ltd. (OD)
Bank Alfalah Ltd.
HSBC Ltd.
HSBC Ltd. (OD)
BRAC Bank Ltd.
BRAC Bank Ltd. (Overdraft)
Standard Chartered Bank Ltd.
Standard Chartered Bank Ltd.(OD)
Dhaka Bank Ltd
Dhaka Bank Ltd (Overdraft)
Prime Bank Ltd.
Prime Bank Ltd. (Overdraft)
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.(Overdraft)
Agrani Bank Ltd (Overdraft
Dutch -Bangla Bank Ltd
Southeast Bank Ltd
Pubali Bank Ltd
Pubali Bank Ltd (OD)
United Commercial Bank Ltd
UAE Bangladesh Investment Co. Ltd
The City Bank Ltd
NCC Bank Ltd
Commercial Bank of Cylon

Microcredit
Microcredit & Enterprise
Microcredit
Grihayan
Microcredit (Agri)
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit
Microcredit

October 2001 - June 2006
November 1997 - May 2007
July 2005 - January 2008
January 2010 - January 2015
September 2015 - Ongoing
August 2010 - July 2013
February 2019 - Ongoing
March 2012 - June 2013
June 2012 - Ongoing
June 2012 - October 2014
May 2016 - Ongoing
March 2014 - Ongoing
March 2014 - Ongoing
January 2011 - Ongoing
April 2015 - Ongoing
April 2015 - Ongoing
June 2015 - Ongoing
January 2017 - Ongoing
February 2013 - Ongoing
February 2013 - Ongoing
May 2016 - Ongoing
May 2016 - Ongoing
September 2016 - Ongoing
September 2016 - Ongoing
December 2016 - Ongoing
July 2016 - Ongoing
April 2017 - Ongoing
May 2018 - Ongoing
Sept. 2017 - Ongoing
Sept. 2017 - Ongoing
May 2018 - Ongoing
Sept. 2019 - Ongoing
Oct. 2019 - Ongoing
Sept. 2019 - Ongoing
June. 2019 - Ongoing
April. 2018 - Ongoing
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At a Glance
As of June 2019

Outreach

Human Resources

Districts

24

Particulars

Male

Female

Total

Unions

696

Head Office

91

38

129

Upazilas

185

Programs

2,494

933

3,427

Population Covered (est)

6.03 Million

Total

2,585

971

3,556

Annual Budget
Organization Amount

Donor Amount

Year

BDT Million

USD Million

BDT Million

USD Million

2008-09

2,706

33.83

27.34

0.34

2009-10

3,082

38.53)

17.59

0.22

2010-11

3,737

46.71

28.30

0.35

2011-12

4,212

52.65

63.10

0.79

2012-13

6,521

81.51

33.30

0.42

2013-14

7,112

88.90

56.40

0.71

2014-15

9,050

113.13

90.20

1.13

2015-16

9,747

126.58

94.50

1.23

2016-17

19,050

230.90

77.40

0.93

2017-18

35,360

431.21

117.50

1.43

2018-19

45,788

555.01

184.55

2.23

Key Performance Indicators

June-18

June-19

No of District Covered (Out of 64)

18

20

Total No of Branch Office

178

202

Total No of Member (all active)

280,416

340,278

Total No of Borrower (current)

240,128

282,367

Total Loan Outstanding Balance

11,855,472,311

14,980,232,196

Total Amount Disbursed (on this month)

1,393,148,000

1,792,591,000

Total Member Savings Balance

3,020,585,182

3,656,062,309

Portfolio-At-Risk (PAR30)

3.11%

5.05%

On Time Recovery (OTR)

97.75%

98.11%

Caseload Per Credit Officer

237

218

Microfinance

153

154
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SAMRIDDHI

Amrao Manush

Particulars

Achievement

Particulars

Achievement

Anc & Pnc Service Provided

11,217

District Covered

2

Static & Satellite Clinic Organized

1,959

Total No Of Pavement Dweller Centre

7

Patients Received Health Services

45,755

Participants Received Basic Necessities

19,693

Operation Done For Cataract Patient

357

Total Day Care Service Received

1,879

Education Centre

40

Completed Epi

90 %

Sanitary Latrine Constructed

53

Tube Well Installed

45

Total Member Received Savings Interest
(Bdt)

22,136,677

Hh Based Sanitary Latrine Constructed

500

Total Block Grant Distributed

13,740,874

Beggar Rehabilitated

11

Participates Received Health Care

14,694

Vocational Training Provided

17

Malaria Elimination
Agriculture & Livestock Unit
Particulars

Achievement

Technology Demonstration on Agriculture

540

Technology Demonstration on Fish culture

205

Technology Demonstration on Livestock

835

Farmers received training on Agri. Livestock
& Poultry

5,943

Hospitals
Particulars

Achievement

Total Outdoor Patients Treated

1,768,035

Total Patients Admitted

84,429

Total Nicu Admission

2,188

Total Normal Deliveries Performed

4,804

Total Caesarean Deliveries Performed

19,644

Total Cataract Surgeries Performed

5,636

Total Others Surgeries Performed

58,496

Nirapotta (Safety Net)

Particulars

Achievement

Population Covered Population Covered

7,85,983

Households Covered

1,69,437

Labs Established

3

Lab Centre Functioning

3

Blood Slides Examined

57,147

Blood Slides Positive

322

Rapid Diagnostic Test Performed

19,710

Rapid Diagnostic Test Positive

199

Long Lasting Insecticide Net (Llin) Distributed

103,949

Ordinary Nets Treated

32,675

Popular Theatre & Folk Songs Organized

14

Orientation On Malaria Prevention & Control

45

Orientation Of Village Doctors On Malaria
Management

18

Advocacy Workshop

9

WASH
Particular

Achievement

School Water Facility

49

School Sanitation Facility

49

Community Water Facility

6,326

Community Sanitation Facility

3,648

Particular

Achievement

Member Enrolled

197,679

Death Claims Settled

9,545

Cattle Death Claims Settled

6

Beneficiary Coverage
(Water, Sanitation And Hygiene)

97,306

Health Claims Settled

78,284

Number Of Water Credit Loan

10,449

Disaster Claims Settled

1,317

Education Scholarships Provided

20,590

Water Credit Loan Amount

BDT
53,58,81,000

Scholarship Installments Disbursed

49,707,647

Public/Mobile Toilet User

3,793,872

Legal Services Provided

3,755

Water Connection Legalization

12
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Proshomon
Particulars

Indicators

Achievement

Human Resource

Total Project Staffs

19

Infrastructure

Project Field Office

2

Household Covered

15,000

Chandpur-8000
& Feni-7000

Total Beneficiaries

66,000

Feni 30,800 & Chandpur
35,200

Bcc Orientation On Health And Nutrition
Preventive Practices

200

Total Participants

Reproductive Age Women
(15-49 Years)

14,440

Pregnant And Lactating Women

957

Children Under Five

4,076

Adolescent Boys (10-19 Years)

4,543

Adolescent Girls

4,507

Elderly, Over 60 Years

2,446

People With Disability

571

Total Empaneled Health Facilities

9

Programmatic

Smart Health Card
Distributed
Service Delivered

Chandpur

4,750

Feni

3,011

Chandpur

572

Feni

284

Comments

Private-5 and NGO-4
Households
Services

Elder Care

FDMN Project
Particulars

Achievement

Particular

Achievement

Total Target Population

40,387

Patient Served

130

Total Patient Received Primary Health Care

20,712

Net Payable

BDT 24,005,602

Free Medicine Provided To Patients

1,7819

Total Received

BDT 26,345,831

Due Amount

BDT 1,567,547

Category Of Beneficiaries Of Pregnant Women 798
(Anc)
Category Of Beneficiaries Of Lactating Mothers (Pnc)

278

Patients Referred For Advanced Medical Care

795

Family Planning Services And Counselling

3,052

Most prevalent Case Distribution of Primary
Health Care services:

Working with Women Phase II
Particulars

Achievement

Worker Orientation On Gender Based
Violence & Mental Health

2,098 persons

Para-Counselor Training

15 persons

Mid-Level Management Training

52 persons

Particulars

Achievement

World Mental Health Day Observation

100 persons

Respiratory Diseases (Ari And Rti)

2,145

Training Of Mental Health First Aid

41 persons

Diarrhoea

1,082

Para-Counseling By Welfare-Officer

86 persons

Skin Diseases

1,446

Anti-Harassment Committee Formation
& Training

3 committees

155

156
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Psychological Health
and Wellness Clinic Ltd.
Particular

Inner Circle Ltd.
Particular

Achievement

Achievement

Therapists employed

18

Clients Reached for Psychological
Support

130

New Service Added: Speech &
Language Therapy

1

Organizations Received Corporate
Workshops/Trainings

BDT 24,005,602

New Flagship Centre Inaugurated

1

NGOs received Psycho-Social Support
(PSS)

BDT 1,567,547

Clients Under Wellness Day Centre

4

Events Organized

2

Health, Happiness
& Dignity for All

OTOBI Center, 5th floor, Plot 12,
Block CWS(C), Gulshan South Avenue,
Gulshan 1, Dhaka 1212
inquiry@sajida.org
+8802-9890513
+8802-9851511
Fax: +8802-9863165

